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MAY REBELLION BE COMPLEXED WITH OTHER CRIMES?

By: Bernardo Stuart del Rosario

LL.B., D.CL.

(UC de Madrid)

Member, Philippine Bar

The courts have had
no occasion to rule
squarely on the ques-
tion of whether rebel-
lion complexed with
other crimes can legal-
ly exist. Justice Tua-
son opined that there
is no such creature
known to law (Nava
vs. Gatmaitan, GR L-
4855; Hernandez vs.
Montesa, GR L-4964;
Angeles vs. Abaya, GR
1-5102). But our post-
war government pro-
secutors seem to be of
the contrary view. In
the so-called politburo
and other rebellion
cases, they have been
making charges of re-
bellion complexed with
other crimes. The same
is done in the recent
case of Luis Taruc,
which has currently occupied the headlines. Are the government
prosecutors influenced by the putlic clamor to “throw the book” at
the surrendering Huk Supremo instcad of being guided by the correct
appraisal of applicable laws?

1. The law and reason for complex crimes.—According to
Art. 48 of the Revised Penal Code, a complex crime can be com-
mitted only in either of two instances: first, when a single act
constitutes two or more grave or less grave felonies; and, second-
ly, when an offense is a necessary means for committing the other.

Bernardo Stuart del Rosario

Although a provision on complex crimes similar to our own is
found in the Penal Code of Spain (Arts. 77, Code of 1850; 90,
Code of 1870; 75, Code of 1932; 71, Code of 1944), said provision,
hewever, had never been resorted to for the purpose of increasing
the penalty, much less had it been applied to political crimes. The
principle behind complex crimes and the reason for its adoption
is to afford the accused the benefit of a single penalty for two or
more offenses, and the penalty cannot be increased over and be-
yond that of a single offense.

La unificacion de penas en los casos de concurso de de-
litos a que hace referencia este articulo, esta basado franca-
mente en el principio pro reo, de tal suerte que cuando este
fin no se logra con la aplicacion del castigo unico correspon-
diente al delito mas grave de los varios calificados, el mismo
precepto sancionador dispone que se penen separadamente to-
das las infracciones que integra el compuesto eriminoso atri-
buido al culpable; como hubo de entenderlo y realizarlo la
Sala de instancia, al advertir que el grado maximo de
la pena aplicable al atentado compredido en el parrafo
ultimo del articulo 259 del Codigo Penal de 1932 alcanzaba la
duracion de tres afios, nueve meses y cuatro dias a cuatro
afios y dos meses, mientras que impuesta dicha pena en su
grado medio y a ella sometida la de cuatro meses y un dia
que aplica al delito de lesiones, resultaba esta suma inferior
en duracion y, por ende, mas beneficiosa para el reo que
aquel castigo, unico especificamente preserito en la norma sus-
tantiva ya citada. (S. 80-11-945; R. 1. 377) (I Rodri-
guez Navarro, Doctrina Penal del Tribunal Supremo, p. 2168).

To resort, therefore, to the application of complex crime provided
for by Art. 48 in order to increase the penalty, is a manifest con-
travention of the principles of venal law, that the penalty should
be strictly construed and always in favor of the accused. With
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less reason should Art. 48 be applied to rebellion, inasmuch as the
penalizing law defines it as “rising publicly and taking arms against
the government” for the purpose therein stated (Art. 134) and
“engaging in war against the forces of the Government, destroying
property or committing serious violence.” (Art. 135). “En-
gaging in or levying war” is a technical term that has received
judicial construction and acquired a definite meaning. (U. S. vs.
Lagnason, 3 Phil. 473). The attendance of crimes penalized in
other provisions of the Revised Penal Code ma; be considered with-
in the codal definition of rebellion.

2. Leniency in political crimes notwithstanding their factual
complexity.—Our Supreme Court has definitely ruled that all
other crimes committed with treason form the essential element of
the given crime and cannot be divided into parts for each one to
stand as a separate ground to convict the accused of a different
crime. It also had occasion earlier to rule on cases of treason
and rebellion under Act 292 and under the Revised Penal Code be-
fore the war. (U.S. vs. Ayala, 6 Phil. 151; U.S. vs. Lagnason,
2 Phil 473; U.S. vs. Baldello, 3 Phil 510; League vs. People, 78
Phil 155). Said cases involved murders, physical injuries, destrue-
tions and other crimes, yet they were not held to be complex crimes
. but plain rebellion. Rebellion is closely related to treason having
the same elements. The difference is that treason involves the
delivery of the country to a foreign power, and therefore, remained
punishable as a capital offense, But rebellion might even be com-
mitted for love of country and therefore was given a lighter penalty.
Reason for this is in the changed attitude on political crimes.

El origen de este cambio se remonta, segun opinion muy
difundida, a la revolucion que tuvo lugar en Francia en el
afio 1830, EI gobierno de Luis Felipe establecio una honda
separacion entre los delitos comunes y los politicos, siendo estos
sometidos a una penalidad mas suave y sus autores exceptua-
dos de la extradicion. Irradiando a otros paises tuvieron es-
tas ideas tan gran difusion que en casi todos los de regimen
liberal individualista se ha llegzdo a crear un tratamiento des-
provisto de severidad para la represion de estos hechos. No
solo las penas conque se conminaron perdieron gran parte de
su antigua dureza, sino que en algunos paises se creo un re-
gimen penal mas suave para estos delincuentes, en otros se
abolio para ellos la pena de muerte. Tan profundo contraste
entre el antiguo y el actual de la criminalidad
politica en la mayoria de los paises solo puede ser explicado
por las ideas nacidas y difundidas bajo los regimenes politicos
liberales acerca de estos delitos y delicuentes. Por una parte
se ha afirmado que la criminalidad de estos hechos no contiene
la misma inmoralidad que lsz delincuencia comun, que es tan
solo relativa, que depende de! tiempo, del lugar, de las eir-

i de las instituci del pais. Otros invocan la
elevacion de los moviles y sentimientos determinantes de estos
hechos, el amor a la patria, la adhesion ferviente a determi-
nadas ideas o principios, el espiritu de sacrificio por el triun-
fo de un idea. (I Cuello Calon, Derecho Penal pp. 250-251.)

The leniency with which the American Courts had viewed the
various crimes committed in furtherance of armed uprising is re-
flected in the refusal to extradite former President Ezeta of Sal-
vador, where he had been charged for murders and robberies on
the ground that said crimes were committed during the progress
of actual hostilities of a revolutionary uprising and therefore of
political character not subject to extradition. (In re Ezeta, 62
Fed. Rep. 972). The court therein had occasion to cite the rea-
sons for the tenderness of the law for political offenses.

“In the revolutions, as we conduct them in our countries,
the common offenses are necessarily mixed up with the political
in many cases. A revolutionist has no resources, My distin-
guished colleague General Caamano (of Ecuador) knows how
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we carry on wars. A revolutionist needs horses for moving,
beef to feed his troops, etc., and since he does mnot go into
the public markets to purchase those horses and that beef, nor
the arms and saddles to mount and equip his forces, he takes
them from the first pasture or shop he finds at hand. This
is called robbery everywhere, and is a common offense in time
of peace, but in time of war it is a circumstance closely allied
to the manner of waging it.” (Inter. Am. Conference, vol.
2, p. 615.) (In re Ezeta, 62 Fed. Rep. 972).

8. Background of our rebellion and sedition laws.—Our law
on political crimes have undergone changes, starting with the en-
actment of Act 292, that abrogated, among others, the old Penal
Cede provisions in the case of rehellion. Considering that it does
not involve a delivery of the country to a foreign power, and that
the people then were engaged in a justifiable purpose of trying
to obtain their independence, the rigorous penalty of the old Code
was changed by Act 292, and the change later on was adopted in
the Revised Penal Code, the very same law to this day for which
rebellion cases are prosecuted.

Our laws on treason, rebellion and sedition had been modified
to be in harmony with American laws, Significant of these changes
is the reduction of the penalty on vebellion without the least chang-
ing or lessening the scope of the offense. There was also the vir-
tual abrogation of Art. 244 of the old Penal Code which other-
wise indicated a separate penalty for common crimes committed in
pursuance of rebellion. In the enactment of the Revised Penal
Code, some of these changes in Act 292 have been adopted to alle-
viate the rigorous penalty provided for by the old Code. There
was no intention, whatsoever, to expand the application of the pro-
vision on complex crime by extending it to rebellion in order to
increase the penalty. Subsequent decisions of the court tend to
show this liberal change.

In the case of Ayala, where the defendants rose in arms, li-
berated prisoners and robbed the barracks of weapons, money and
commissary supplies, killed constabularymen and caused terror in
the town, the trial court convicted them of treason. The St

Code of 1944) in said codes are indicative of the fact that the article
on complex crime has never besn envisaged to be made to apply
to rebellion and sedition with their attendant common crimes.

This becomes doubly significant when we consider that our Re-
vised Penal Code has excluded any semblance of Art. 244 there-
from, thus, leaving and limiting- punishment of all other erimes
committed in the course or in furtherance of rebellion and sedition,
to those respectively provided for in said articles on rebellion and
sedition. Certainly the article on complex crime cannot and should
not be made to extend its application to these political crimes, for,
otherwise, the Revised Penal Code would have declared so, or else
specially provide that they should be treated as common crimes as
heretofore provided in the old Penal Code.

5. Rebellion mot complexed with other crimes.—In rebellion
there is an attendant physical activity which may be, and often is,
in itself an otherwise criminal offense under another codal provi-
sion. The crime of rebellion or of inciting it is by nature a erime
of masses, of multitudes. It always presupposes a vast movement
and a complex net of intrigues and plots.

In the Sakdalista uprising of 1935, at Sta. Rosa, Laguna, the
rebels cut the telegraph, telephone and electric-light lines, robbed
vehicle passengers of their arms and engaged in a bloody encounter
with the constabulary resulting in deaths and physical injuries.
The Supreme Court held that these acts constitute rebellion. (League
vs. People, 73 Phil. 155). In another Sakdal uprising constituting
similar acts and an with the lary, there were
fifty-nine killed and several ded, and alth the d d
were acquitted, the Court of Appeals held that said acts constituted
rebellion.. (People v. Almazan, 37 0.G. 100.) It can be gleaned
from these cases that notwithstanding the occurrence of robberies,
multiple murders, frustrated murders, and other acts of violence
and destructions, no pretense was made whatsoever that the crime
of rebellion therein committed were complexed with the other at-
tendant crimes.

6. Treason not complexed with other crimes.—Treason in its
form of issi and its political nature is closely related to

Ccurt, however, found them guilty of plain rebellion and reduced
the sentence accordingly. (U.S. vs, Ayala, et al., 6 Phil 151).

In the case of Lagnason, where the lower court convicted the
defendant to death for the crime of treason for an attack upon the
pueblo of Murcia during the course of which there was a fight
with the constabulary causing about twenty-two casualties, two of
whom were policemen, the Supreme Court, instead, convicted ap-
pellant of rebellion and accordingly reduced the punishment. (U.
S. vs. Lagnason, 3 Phil 473)

In the case of Baldello, where the defendants attacked a muni-
cipal building, and rpowered the clerks,
rcbbing the municipal buxldmg of guns and ammunitions, causing
deaths and physical injuries during the running fight, the Supreme
Court again held that the crime committed was not treason but
rebellion, (U. S. vs. Baldello, 3 Phil 509).

4. Spanish and Philippine laws on rebellion and sedition dis-
tinguished.—The Philippines had departed from Spain in the treat-
ment of attendant crimes committed during a rebellion or sedition.
Heretofore our old Penal Code in its Art. 244 had substantially the
same provision as Art. 259 of the Spanish Penal Code of 1870 (for-
merly Art. 184, Penal Code of 1850; then Art. 254, Penal Code of
1982; and now, Art. 227, Penal Code of 1944) which reads:

ART, 244. Los delitos particulares cometidos en una re-
belion o sedicion, o con motivo de ellas, seran castigados respee-
tivamente segun las disposiciones de este Codigo.

Cuando no pueden descubrirse sus autores, seran penados
como tales los jefes principales de la rebelion o sedicion.

This provision has no more counterpart in our present Revised Pe-
nal Code. The retention of this provision in all the Spanish Penal
Codes of 1850, 1870, 1932, and 1944, as well as the retention, at
same time, of the provision on complex crime (Art, 77, Code of
1860; Art. 90 Code of 1870; Art, 75 Code of 1932; and Art. 71,
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rebellion.  Yet treason cannot be complexed with other crimes.
The Supreme Court in several decisions have been explaining and
clarifying the nature of treason.

In the nature of things, the giving of aid and comfort can
only be accomplished by some kind of action. Its very nature
partakes of a deed or physical activity as opposed to a mental
operation. . (Cramer v. U.S., ante) This deed or physical
activity may be, and often is, in itself a criminal offense under
another penal statute or provision. Even so, when the deed
is charged as an element of treason it becomes identified with
the latter crime and can not be the subject of a separate punish-
ment, or used in combination with treason to increase the penal-
ty as Art. 48 of the Revised Penal Code provides. (People
v. Prieto, 45 0.G. p. 3329)

And again, specifying the elements of treason, that leaves no room
for other interpretations.

The essential elements of a given crime cannot be disinte-
grated in diffugient parts, each one to stand as a separate
ground to convict the accused of a different crime or criminal
offense. The elements constituting a given erime are integral
and inseparable parts of a whole. In the contemplation of
the law, they cannot be used for double or multiple purposes.
They can only be used for the sole purpose of showing the
commission of the crime of which they form part. The factual
complexity of the crime of treason does not endow it with
the functional ability of worm multiplication of amoyeba repro-
duction.  Otherwise, the accused will have to face as many
prosecutions and convictions as there are elements of the crime
of treason, in open violation of the constitutional prohibition
against double jeopardy. (People v. Labra, 46 0.G. supp. (1),
159.)

1t is clear from all the consistent dec:smns of the court that murders
and other d crimes, are i of treason, and can
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not be complexed, (see People v. Alibotod, 46 O.G. 1005; People
v. Vilo, 46 0.G. 2517; People v. Delgado, 46 0.G. 421 People
v. Suralta, 47 0.G. 4594; and People v. Navea, 47 O.G. Supp.
12, 252)

7. Contrary arg nts considered.—Some ar, may be
advanced to support the view that rebellion may be complexed with

other crimes. But their weaknesses are self-evident:

(1) Article on complex crime,
never conceived by framers
of Penal Code to apply to
common erimes.

A superficial reading of Art, 48 together with Art. 134 of the
Revised Penal Code may give the impression that it is easy to fere-
see therefrom that the complex crime of rebéllion with murder and
arson can, and does exist, by saying that the crime ceases to be
plain rebellion the moment excessive force or violence upon persons
or serious destruction of property result in the course of the rebel-
lion. This would be disregarding the implication of a public
armed uprising. This would do away also with the provisions of
Art. 135 of the Revised Pena) Cede in which the inherent factual
complexity of the crime of rebellion is said to involve “engaging
in war against the forces of the Government, destroying property
or committing scrious violence”. In effect, it would limit and re-
sirict the context of the law on rchellion as specifically provided
for in Arts, 134 and 135 of the Revised Penal Code.

Said reasoning would also disregard evident historica) facts in
that since its inception and through the many successive revisions
of the Spanish Penal Code down to this day, the article on com-
plex crimes which we had adopted in our old Penal Code and Re-
vised Penal Code, had never been made to apply to the cases of
rebellion and sedition. The Spanish Penal Codes as well as our
old Penal Code, had, instcad of applying the article on complex
crime and increase the penalty to the maximum of the gravest act
committed during a rebellion, had made a special provision that
said acts should only be penalized in accordance with the appro-
priate codal provision, which may not, therefore, be necessarily the
maximum thereof. Now under the more liberal intention and spirit
behind Act 292, followed in our Revised Penal Code, this special
provision was abrogated and the penalty for said concommittant
crimes, therefore, had been relegated to that of rebellion and sedi-
tion only. To make the punishment more severe by extending
thereto the provision on complex crimes would certainly go against
the spirit and purpose of said Act 292 and the Revised Penai Code.

It is clear that without lessening the magnitude of the offense,
our legislature had purposely converted the crime of rebellion in
all its forms of commission, into a non-capital offense. In so con-
sidering, and penalizing rebellion as a non-capital offense, even the
theory of absorption, does not apply. Rather, the imposition of
the penalty thevefor may fluctuate according as to how it may be
aggravated by other crimes resorted to in the commission of the
rehellion, but can never be made to exceed the maximum of prision
nayor provided for rebellion,

(2) The legislators’ sense
of proportion.

It may be maintained that the penalty for rebellion is very
much less than that of destructive arson, of homicide. murder or
kidnaping and that the legislature should be credited with a sense
of proportion in the sense that in defining rebellion and preseribing
a lower penalty, the legislators had in mind rebellion without the
attendance of other more serious punishable crimes. This would be
a grave mistake, for this is to lose sight of the fact, that the le-
gislators had merely followed the modern trend of penology. As
far back as the French Revolution, the crime of rebellion had been
penalized with death, The present trend 1s that being a pelitical
crime of lesser degree than treason, the motive of the participants
is the form taken into account and not the extent or result of
thefr acts. In rebellion the participants do not kidnap, kill. rob
and burn purely for personal motives and for the sake of perverse
kidnaping, killing, robbing and burring but only in furtherance of
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their common political objectives.

(3) “Force and intimidation” essential
to common crimes, is of lesser
degree than what is involved in
treason or rebellion or sedition.

It may be asserted also that the mere fact that a rebellion ne-
cessarily implies the use of arms and 'a public uprising does not
justify the assumption that it cannot be committed without kidnap-
ing, arson or murder. No such assumption or argument is intend-
ed herein because rebellion can be committed in so mary ways and
kidnapings, killings and burnings, among others, certainly, are com-
mitted in rebellion.

A “public uprising and taking arms” against the government,
“engaging in war” against government forces and “destroying pro-
perty or committing serious violence” in plain rebellion; and, rising
publicly and tumultously to attain by force, intimidation or
other illegal methods, any act of hate or revenge or the despoiling
of property for political or social! end in plain sedition, can never
justify any ion that kid killings, burni pillag-
ings and sackings must not occur in these crimes against public
order. It will be seen that the force and intimidation essential
to certain common crimes-is of much lesser degree than what is
involved in treason, rebellion and sedition.

In the case of rape with physical injuries (U.S. v. Andaya,
34 Phil. 690) it is said that the term “force and intimidation” if
used to excess therein such that injuries are sustained, it is con-
verted into a complex crime. True, but it does not follow that
when “serious violence,” indicated in the altogether different crime
of rebellion, is resorted to in excess, the rebellion becomes con-
verted into a .complex crime. How anything could exceed serious
violence is i i While force is not d
in the use of force and intimidation in the common crime of rape,
there can be ne more excessive violence than serious violence it-
self indicated in the political crime of rebellion.

(4) Direct assault without public uprising
should not be confused with rebellion,

It may be claimed that if direct assault under Art. 148 can
be complexed with other erimes as in the cases of Lojo (52 Phil.
390), Ginosolonge (23 Phil. 171), Baluyot (40 Phil. 385) and Mon-
tiel (9 Phil. 162), there is no reason for rebellion not to be equal-
ly complexed inasmuch as direct assault is committed in some ways
with the purposes enumerated in rebellion and sedition.

Direct assault, unlike rebellion and sedition, is committed only
without public uprising in any of the two ways. (Art. 148).
The first is the empl of force or intimidation for the attain-
ment of any of the purposes enumerated in rebellion and sedition.
Here, while the purpose to which it makes reference may be the
same, yet the means employed — and here is where direct assault
differs frcm rebellion — cannot go beyond the use of force or in-
timidation, as in certain other common erimes. Clearly, the article
does not indicate whatsoever that in the commission of direct as-
sault, the various means employed in the commission of the crimes
of rebellion and sedition can be resorted to. The second way of
committing direct assault is when one shall attack, employ force
or serionsly intimidate or resist persons or agents in authority
while officially performing their duties. Here there is no refer-
ence, much less similarity with rebellion and sedition. And it is
under this second instance that Lojo was held guilty for assault
with homicide; Girosolongo and Baluyot, for assault with murder;
uand, Montjel, for assault with lesiones graves. To underscore the
provision on direct assault and cite the above cases of complexed
cemmon crimes, is to emphasize only too well that rebellion and
sedition have to be considered in an entirely different manner so
as to avoid extreme confusion between the purpose of a crime and
the means employed in the commission thereof,

(5) I rebellion with attendant common
crimes, it is not the theory of
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absorption but of aggravation that %

applies.

The theory of absorption is not an exclusively fixed criterion
in determining the penalty. The rule on complex crimes may also
apply as well as the rule on aggravating circumstances, in certain
cases, In other cases, however, where several offenses may other-
wise be considered committed, the Code separately applies a dis-
tinet penalty as an indivisible crime. Take, for instance, robbery
with homicide (Art. 294 par. 1); or robbery with rape, robbery
with intentional mutilation, robbery with serious physical injuries
(Art, 294 par. 2); treason with all its modes of commission (Art.
114); piracy with murder, homicide, physical injuries or rape
(Arts. 122 and 123 par. 3); rebellion and sedition with all their
modes of commission (Arts. 134, 135 and 139) — just to cite a
few of them. The minimum or maximum of the penalty therein
specifically indicated may be imposed depending as to how said
special crimes are aggravated by the seriousness of the co-exi’sting
attendant acts.

(6) Analogy from treason ecases.

It has already been shown that the crime of treason is special-
ly penalized by a particular provision of the Code, and that there
is an overwhel number of d that Art. 48 on complex
crime does not apply thereto. The crime of rebellion is also spe-
cially penalized by a particular codal provision, and likewise should
not admit of the application of Art. 48 on complex crimes.

Attention may however be called to the unpublished treason
case of Labra (G.R. L-1240, May 12, 1949) and the case »f Dar-
romeda (47 O.G. 5082). But in neither of said cases were tke
accused actually held guilty of a complex crime,

(a) Clerical error in the Labra case. ining the deci-

a complex crime but because the treason committed by appellant
was ied” not only by hension of i but also
by several individual killings and also mass killings and slaughter.
So the death penalty imposed was not on the principle that trea-
son may be committed complexed with other crimes but, rather was
so imposed because it was accompanied or aggravated by others
deserving maximam runishment under the codal provision on trea-
son.

As it has been explained, treason is of a similar nature with
rebellion. If treason can not be complexed with its attendant
crimes, it goes without saying that rebellion can not be complexed
also. But treason is already a capital offense and there may be
no need for the government prosecutors to complex the crime to
make the punishment sting upon the culprit, while rebellion is a
non-capital offense. Are our prosecutors justified in converting re-
bellion into a capital offense by the simple expedient of complexing
it with the attendant crimes?

Multiple murders, kidnapings, arsons and robberfes attendant
in rebellion could not have been produced by a single act but rath-
er by a series of different acts at different times and by and
against different individuals in different places. Therefore, the
charges in these post-war rebellion cases could not come under
the purview of the first instance contemplated in Art. 48,

The informations in these rebellion cases invariably allege
that the attendant crimes perpetrated were the necessary means
for itti the reb hence, ingly coming under the
second instance.

The crime of rebellion, however, is already of factual complex-
ity and may be committed in many different ways already com-

sion in the case of Perfecto Labra, the opening statement of the
Supreme Court started by saying that Labra was declaved by the
trial court guilty of “treason aygrarated with murder” and wos
sentenced to death. After discussing the facts, the Court held:

“Wherefore the verdict of guilt must be affirmed. Arts.
48, 114 and 248 of the Revised Penal Code are applicabie to
the offense of treason with murder. However, for lack of
sufficient votes to impose the extreme penalty, the appellant

" ®Wwill be sentenced to life imprisonment.”

The insertion of Art., “48” was clearly an inadvertent clerical
error, for the verdict of guilt that was affirmed in this case is
not treason comvlexed with murder, but rather, treason aggravatel
with murder. In view of the definite stand of the Supreme Court
before and after this Labra case was decided, that treason cases
are incapable of being complexed with other crimes, the inelusion
of figures “48” in said decision becomes clearly incongruous and
unnecessary and can be attributed to no other than clerical mis-
take, Hence, this Labra case cznnot be considered as a correct
precedent,

\b)  Burrameda case -— not a compler crime.—The clerical er-
ror in the Labra case becomes more patent in the decision on the
Barrameda case, when the Solicitor General took the wrong cue
from the former and advocated for extreme penalty on the ground
that Barrameda was guilty of treason complexed with multiple mur-
der. Because it so happened that the Supreme Court meted out
the death penalty, it may now be claimed that the theory of com-
plex erime of treason with murder won the approval of the Court.
This would be confusing the reasoning for that of the penalty re-
commended. This is a case where the Court adnpted the Solicitor
General's recommendation but not his reasoning. Nowhere in the
decision of said case had the Court ever stated that it is a com-
plex crime. The penalty of death was imopsed not because it is
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hended in its eodal definition. According to Arts. 134 and 135,
the crime of rebellion is committed the instant persons rise publie-
ly and take arms against the Government for the purposes men-
tioned therein and in engaging, among others, in war against
the government forces, destroying property and committing serious
violence, Public armed uprising is, therefore, an essential part
cf the offense. It is natural that acts of violence, kidnaping, mur-
der, arson, and robbery would be committed in the course of the
rebellion., And as long as injuries and destructions are necessarily
connected with or committed in furtherance of the rebellious pur-
poses, which are political in nature, they are deemed to be a part
of the rebellion and cannot be considered as separate offense.
Therefore, under the second instance, such acts alleged could not
also be made to fall under the article on complex erime.

The cases wherein the article cn complex crimes was extend-
ed to rape with physical injuries, assault with homicide, resist-
ance to agents of persons in authority with murder, and attempt
against the authority with lesiones graves, which are all common
crimes, certainly cannot serve as analogy for the crime of rebel-
lion, which is of a political nature. Without the killings, burn-
ings, sackings and kidnapings during the course of a rebellion,
where would be the rebellion complained of? Hence, plain rebel-
lion does not cease to be such by the use, in furtherance thereof,
of attendant excessive force or violence resulting in serious in-
juries upon persons and destruction upon property.

In popular governments, where the influence of the passions
is strong, the struggles for power are violent, the fluctuations of
party are frequent, and the desire of suppressing opposition, or
of gratifying revenge under the forms of law and by the agency of
the courts, constant and active, (Ex Parte Bollman, 2 U.S. 599)
it is all the more important that this question be resolved not in
the light of present prejudices but in the interest of justtice for
all time.—¢

November 30, 1954



OPINIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF JUSTICE

OPINION NO. 55

(Opinion on the question as to whether or not a Clerk of Court
of F‘lrat Instance as ex-officio sheriff is entitled to an additional com-
7 to the 7 isions of blic Act No. 915.)

2nd Indorscment
January 30, 1954

KRespectfully returned to the Honorable, the Deputy Auditor
General, Manila.

The City Auditor of the City of Ozamis objects to the payment
of additional compensation to the Clerk of Court of the Court of
First Instance of Misamis Occidental as ex-officio sheriff of said
city pursuant to the provisions of Republic Act No. 915 upon the
following grounds: (1) that said law applies only to a city which
is at the same time the capital of the province; and (2) Section
76 of Republic Act No. 321, otherwise known as the Charter of
Ozamis City, makes the clerk of the municipal court as the sherifi
of the city.

Section 1 of Republic Act Neo. 915 provides as follows:

“Sec. 1. The clerk of the Court of First Instance of a
province shall be ez-officio sheriff not only of such provinece
but alse of any city, which before conversion to a city, formed
part of such province. As ex-officio sheriff of a city, such clerk
shall receive an addi ion of not ding one
thousand two hundred pesos. which shall be fixed by the city
council or municipal board and payable from city funds.”

This law repealed Commonwealth Act No. 629 which prescribed
that “the provincial sheriff of the provinces to which chartered
cities belong shall be ex officio the City Sheriff, with an addi-
tional compensation not exceeding one thousand pesos per annum to
be fixed by the respective city council, payable out of the city
funds.”  Construing this provision, this Office has repeatedly
held that the effect thereof is to repeal impliedly the provisions
of city charters cnacted prior to Commonwealth Act No. 629 which
made the clerk of the municipal court ex officio sheriff of the city
(Op., Sec. of Jus., No. 197, s. 1947). It was also pointed out in
the last cited opinion that said law applies to a city irrespective
of whether or not it is the capital of the province, there being no
provision in the law on which to base such a distinction.

The enactment of Republic Act No. 915 was apparently induced
by the fact that the clerks of court of first instance have assumed
the duties of the provincial sheriff in accordance with Section 64
of Executive Order No. 94, series of 1947. It is practically a re-
enaction of (,ommonwealth Act No. 629, excepting that instead of

idi; for addi i to the provincial sheriffs,
Repubhc Act No. 915 grants said benefits in favor of clerks of court
as ex officio provincial sheriffs.

This Office accordingly believes that the ruling laid down with
respect to the right of provincial sheriffs to additional compen-
sation under Commonwealth Act No. 629 applies equally (o clerks
of court as ex officio sheriffs
Act No. 915. It appearing that the Charter of Ozamns Cxty (Rep-
ublic Act No. 821) was approved prior to Republic Act No. 915,
the provision of the former making the clerk of the municipal
court city sheriff should be deemed repealed by Republic Act No. 915.

(Sgd) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice

OPINION NO. 68

(Retirement on account of ill-health of a temporary clerk who
served in the Government for forty-two years.)

5th Indorsement
March 22, 1954

Respectfully returned to the Honorable, the Auditor General,
Manila
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These papers refer to the application of Mr. Fedsrico S.
Romero for retirement under Com. Act No. 186, as amended by Re-
public Act No. 660. It appears that Mr. Romcro first entered the
government service on July 28, 1908, as a temporary clak in the
Court of First Instance of Laguna. On September 28, 1950, after
42 years of continuous service and on account of ill health, he
was retired with gratuity as Chief Supervising Auditor, General
Auditing Office, under the provision of Act No. 2589. Mr. Ro-
mero is still living.

Opinion is requested as to whether or not under the facts
described Mr. Romero is still eligible for vetirement under Com.
Act No. 186, as amended by Rep. Act No. 660.

The provisions of law applicable in this case is section 26 of
Republic Act No. 660, pertinent portion of which reads as follows:

“SEC. 26. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Act
to the contrary. any officer or employes whe died in the ser-
vice wi'hin three yeurs before scid Act went into effect and
who had rendered at least thirty-five years of service and who
is entitled to or who could have establishcd his right to the
retirement gratuity provided for in Act Numbered Twenty-five
hundred und eighty-nine, as omended, or to any other retire.
ment benefits from any pension fund created by law shall be
considered retired under the provisions of this Act if his wife,
or in her default, his other legal heirs shall so elect and
notify the System to the effect. Upon making such election,
the wife or legal heirs of the deccased officer or employee
shall hc paid the monthly annuity for five consecutive years
other kenefit as provided in said Act, in lieu of the
nt gratuity or retirement benefits to which the de-
ccased was entitled at the time of his death; and any portion
of sich gratuity or retirement benefits already paid to his
wife or other legal heirs shall be refunded to the System:
Provided, that contributions corresponding to his last five
years of service shall be deducted monthly from his life annuity. *

Nothuwi dis

o any provisions of this Act to the con-
trary, any ojficer or employee whose position was abolished
or who was separated from the service as a consequence of the
reorganization provided for in R.A. Numbered Four Hundrea
and Twenty-two may be retired under the provisions of this
Act if qualified. Provided: That any gratuity or relirement
benefit already received by him shall be refunded to the Sys-
tem: Provided, further, That contributions corresponding to
his last five years of service shall be paid as provided in
section twelve of this Act. This provision shall also apply
to any member of the judiciury who, prior to the approval of
this Act, was separated from the service after reaching seven-
ty years of age and rendering at least thirty years of ser-
vice and who is not entitled to retirement benefit under any
lew.” (Underscoring supplied). x x X x

The foregoing section constitutes as an exception to the general
policy of Republic Act No.-660 that it shall take effect upon its
approval, and that the benefits thereof shall be limited only to
those officers and employees, who are in the service at the time of
such approval. Thus, it expressly provides that only the following
officers and employees, though no longer in the service on June
16, 1951, may be entitled to the benefits therein provided: (1) those
whe died in the service within three years before Republic Act No.
660 took effect and who had rendered at least 35 years of service
and were entitled, or have established their rights, to retirement
gratuity under Act No. 2589 or to any other retirement benefit
from any pension fund created by law; (2) those whose positions
were abolished or were separated from the service os a result of the
reorganization made pursuant to Republic Act No. 422; and (3)
members of the judiciary who prior to the approval of Republic
Act No. 660 were scparated from the service after reaching the
age of 70 years and have at least rendered 30 years but were not
entitled to any retirement benefit under any law. Inferentially,
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therefore, any person who does not come under any of the 3 groups
above specified and who was not in the service of the government
at the time of Republic Act No. 600 took effect, cannot be retired
under its provisions.

Evidently, the resolution of the guery hinges on whether cr not
Mr. Romcro comes under any of the 2 groups of employees men-
tioned above.

It is claimed that while Mr. Romero is not, strictly speaking,
embraced within the letter of Sec. 26 above-quoted, nevertheless,
he comes within its spirit and reason, and should therefore be
entitled to its benefits to invoke ite provisions, such parties only
mzy act. (Taylor v. Michigan Public Utilities Commission, 186
N. W. 485).

It is an clementary principle of statutory construction that when
the i ion of the legi. is so0 from the face of
the statute that there can be no question as to its meaning there is
no room for construction, for there is no safer nor better settled
common interpretation than that when the language is clear and
unambigous it must be held to mean what it plainly expresses. (II
Sutherland 334). This rule may be deviated from only when such
intent of the law is rendered dubious by the context of the act, or if
the words are sufficiently flexible to admit of a construction which
will effectuate the legislative intention. In the instant case, a
serutiny of the whole law will yield nothing to render dubious the
clear intention of the legislature. Neither can it be said that the
term “who died in the service” is flexible enough tc include- one
who is much alive though sickly, nor can the phrase “whose position
vias aholished” include a man who has been retired with gratuity
but whose position is never abolished.

Besides, one who contends that a section of an act must not
be read literally must show either that some other section of the
sct expands or restricts its meaning, or that the section itself
is repugnant to the general purview of the act. (2 Sutherland 334-
835). In this case, no showing has been made that any particu-
lar section of Republic Act No. 660 tends to vary the import.of
the words used in section 26 thereof so as to justify a departure
from what its letters purport to convey. Moreover, being an ex-
ception it should be strictly construed, for although an exception
is id as a limitation only upon the matter which
precedes it, yet if it is clear from the legislative intent that it
is considered as a limitation to the entire act, it will operate to
restrict all provisions of the act. (2 Sutherland 474).

It has been argued at length that adherence to a strict and
literal construction of the provision in question will not only be
unjust and discriminatory but may also be productive of mischievous
result, but so the law is written. Sid ita lex scripta est. The
undersigned is not unmindful of the merits of the claimants conten-
tion that he should, as a matter of justice, be entitled to the benellts
of Republic Act No. 660, but when the law is so clear and unam-
bigucus, the remedy is ‘mot in interpretation but an amendment, for
to hold otherwise will, in effect, make an executive body superior
to the legislative branch of the government, and practically invest
it with law making power. (State v. Duggan, 6 A. 787).

In view of all the foregoing, the undersigned is of the op-
inion that Mr. Federico S. Romero may no longer be retired under
Republic Act No. 660.
(Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice

OPINION NO. 69 /

(Opinion on the question as to whether the Veterans Memoriai
Building may be constructed upon the USAFFE Park in Intramuros.)
March 10, 1954

The Chairman
National Planning Commission
P. 0. Box 117, Manila
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Sir:

This is in reply to your request for an opinion as to whether
the Veterans Memorial Building may be constructed upon the
USAFFE Park in Intramuros.

The USAFFE Park was established by Republic Act No. 579,
Section 3 of which provides that “the site of the former Cuartel
de Espafia is hereby declared a national park to be known as
USAFFE Park.”

The d Veterans M is intended to be
a permanent office building, four stories high to house the Philip-
pine Veterans Board, the Board on Pensions for Veterans, and
private accredited veterans’ or; in the Philippi It
will cost one million pesos, and will occupy, according to a represen-
tative of the Philippine Veterans Board, from one-fourth to one-
sixth of the entire area of the USAFFE Park.

A “park” is defined to be a pleasure ground in or near a city
set apart for the recreation of thie public; a piece of ground inclosed
for the purpose of pleasure, exercise or ; a
place for the resort of the public for recreation, air, and light; a
place open for every one. Kennedy v. City of Nevada, 281 S. W.
56. 58. It is a detached tract of ground generally of quite sizable
proportions devoted to purposes of ornamentation and recreation,
bhounded or approached by strects or highways of which it is not
part, and not devoted to purposes of travel, usually planted out with
trees and ornamented in a way pleasing to. the eyes as well as
furnished an opportunity for open-air recreation. Kupelian v.
Andrews, 185 N. W. 502, 503; 233 N. Y. 278.

The general rule is that where land is dedicated for the
ordinary use of park or common, the erection of buildings thereupon
not distinctively for park purposes is inconsistent with such use.
18 A.L.R. 1252 and cases cited thereunder, and 63 A.L.R. 845.
A park "need not and should not, be a mere field or open space,
but no objects, hewever worthy, snch as courthouses, which have
no connection with park purposes, should be permitted to encroach
upon it without legislative authority plainly conferred, even when
the dedication to park purposes is made by the public itself and the
strict construction of a private grant is not insisted upon.” Wil
liams v. Gallatin, 299 N.Y. 264; 18 A.L.R. 1238, 1241. Some
structures, which, according to the same decisions, have a natural
connection with park purposes ard are therefore permissible even
without special legislative sanction, are monuments and buildings
of architectural pretension which attract the eye ond divert the
mind of the visitor, floral and horticultural displays, zoological gar-
dens, playing grounds, and even restaurants and rest houses, and
many other common incidents of pleasure grounds which contribute
to the use and enjoyment of the park. The use of part of a park
as a public library (Spires v. Los Angeles, 150 Cal. 64), or as a
state capitol (Hartford v. Maslen, 76 Conn. 599), or as a museum
(Atty. Gen. v. Sunderland, L. R. 2 Ch. Div. [Eng.] 534), is to be
inconsistent with its use, as has been held.

But the erection upon a public park of a courthouse (McIntyre
v. El Paso County, 15 Colo. App. 78; McBride v. Rockwall, 19f
S.W. 926), a city hall (Church v. Portland, 18 Or. 73; Delly v.
Hayward, 192 Cal. 242), a schoolhouse «(Rowzee v. Plerce, 75
Miss. 846; Sharp v. Guthrie, 145 Pac. 764), a jail (Flaten v.
Moorehead, 51, Minn. 518), or a building for the police department
(Foster v. Buffalo, 64 How. Pr. 127), is a diversion of property
devoted to park purposes. In Slavich v. Hamilton, 257 Pac. 60,
the court allowed the construction of a veterans’ Memorial bhall
upon a public park, but would not allow the construction of a build-
ing to be used as an office building. Said the court:

“Under the well-settled principle of law generally applica-
ble, if the city were undertaking to establish in Adams Park a
city hall, fire engine station, hospital, or jail, endeavoring to
devote the property to the erection of municipal buildings or
offices for use in the transaction of public business, we would
have little hesitancy in saying that such purposes would be
entirely inconsistent with the use of property for park purposes.”

The reason for the rule is that parks are conducive to health,
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furnishing to the citizens of crowded cities a place where they may
breathe pure air, untzinted by smoke and obnoxious gases, so that
the erection of public buildings, like a courthouse, would be incon-
sistent with the dedication of land as park. MecIntyre v. El Paso
County, Com’rs., supra. Parks, especially in large cities, are highly
important.  They afford healthful and pleasant resorts in the
heated season, and are, in fact, the only places where a large class
of the community are able to go and enjoy the blessings and comfort
to shade and pure air; and any attempt on the part of public offi-
cials to appropriate them as a site for public buildings, in which
to conduct the economic affairs of a city, under any pretext what-
ever, would, as 1 view it, be a cruel effort to subvert a humane
scheme.” Church v. Portland, 18 or. 73.

Considering the reduced size of the USAFFE Park, the cons-
truction of an office building thereon of whatever nature, would
destroy its utility as a park.

For the foregoing reasons, the query is answered in the negative.
Legislative authority for the erection of the building on the USAFFE
Park must be secured.

Respectfully,
«Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice

OPINION NO. 70

(Opinion on the question as to whether or not the concluding
proviso of Section B-IV-10 (a) of Republic Act No. 816 regarding
the fees to be received by the chairman and members of the various
examining boards prevails over the provisions of Republic Acts
Nos. 465 and 564, in connection with the same fees.)

March 22, 1954
Mr. Felipe Ollada
Executive Chairman
Boards of Examiners
Bureau of Civil Service
Manila
Sixts

This is in reply to your letter requesting an opinion as to
whether or not the concluding proviso of Section B-1V-10 (a) of
Republic Act No. 816 regarding the fees to be received by the
Chairman and members of the various examining boards prevails
over the provisions of Republic Acts Nos. 465 and 564, in con-
nection with the same fees.

Republic Act No. 465, which is an Act to standardize the exa-
mination and registration fees charged by the examining boards,
provides as follows:

“SEC. 5. Each chairman and member of the Boards of
Examiners, whether a government employee or not, shall re-
ceive as a fee not ding tem pesos per capita
of the candidates examined. x x x.” (Underscoring supplied.)

And Republic Act No. 564, which amends the Reorganization
Law of 1932, (Act No. 4007), runs thus:

“x x x who shall receive ccmpensntion not to exceed ten
pesos per capita of the did: or without

It is averred that the above proviso of Rep. Act No. 816
(that no chairman or member of any board of examiners shall
receive a total compensation exceeding P9,000 per annum) is only
a rider and cannot prevail over the above-quoted provisions of
Republic Acts No. 465 and No. 564.

It cannot be denied that Rep. Act No. 816 is a General
Appropriation Law which merely appropriates or sets aside funds
for government expenditures while Rep. Acts Nos. 465 and 564 are
laws which specially deal with the examining boards. And it is
also true that this Office has held that ‘“Where a specific law
creates an office, and fixes the salary attaching thereto, it seems
plain that the mere failure to appropriate the necessary funds
therefor or the appropriation of a lesser or greater sum, cannot
have the effect of abolishing, or altering the compensation of, the
position created, unless expressly so provided.” (Op., Sec. of Just.
No. 154, S. 1950). It must be noted, however, that the fees
to be received by the chairman and members of the various boards
have not been fixed by Republic Acts No. 465 and 564, beyond stating
the ma.xlmnm not exceeding ten pesos per capita of the candidates

or i d without i Said Acts therefore
do not preclude the fixing of such compensation in a subsequent
law. Consequently, the proviso in the Appropriation Act cannot
be said to amend or do violence to, the provisions of these two Acts,
for as long as the fee fixed by the said Appropriation Act did not
exceed ten pesos per capita, they would not be infringed.

Besides, even granting, arguendo, that said proviso in the Ap-
propriation Act of 1952 in effect amends the corresponding provisions
of the two previous Republic Acts because it fixed a maximum of
nine thousand pesos as the greatest total compensation that might
be allowed the Board members, yet the intention of Congress to
effectuate such g change is very clear. The said Appropriation Act
does not stop at merely setting aside an item for the fees but goes
so far es to provide expressly that the amount of such fees may
in no case exceed P9,000 a year. And this intention to effectuate
the change has been rei in the Appropriation Act for the
current fiscal year, above referred to, when it restates such a pro-
viso, merely increasing the maximum amount to P12,000. Pursuant
to the principle enunciated in the oplmon above-quoted, said proviso
in the Appr Law must the p:
of the specific Acts, for, and as held in said opinion, an Appropriation
Law can have the effect of altering the compensation of positions
created by a specific law if it is expressly so provided in the Ap-
propriation Law.

The constitutionality of the proviso under consideration has
been assailed. But the constitutionality of a law must be presumed
and every reasonable doubt is usually resolved in favor of the vali-
dity of the enactment. (11 Am. Jur. 782.) It must also be borne
in mind that the power of declaring a law unconsmudonal is beyond
the province of this Office. Itis a y
to the courts.

Anent the argument that the reduction in fees should be applied
equally to all of the examining boards by reducing the rate
paid per capita of examiners and not by eliminating the total
amount paid to each examiner and that the compensation of exa-
miners should be proportionate to the volume of work done, suffice
it to say that such matter is not one for the Executive Department
to ider, but one properly addressed to the law-making body.

examination.” (See. 1)

On the other hand, the Appropriation Act for the fiscal year
1952-1958 (R.A. No. 816) sets aside a certain amount for the
necessary expenses of the boards of examiners and fixes ten

Attention has also been invited to the reason given by the
President for his disapproval of an item in House Bill No. 2903
(Approprietion Bill for fiscal year, 1952-1953) aimed at raising
the nlary of julhcea of the peace, to the effect that “unless

pesos for each candidate examined as the fee which the chai

and members of the various boards may receive, but with the
proviso that “no chairman or member of any board shall receive
from examination and other fees a total compensation of more
than P9,000 per annum, the provisions of existing law to the
contrary notwithstanding.” (See pp. 73-74, Item B-IV-10, R.A.
No. 816.) In this connection, Republic Act No. 908 (Appropriation
Act for the fiscal year 1953-1954) contains the same proviso except
that the maximum limit has been increased to $12,000. (Item B-3-19
(a), p. 84, R.A. 906).
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P ly so p d, an app: law may not alter the
rates of salary specifically fixed in a special law.” This is beside
the point because, as already discussed, the proviso in question is
in itself an express provision regarding the change of fee — if
change there has been. Furthermore, such an objection was raised
by the President in the exercise of his veto power and therefore
was sufficient to put down the item objected, which is not so with
the present case where the proviso is already a part of a law

passed and app: which the Executive Department
is bound to uphold.

585



Premises considered, and in view of the constitutional mandate
that no money shall be paid out of the Treasury except in pursuance
of an appropriation made by law [Art. VI, See. 23 (2), Const. of
the Phils.], the undersigned is of the opinion that the provision
of the Appropriation Act for the current fiscal year regarding the
fees of the chairman and members of the various examining boards
must be followed.

Respectfully,

(Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Becretary of Justice

OPINION NO. 72
(Opinion on compulsory retirement.)

2nd Indorsement
March 22, 1954

Respectfully returned thru the Secretary of National Defense,
to the Chief of Staff, Camp Murphy, Quezon City.

Opinion is requested on the following queries:

1. In determining whether an individual has reached compul-
sory retirement category urder Section 1(b) of Republic' Act No.
340, must his service as a civilian Government official be counted,
assuming that such service is creditable under the conditions speci.
fied in Section 9(e) of the same law, as amended?

2. If the answer to 1 above be in the affirmative; may the
individual waive or renounce all rights and benefits available to
him under the said Section 9(e) in order to continue in the active
service until such time as the period of his active military service
shall make his retirement compulsory?

8. Are the benefits of Republic Act No. 861 available to
persons who had already been retired or otherwise separated from
the active military service prior to the effectivity of the said Act?

Under Section 1(b) of Republic Act No. 340, retirement, npén

service of the Government the much-needed rest and reward during
their declining years. To allow therefore a waiver, as above con-
templated, will not only nullify such purpose of the law but also,
in effect, grant every officer and enlisted man the right to exercise
the power to decide for themselves their retention in the service
beyond the period fixed by law, which power is granted only to
the President of the Philippines.

As to the 3rd query, it is said that, an amendment becomes
a part of the original statute if it had always been contained
therein and as if the law had been as amended as of the time it
was passed, unless such amendment involves the abrogation of con-
tractural relations between the state and others. (59 C.J. 1096,
citing Commonwealth v. Hawes, 169 N.E. 806; Ex-Parte Carillo,
158 P. 800; State v. Moon, 100 S.E. 614). “The legal effect of
the d is the of the old statute with the
the amendment incorporated in it and the amendment from its adop-
tion has the same effect as if it had been a part of the statute
when first enacted. (Nichols v. Board, 24 SE 71, cited in State
v. Moon, 100 SE 614). *“As a rule of construction, a statute
amended is to be construed in the same sense exactly as if it
had read from the beginning as it does as amended.” (Farrel v.
State 24 A. 725; Cain v. Allen, 79 NE 201; Myers v. Fortunato,
116 A. 623). Thus, in Opinion No. 226, series of 1953, involving
the right of the heirs of the late Lt. Col. Villalchos to continue
receiving pension, i i its inati long before the
law was amended on June 21, 1952, this Department ruled that
Section 3 of Republic Act No. 240, as amended by Republic Act
No. 803, should be interpreted as if it had been in that amended form
when first enacted on July 26, 1946, so that those whose right
to pension had already ceased prior to the amendment might
be entitled to the benefits thereof.

It is believed that the rule of construction laid down in the
foregning cases, more particularly in Opinion No. 226, s. 1958,
cf the Secretary of Justice, is equzlly applicable to the enterpre-
tation of Republic Act No. 861, insofar as it affects officers and
enlisted nmen of the Arnied Forces who were already retired at the
time said Act was aporoved un June 16, 1953. Accordingly, dnd

idering that no abrogation of any contractual obligation of the

completion of at least 30 years of y active
service, is compulsory upon an officer or enlisted man of the
Armed Forces, unless his continued service heyond that period is
considered necessary by the President of the Philippines for the
good of the service. In determining the length of service of an
officer or enlisted man for purposes of either his optional or com-
pulsory retirement, Section 9(e) of Republic Act No. 340, as
amended by Republic Act No. 861, expressly provides that his
period of service as a civilian official or employee in the Government
shall be credited. The only limitations to the giving of such credit
specified by said subsection (e) are that the officer or enlisted man
concerned must have rendered at least 10 years of active military
service in the Armed Forces of the Philippines, and that in case
his civilian service is longer than the period of his military service,
such service as a civilian shall be credited only as equal to his
military service.  Accordingly, query No. 1 is answered in the
affirmative, subject to the proviso specified in said subsection (e).

As to whether an officer or enlisted man may waive or re-
nounce all rights and benefits provided for in Section 9(e) of
Republic Act No. 340, as amended by Republic Act No. 861,
in order to continue in the active service until such time as the
period of his military service shall have reached at least 30 years,
the undersigned is of the opinion that he may not, because such

T shall be lsory upon 1 of at least 80 years
of service to the Government. Section 1 (b) in conjunction with
Section 9(e) of Republic Act No. 840, as amended, declares that
upon the completion of at least 30 years of satisfactory service, in-
cluding that as a civilian official or employee in the Government,
vetirement shall be compulsory upon an officer or enlisted man of
the Armed Forces, unless his continued stay is deemed necessary
by the President, for the good of the service. Doubtless, the
purpose of such a provision is to keep the Armed Forces well
staffed all the time with young officers and enlisted men and thus
maintain vitality in the military bloodstream and at the same time
to give those who have spent the best years of their lives in the
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state is involved, Republic Act Nc. 861 should be interpreled as if
the same had always been a part of Section 9 of Republic Act No.
840, which said Act 861 amended.

Moreover, no valid reason can be perceived why retired officers
and enlisted men who are by statute declared to be a part of the
Army, who may wear its uniform and are entitled to the same
privileges as officers and enlisted men in the active service, whose
names shall be upon its register. are subject to the rules and articles
of war and may be tried by military court martial (section 4, 5, 6,
Rep. Act No. 340), should not be entitled to the benefits of Republic
Act No. 861, when the great purpose of the Army Retirement Act
is to extend the most benefits within the means of the legislature
to thosc who have dedicated the best years of their lives to the
service of the Government. (Explanatory note, House Bill No. 2284
which latter became Republic Act No. 861.)

In view of all the foregoing and considerinz that it is a
well-settled principle that pension statutes should be liberally
construed in favor of the grantees, the undersigned is of the
wpinion that the 3rd query should be answered in the affirmative.

(8gd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justico

OPINION NO. 76

(Rewnstatement of a government employee who was found guilty
of gross misconduct by the Bureau of Civil Service.)

8rd Indorsement
March 27, 1954

Respectfully returned to the Honorable, the Executive See-
retary, Manila.

Mr. Quirico Camus, Administrative Officer of the Bureau
of Public Works, was charged administratively for his partici-
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pation in certain anomalies in the importation of asphalt by
Florencio Reyes and Co. He was investigated by the Department
of Public Works and Communications and the result of said in-
vestigaticn was forwarded to the Bureau of Civil Service on
October 29, 1952.

Mr. Camus, jointly with Mr. Florencio Reyes, was also pro-
secuted criminally in the Court of First Instance of Manila for
violation of Section 18 of the Import Control Law, Republic Act
No. 650, and the rules and regul.nmns issued thereunder. Pend-
ing the terminati of the eri di the Bureau of
Civil Service rendered its decision in the administrative case
on December 12, 1952, finding Mr. Camus guilty of gross miscon-
duct, for which he was suspended for two months without pay,
demoted to a lower position, with a warning that his commission
of another offense will be dealt with more drastically. Although
Mr. Camus was under suspension since September 13, 1952, and
the decision of the Commissioner of Civil Service stated that his
rreventive suspension ghall be taken into account in the computation
of his two months’ suspension, he was not reinstated upon the
rendition of said decision in view of the pendency of the criminal
case against him.

In an order dated June 1, 1953, the Court of First Instance
of Manila dismissed provisionally the criminal case against Mr.
Camus and his co-zccused upon the ground, principally, that the
law under which he was being prosecuted would cease to be effec-
tive after June 30, 1953. Upon the provisional dismissal of the
criminal case, Mr. Camus requested that his suspension be lifted,
without prejudice to his request for a reconsideration of the de-
cision of the Commissioner of Civil Service. Mr. Camus was forth-
with reinstated to the position of Chief of Water Rights Division,
which is a lower position than that held by him as Chief of the
Administrative Division.

Subsequently, Mr. Camus petitioned for reinstatement to his
former position as Chief of the Administrative Division of the Bu-
reau of Public Works, 1In a 1st indorsement dated December
10, 1958, the then Secretary of Public Works tnd Communicttions
expressed opposition to said request but nevertheless forwarded
the case to the Office of the President “for final decision.”
The view was expressed that to favorably consider the position
for reinstatement would be to set at naught civil service rales
and regulations and would adversely affect the morale and dis-
cipline of the employees of the Bureau of Public Works.

In a 3rd indorsement dated January 15, 1954, however, the
Commissioner of Civil Service expressed the opinion that, inas-
much as Mr. Camus does not appear to have acted in bad faith
and that he had already satisfiad the decision in the adminis-
trative case against him regarding the two months suspension
without pay and demotion to a lower position for over six months,
which length of time makes him eligible for promotion under Sec.
tion 11 of Executive Order No. 94, series of 1947, “Mr. Camus
may be returned to his former position at the discretion of
the appointing officer, if circumstances warrant, such as final
disposition of the court case against him which has been provi-
sionally dismissed. ”

As pointed out by the Commissioner of Civil Service, the
return of Mr. Camus to his former position as Administrative Of-
ficer of the Bureau of Public Works is discretionary with the
appointing officer.  Should it be decided, in the exercise of the
said discretion, tc reinstate him, the circumstance that the eri-
minal case filed against him was merely provisionally dismissed
is no, obstacle to the taking of such action. If at all, the cri-
minal case against Mr. Camus for violation of Republic Act No.
650 may only be revived by the enactment of legislation to that effect.
In the event that this possibility would happen, his reinstatement
to his former position would not constitute a bar to Mr. Camus be-
ing charge criminally for the same offense nor to the taking of
disciplinary action against him as circumstances "mght warrant.
The fact that he had been previ y charged i ively and
found guilty, and the possibility that he may again be charged cri-
minally for the same acts which led to the administrative proceed-
ings, are factors to consider in his promotion but they do not, by
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t. , prevent his to the former or even higher
position at the discretion of the appeinting power.
‘ (Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice
OPINION NO. 79

(Opinion on the question as to whether the Metropolitan Water
District is exempted from paying the compensating tax on liquid
chlorine imported by it.)

3rd Indorsement
March 24, 1954

Respectfully returned to the Honorable, the Executive See-
retary, Office of the President, Malacafiang, Manila.

This is in connection with the request of the Metropolitan Water

“District for exemption from the payment of the compensating tax

on liquid chlorine imported by it.

It appears that this Office, in Opinion No. 285, series 1951,
held that said District, being a corporation performing a non-govern-
mental function and doing business for gain, is within the purview
of Republic Act No. 104 which requires corporations owned or
controlled by the government to pay the same taxes and other charges
as are imposed upon individuals or corporations cngaged in any
taxable business. (This Republic Act, it has also been held by this
Office, was intended to apply to corporations or agencies owned or
controlled by the Government engaged m business or industry for
profit in ition with private . Op. Nos. 67 and 153,
5. 1948 and No. 16, s. 1950, Sec. of Jus.)

The Metropolitan Water District, in support of its request
for ion (and forar ideration of the above-
cited opinion) states:

“This opinion runs counter with the spirit and intent
for which the Metropolitan Water District is created. It
may be stated, in this connection, that prior to the creation
of the Metropolitan Water District, Manila’s water supply
was administered by the City authorities, the City Enginser‘
being in. charge of the maintenance and voperation of the
system. The passage of Act No. 2832 in 1919 created the
Metropolitan Water District, which was charged with the

ibility of ing and the Manila water
supply, a function formerly done by the city government.
It is clear, theref that the M li Water District is
a corporation created primarily for governmental service,
as it is charged with the function of furnishing adequate
water supply and sewerage system to the metropolitan area.
Furthermore, the District is not engaged in business for profit
and any surplus derived is incidental only to its operation.
Such surplus enables the District to repay ite bonded debts
and to reinvest any balance therefrom in the form of im-
provements and extension of its system. Any new tax or
imposition made on materials needed by the District, especially
in imported products required for its purification process,
will either raise the cost of its operation and maintenance,
thereby adversely affecting its financial position, or delay its
complete rehabilitation or the expansion of its water services
to the public.” (8rd par., 1st Ind. of M.W.D., dated March
10, 1952.)

That Office requests comment on the above-quoted statements
of the Manager of the Metropolitan Water District.

The fact that before the creation of the Metropolitan Water
District, Manila’'s water supply was administered by the City
government thru the city engineer does not in any way prove
that the function is a governmental one. For, as stated in the
opmxon above-referred to, “the distribution of water to the m.

of a ipal for their d ic and
uses is generally considered to be undertaken by a municipality
in its private or proprietary capacity,” in the exercise of which
the “municipal corporation is governed by substantially the same
rules that govern a private individual or ‘corporation.”  Thus,
even if it were the city government itself which engages in the
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activity now being handled by the MW, the government would ne-
vertheless be engaging in a private or proprietary — and not &
governmental — activity.

Nor may the fact that the MWD invests the surplus denved
from its ion in the i and the it
system and 1n the payment of nts irdebtedness change the chamur
of its enterprise. On the contrary, it is an indication that said
corpors.twn is actunlly deriving profits from its business, thus

the li of blic Act No. 104,

As to the averment that any new tax imposed on said Cor-
poration would raise the cost of its operation and maintenznce or
delay its 1 ion or the ion of its services,
suffice it to restabe the objectives behind the passage of Republic
Act No. 104, as set forth in the opinion under consideration. Said
Act was passed in order “to require those government-owned or con-
trolled corporations to reduce their expenditures; to recover the
taxes that are lost to the Government as a result of t}ns tax ir-
munity in favor of these g .and,
thirdly, in order to place them on an equal footmg, on a level thh

TForeign Service Aet of the United States from which Republic
Act No. 708 was adopted, salary increases within the range es-
tablished for the class to which a Foreign Service officer has been
appointed are not required to be submitted to the Senate for con-
firmation, but are merely fixed by the Secretary of State (Sec. 33,
Act of May 24, 1924; 46 Stat. 1215). There is no similar provision
to be found in Republic Act No. 708, but neither is there any which
requires in-grade promotions to be accomplished in the same man-
ner as promotions to a higher zlass,

In brief, the first and second questions should be, and they are,
answered in the negative. On the third question, it is believed that
the qualification or description of the appointments in question as
ad interim was not correct and their submission to the Commission
on Appointments for confirmation was not required by law, and un-
necessary. It follows that the failure of the Commission on Ap-
pomtments to act upon them did not operate as legal and effective

of smd i My opinion is that for all legal
purposes the under deration were valid and ef-
fective as nf the dates they were issued, barring refusal or failure
of the to qualify.

private by giving to g

The undersigned does not, therefore, see any reason for
disturbing the ruling of this Office, 28 expressed in Opinion No.
285, series of 1951.

(8gd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice

OPINION NO. 149

(On the questions as to: (1) Whether or not an appointment
of a Foreign Affairs Officer to the same class without increase
n ion but merely involving a lidation of basic and
excess salary should be submitted to the Commission on Appoint-
ments for confirmation; (2) Whether or mot an in-grade promo-
tional appointment of a Foreign Affairs Officer within the same
class also be submitted for confirmation; and (3) Whether a For-
eign Affairs Officer whose appointment to a higher grade of salary
within the same class is by-passed by the Commlssum on Appoint-
ments reverts to his'last i or is P
from the service.)

June 22, 1954
The Honorable
The Acting Secretary of Foreign Affairs
Manila
Sir:

Respectfully,

(Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary f Justice

OPINION NO. 155

A

(On the question as to whether the application of Chua Man
to operate a cabaret bought from Mr. Ding which had ceased to
operate after liberation comes within the exception of the Cabinet
resolution of December 28, 1949 which allows cabarets and other
amusement places, within the zones specified in said Executive Order
No. 319, s. 1941, and in operation on or before January 1, 1941
“to continue operation in their present locations until further o-ders.”)

5th Indorscinent
June 28, 1954

Respectfully returned to the Honorable, the Executive Sccretary,
Office of the President, Malacaiiang, Manila.

This is with reference to the request of Mr. Chua Man for
permission to operate a cabaret in Progreso Street, San Juan, Rizal,
less than 1000 lineal meters from the Roosevelt Memorial High
School, the Instituto de Mujeres, the San Juan Elementary School,
and the municipal building, in violation of Executive Order No.
819, s. 1941,

It appears that before the war and before the promulgation

This is a reply to your request for opinion on the
questions:

“(1) Whether or not an appointment of a Foreign Affairs
Officer to the same class without increase in ion but

of the afe Order, Mr. Bell S. Ding operated a ca-
baret, called the New Mabuhay Cabaret on the above-mentioned
site. This cabaret continued in operation during the occupation but
was closed thereafter. On August 15, 1952, Mr. Chua Man filed

merely involving a consolidation of basic and excess salary should

an li with the Mayor of San Juan, Rizal, for a permit to

be sub d to the C ission on A for confirmation; build and operate a cabaret on the same site of the New Mabuhay
’  Cabaret. On August 18, 1952, Mr. Bell S. Ding had executed a
“(2) Whether or not an in-grade deed tra to said Chua Man, for a consideration of one

of a Foreign Affairs Officer within the same class also e sub-
mitted for confirmation; and

“(3 Whether a Foreign Affairs Officer whose appointment
to a higher grade of salary within the same class is by- passed by
the Commission on Appointments reverts to his Jast

peso, the “New Mabuhay Cabaret together with all the will that
makes its name”, and on September 15, 1952, the Mayor granted
Chua Man the permit applied for, on the strength of which Chua
Man constructed a building for a cabaret on the site indicated. In
this connection our attention is invited to a resolution of the Ca-

cr is automatically separated from the service.”

Sec. 3, Part A, Title IV of Republic Act No. 708 provides that
“all promotions of Foreign Affairs Officers shall be made by the
President, with the consent of the Commission on Appointments, by
appointment to a higher class x x x”. By inference, it is not ne-
cessary under this p: jon to submit intments in the same
class to the Commission on Appointments for confirmation, The
appointment in question did not involve promotions to a higher
class but only in compensation, and so did not come within the
requirement of the aforequoted provision of Republic Act No. 708.

This conclusion is strenghtened by the fact that under the
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Linet of D ber 28, 1949, which allows cabarets and other amuse-
ment places, established within the zones specified in said Executive
Order No. 819, s. 1941, and in operation on or before Jénuary 1,
1941, “to continue operating in their present locations unti] fur-
ther orders; x x x.”

Opinion is requested as to whether Chua Man’s application
comes within the exception of the above-mentioned Cabinet reso-
lution,

The Cabinet resolution referred to was intended to protect the
interests of cabaret owners who had made investments in established
and going concerns, Mr. Chua Man did not have any interest in the

(Continued on page 543)
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DECISION'. OF THE UNITED

| &
(Advance Reports — 1953 Term)

VICTOR EMANUEL PEREIRA AND EUGENE H. BRADING,
PETITIONERS,

Y
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Witnesses § 42 — competency of wife to testify against husband In
criminal case — after divorce.

1. Divorca removes any bar of incompetency of a wife to testi-
fy in a criminal prosecution against her husbhand.

Evidence § 704 — marital communications — effect of divorce.

2. Divorce does not terminate the privilege for confidential
marital communications.

Evidence § 704 — what i
cations.

8. The privilege of ccnfidential communications between hus-
band and wife is i licable to bar the i of a wife in a eri-
minal prosecution against her husband, where her testimony involves
primarily statements made in the presence of third persons, acts
of the husband which do not amount to communications, trips
taken with third persons, and her own acts, where much of her

marital

STATES SUPREME COURT

of the mail fraud statute (18 USC § 1341), where he does an act
with knowledge that the use of the mails will follow in the ordinary
ccurse of business, or where such use can reasonably be foreseenm,
even though not actually intended.

Criminal Law § 7 — mail fraud statute — National Stolen Property
Act — separate offenses.

11. Violations of the mail fraud statute (18 USC § 1341) and
the National Stolen Property Act (18 USC § 2314) constitute two
separate offenses, and a defendant may be convicted of both even
though the charges arise from a single act or series of acts, so
long as each requires proof of a fact not essential to the other.

Recelving or Transporiing Stolen Property § 1 — National Stolen
Property Act — elements of offense.

12. The National Stolen Property Act (18 USC § 2314) requires
(1) knowledge that certain property has been stolen or obtained
by fraud, and (2) transporting it or causing it to be transported
in interstate commerce. The transporting charge does not require
proof that any specific means of transporting were used, or that
the acts were done pursuant to a scheme to defraud.

ing or T Stolen Property § 1 — collection of check

testimony relates te matters prior to the i and
where any residuum which may have been intended to be confi-
dential is so slight as to be immaterial. -

drawn on an out-of-state bank.

13. When a defrauder delivers a check, drawn by his victim on
an out-of-stats bank to a domestic bank for collection, he *‘causes”

Evidence § 704 _ marital

4. Although marital communications are presamed to be cop-
fidential, that p ion may be by proof of facts
showing that they were not intended to be private.

Evidence § 704 — marital communications — presence of third
person — to convey to third person,

5. The presumption of privacy of marital communications is
negatived by the presence of a third person or by the intention
that the information conveyed be transmitted to a third person.
Evi § 698 — ions — scope of

6. A privilege of confidential communications, generally, ex-
tends only to utterances, and not acts.

Evidence §§ 990, 991.3 — sufficiency — mail fraud — transporting
stolen property interstate.

7. Convictions of violating the mail fraud statute (18 USC
§ 1341) and the National Stolen Property Act (18 USC §2314) are
not subject to attack on the ground that there was no evidence of
any mailing cor transporting stolen property interstate, where it
is established that the two defendants planned to defraud a woman,
that collecting the proceeds of a check drawn by her on an out-of-
state bank was an essential part of that scheme, and there was
substantial evidence to show that the check, which was delivered
Ly one of the defendants to a bank for collection. was mailed by
that bank to the out-of-state bank, in the ordinary course of business.

Post Office § 48; Receiving or Transporting Stolen Property § 1 —
mail fraud — actua! mailing or transportation not ne-
cessary.

8. To constitute a violation of the mail fraud statute (18 USC
§ 1341) or the National Stolen Property Act (18 USC § 2314), it
18 not necessary to show that accused actually mailed or transported
anything himself; under 18 USC § 2(b) it is sufficient if he caused
it to be done.
Post Office § 48 — mail fraud — elements of offense.

9. The elements of the offense of mail fraud under 18 USC
§ 1341 are (1) a scheme to defraud, and (2) the mailing of a letter,
cte., for the purpose of executing the scheme. It is not necessary
that the scheme contemplate the use of the mails as an essential
element.
Post Office § 48 — mail fraud — causing the mails to be used.

10. A person “causes’ the mails to be used within the meaming

November 30, 1954

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

it to be transp It is common knowledge
that such checks must be sent to the drawee bank for collection,
and it follows that he intends the domestic bank to send the check
across state lines.

Trial § 288 — Instructions to jury — aiding and abetting.

Aepenidl

14. In a against two fer violations of
the mail fraud statute (18 USC § 1341) and the National Stolen
Property Act (18 USC § 2314), committed by one of the defendants,
by causing a check drawn by the defrauded person upon an out-of-
state bank to be transported to the drawee bank, the jury is, as
1o the other defendant, properly charged on the theory that one
who aids or abets the commission of an act is as responsible for
that act as if he had directly committed the act himself, where
there is ample evidence of the defendants’ collaboration and close
co-operation in the fraud from which the jury could conclude that
the second defendant aided and abetted the first in the commis-
sion of the specific acts charged.

Criminal Law § 36 — double jeopardy — substantive offense and
conspiracy as separate offenses.

15. The commission of a substantive offense and a conspiracy
to commit it are separate and distinct crimes, and a plea of double
jeopardy is no defense to 2 conviction for both. Only 1f the substan-
tive offense and the conspiracy are identical does a conviction for
both constitute double jeopardy.

Criminal Law § 36 — double jeojardy — substantive offense and
conspiracy as different offenses.

16. The doctrine of double jeopardy does not preclude the con-
viction of two defendants on charges of violating, the one as a
principal, and the other as an abettor, the mail fraud statute (18
TUSC § 1841) and the National Stolen Property Act (18 USC § 2314),
and on charges of conspiracy to commit the substantive offenses,
since the substantive offenses do not require more than one person
for their commission and the conviction on the substantive grounds,
of both the principal and the abettor, do not depend on any agreement.

Criminal Law § 16 — aiding and abetting.

17. Aiding, abetting, and counseling are not terms which pre.
suppose the existence of an agreament, but have a broader applica-
tion, making the defendant a principal when he consciously shares in
a criminal act, regardless of the existence of a conspiracy.

539



Conspiracy § 9.5, 20 — to violate mail frand statute or National
Stolen Property Act.

18. To constitute a conspiracy to violate the mail fraud statute
(18 USC § 1341) or the National Stolen Property Act (18 USC
§ 2314), it is not necessary that an agreement to use the mails or
transport stolen property exists from the inception of the schemz to
defraud; it is sufficient if there was such an agreement at any time.

Trial § 157 — question for jury — use of mails for perpetration
of fraud.

19. Where two defendants were closely associated in a scheme
to defraud, it is not improper to allew the jury to determine from the
circumstances whether one of the defendants shared the other’s
knowledge that a check obtained by the latter from their victim was
drawn on an out-of-state bank and zgreed with him on the use
cf the mails as the only appropriate means of collecting the money.

Argued October 20, 1953. Decided February 1, 1954.

ON WRIT of Certiorari to thc Umted States Court af Appeals for
the Fifth Circuit to review a affirming con-
viction in the District Court for the Western District of Texas
of violating the mail fraud statute and the National Stolen Property
Act, and of a conspiracy to commit these offenses. Affirmed.

See same case below, 202 F2d 830

DECISION
WARREN, C.J.:

The petitioners, Pereira and Brading, were convicted in the
District Court for the Western District of Texas under three counts
of an indictment charging violation of the mail fraud statute, 18
TUSC (Supp V) § 1341, violation of the National Stolen Property Act,
18 USC (Supp V) § 2314, and a conspiracy to commit the aforesaid
substantive offenses, 18 USC (Supp_ V) § 871. The Court of Appeals
for the Fifth Circuit affirmed. 202 F2d 830. This Court granted
certiorari to consider questions which are importani to the proper
administration of criminal justice in the federal courts. 845 US
990, 97 L ed 1399, 73 C Ct 1134,

On April 19, 1951, Mrs. Gertrude Joyce, a wealthy widow, fifty-
six years old, and her young half-sister, Miss Katherine Joyner,
were accosted by the petitioner Brading as they were about to enter
a hotel in El Paso, Texas. Mrs. Joyce and her sister had just arrived
from their home in Roswell, New Mexico, and were preparing to
register at the hotel. Brading identified himself, assisted them in
parking their car, and invited them into the hotel bar to meet a
friend of his. They aceepted. The friend was petitioner Pereira,
thirty-three years of age. After a few drinks, the men suggested
that they all go to Juarez for dinner. The women accepted, and
after dinner visited some night clubs with the petitioners. Pereira
devoted himself to Mrs. Joyce, telling her that their meeting was
an “epoch” in his life. He mentioned that he was getting a divorce.
This same performance was repcated the following night. When
Pereira said that he would like to return to Roswell with the women,
Mrs. Joyce invited the two men to be her house guests, and they
uccepted.  Pereira commenced to make love to Mrs. Joyce, and
she responded to his attentions. On May 8, Percira exhibited a
telegram to Mrs. Joyce, in the presence of Brading and Miss Joyner,
stating that his divorce would be granted on May 27, but that he
would not receive his share of the property settlement, some $48,000,
for a month.

Brading represented himself as a prosperous oil man, dealing
in leases, and Pereira as the owner and operator of several profiteble
hotels. Brading then told Mrs. Joyce that Pereira was about to
lose an opportunity to share in the profits of some excellent oil
leases because of the delay in the divorce property settlement, and
persuaded her to lend Pereira $§5,000.

Pereira suggested that he and Mrs. Joyce take a trip together
to “become better acquainted.” He borrowed $1,000 from her to fi-
nance the trip. Brading joined them at Wichita Falls, and the three
of them continued the trip together as far as Dallas. Pereira dis-
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cussed his purported hotel business ir Denver during this part of
the trip. He stated that he was giving two hotels to his divorced
wife, but intended to reenter the hotel business in the fall. In
the meantime, he was going to “play a little 0il” with Brading. In
Hot Springs, Arkansas, Pereira proposed marriage and was accepted.
Brading d on the scene, ing great joy at the impend-
ing marriage. Pereira then told Brading, in the presence of Mrs.
Joyce, that he would have to witkdraw from further oil deals and
get a hotel to assure himself of a steady income.

Pereira and Mrs. Joyce were married May 25, 1951, in Kansas
City, Missouri. While there, Pereira persuaded Mrs. Joyce to pro-
cure funds to enable him to an ar to
a Cadillac through a friend. She secured a check for $6,956.55
from her Los Angeles broker, and drawn on a California bank, which
she endorsed over to Pereira. The price of the car was $4,750, and
she instructed Pereira to return the balance of the proceeds of the
chesk to her. He kept the change.

From that time on, Pereira and Brading, in the presence of
Mrs. Joyce, discussed a hotel which by words and conduct they re-
presented that Pereira was to buy in Greenville, Texas. They took
Mrs. Joyce — by this time Mrs. Pereira — to see it, and exhibited
an option for its purchase for $78,000 through a supposed broker,
“E. J. Wilson.” Pereira asked his then wife if she would join him
in the hotel venture and advance $35,000 toward the purchase price
of $78,000. She agreed. It was then agreed, between her and
Pereira, that she would sell some securities that she possessed in
Los Angeles, and bank the money in 2 bank of his choosing in EIl
Paso. On June 15, she received the check for $35,000 on the Citizens
National Bank of Los Angeles from her brokers in Los Angeles, and
gave it to Pereira, who endorsed it for collection to the State National
Bank of El Paso. The check cleared, and on June 18, a cashier’s
check for $35,000 was drawn in favor of Pereira.

At five o’clock in the morning of June 19, Pereira and Brading,
after telling their victim that they were driving the Cadillac to
a neigbboring town to sign some oil leases, left her at home in Ros-
well, New Mexico, promising to return by noon. Instead Pereira
picked up the check for $35,000 at the El Paso Bank, cashed it there,
and with Brading left with the money and the Cadillac.

That was the last Mrs.
her money, until the trial some seven months later.
Pereira on November 16, 1951.

Joyce saw of either petitioner, or of
She divorced

The record clearly shows that Brading was not an oil man; that
Pereira was not a hotel owner; that there was no divorce or
property settlement pending in De2nver; that Percira arranged to
have the telegram concerning the divorce sent to him by a friend in
Denver; that there were no oil leases; that the hotel deal was wholly
fictitious; and that “E. J. Wilson” was the petitioner Brading.
The only true statements which the petitioners made concerned
the purchase of the Cadillac, and they took that with them. Pe-
reira and Brading contrived all of the papers used to lend an
air of authenticity to their deals. In short, their activities followed
the familiar pattern of the “confidence game.”

The petiti 1 the of Mrs. Joyce's
testimony as hemg based on confidential communications between
Mrs. Joyce and Pereira during the marriage. Petitioners do not
now contend that Mrs. Joyce was not a competent witness against

her ex-husband. They concede that the divorce removed

any bar of incompetency. That is the gen-
Headnote 1 erally accepted rule. Wigmore, Evidence
Headnote 2 § 2237; 58 Am Jur, Witnesses § 204. Peti-

tioners rely on the proposition that while
divorce removes the bar of i y, it does not i the
privilege for confidential marital communications. Wigmore, Evi-
dence § 2341 (2); 58 Am Jur, Witnesses, § 379. This is a vorrect
statement of the rule, but it is inappli-
cable to bar the communications involved in
this case, since under the facts of the
case, it cannot be said that these communications were confiden-
tial. Although marital communications are presumed to be confi-
dertial, that presumption may be overcome by proof of facts show-

Headnote 8
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ing that they were not intended to be private. Blau v. United
States, 340 US 332, 95 L ed 306, 71 S St
301; Wolfle v. United States, 291 US 7,
78 L ed 617, 54 S Ct 279. The presence of
a third party negatives the presumption of privacy. Wigmore,
Evidence § 2336. So too, the intention that the information

conveyed be transmitted to a third person.
Headnote .5 Id., § 2337. A review of Mrs. Joyce’s tes-
timony reveals that it involved primarily statements made in the
presence of Brading or Miss Joyner, or both, acts of Pereira
Weadnota 6 which did not amount fo communications, trips

taken with third parties, and her vwn acts.
Much of her testimony related to matters occurring prior to
the marriage. Any residuum which may have been intended to be
confidential was so slight as to be immaterial.

Cf. United Statee
v. Mitchell (CA2d NY) 137 F2d 1006, 1009.

Headnote 4

The court below was mnot in error in admitting Mrs. Joyee’s

testimony.

The petitioners challenge their conviction on the substantive
counts on the ground that there was no evidence of any mailing or
of transporting stolen property interestate,
Headnots, 17 the gist of the respective offenses. These
contentions are without merit. .

The mail fraud statute provides:

“§1341. Frauds and swindles -

“Whoever, having devised cr intending to devise any scherae
or artifice to defrand, or for obtaining money or property by
means of false or f repr i or pro-
mises, or to sell, dispose of, loan, exchange, ulter, give away,
distribute, supply, or furnish nr procure for unlawful use any
counterfeit or spurious coin, obligation, security, or other article,
or anything represented to be or intimated or held cut to be
such counterfeit or spurious article, for the purpase of executing
such scheme or artifice or attempting so to do, places in any
post office or authorized depository for mail matter, any matter
or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by the Post Office
Department, or takes or receives therefrom, zny such matter
or thing, or knowingly causes to be delivered by mail according
1o the direction thereon, or at the place at which it is directed
to be delivered by the person to whom it is addressed, any such
matter or thing, shall be fined not more than $1,000 or impri-
soned not more than five years, or both.” 18 USC (Supp V)
§1341.

The National Stolen Property Act provides:

‘‘§ 2314, Transportation of stolen goods, securities, monies, or
articles used in counterfeiting.

“Whoever transports in or foreign any
goods, wares, merchandise, securities or money, of the value of §5,000
or more, knowing the same to have been stolen, converted or taken
by fraud .

“Shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more
than ten years, or both . .’ 18 USC (Supp V) §2314.

To constitute a violation of these provisions, it is not neces-
sary to show that petitioners actually mailed
or transported anything themselves; it is suf
ficient if they caused it to be done. 18 USC

Headnote 8
(Supp V) § 2 (b).

Petitioners do not deny that the proof offered establishes thnt

V) § 1341 are (1) a scheme to defraud, and (2) Lhe mailing of a
letter, etc., for the purpose of executing the schume. It is not
necessary that the scheme contemplate the nse
of the mails as an essential element. United
States v. Young, 232 US 155, 58 L ed 548, 34
S Ct 303. Here, the scheme to defraud is es-
tablished, and the mailing of the check by the
bank, incident to an essential part of the scheme, is established.
There remains only the question whether Pereira *‘caused” the mailing.
That question is easily answered. Where one does an art with knowl
edge that the use of the mails will follow in
the ordinary course of business, or where such
use can reasonably be forescen, even though
not actually intended, then he “causes” the
mails to be used. United States v. Kcnofskey, 243 US 440, 61 L ed
836, 87 S Ct 438. The conclusion that Pereira’s conviction under
this count was proper follows naturally from these factors.

Headnote 9 \

Headnote 10

As to the charge of causing stolen property to be transported
in interstate commerce, the validity of Pereira’s conviction is even
more apparent. Sections 1341 and 2314 of Title 18 constitute
two separate offenses, and a defendant may be
convicted of both even though the charges arise
from a single act or series of acts, so long
as each requires the proof of a fact not essential to the cther.
Gavieres v. United States, 220 US 338, 55 L ed 489, 31 S Ct 421;
Blockburger v, United States, 284 US 299, 76 L ed 306, 52 S Ct

Headnote 11

180. 18 USC (Supp V) § 2314 requires (1) knowledge that certain
property has been stolen or obtained by fraud
Headnote 12 and (2) transporting it, or causing it to be

transported in interstate commerce. It is ob-
vious that the mail fraud offense requires different proof. The
transporting charge does not require proof that any specific means
of transporting were used, or that the acts were dorie pursuant to
a scheme to defraud, as is required for the mail fraud charge.
United States v. Sheridan, 329 US 879, 91 L ed 359, 67 S Ct.
832. When Pereira delivered the check, drawn on an out-of-
state bank, o the El Paso bank for collec-
tion, he “caused” it to be transported in,
intestate commerce. It is common knowledge
that such checks must be sent to the drawee bank for collec-
tion, and it follows that Pereira intended the El Paso bank to
send this check across state lines. United States vs. Sheridan,
supra (329 US at 391). The trial court charged the jury that
one who “aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces, or procures”
the commission of an act is as responsible for that act as if he
had directly committed the act himself. See 18 USC (Supp V)
§ 2 (a). Nye and Nissen v. United States, 336. The jury found
Brading guilty in the light of this instruction. The Court of Appeals
affirmed on the ground that the evidence supported conviction under
this charge.!

Headnote 13

The evidence is clear and convincing that Brading was a partici-
pant in the fraud from beginning to end. Brading made the
initial contact with the victim. He persuaded her to part mth
$5,000, as a loan to Pereira for in some i
oil leases. He was present and participated in conversations .ubout
buying the hotel lease. He-engaged a telephone answering service
under the name of “‘E. J. Wilson,” broker. The evidence established
that he sent a telegram to Pereira authorizing an extension of
the supposed option to purchase the hotel, signing it “E. J. Wilson.”
He supplied the false excuse for Pereira’s departure from the
vietim, and went with Pereira to collect the proceeds of the check.
He and Pereira fled together with the money.

The ‘‘aiding and abetting”” instruction entitled the jury to
draw i supplying any lack of evidence directly connect-

they planned to defraud Mrs. Joyee.  Coll the

of the check was an essential part of that scheme. For this pur-
pose, Pereira delivered the check drawn on a Los Angeles bank to
the El Paso bank. There was substantial evidence to show that the
check was mailed from Texas to California, in the ordinary course
of business.

The elements of the offense of mail fraud under 18 USC (Supp
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ing the petitioner Brading with the specific acts charged in the

charged in the substantive offenses were acts in

e Pinkerton case, howsver, is inaoplicable bere
since the jury was mot instru terms of that the Nye & Nissen v.
Uritea Miadeny 536 US 615,85 L o 319, 68°S & 1
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offered. The

from the
jury was properly charged on this theory.
There is ample evidence of the petitioners’
i and close ,cooperation in the
fraud from which the jufy could conclude that
Brading aided, abetted, or counseled Pereitg in the commission of
the epecific acts charged. See Nye & Nissen v. United States,
supra (336 US at 619). The Court of Appeals has passed on the
sufficiency of the the evidence to sustain Brading’s conviction on
this theory. We see no reason to upset the findings of the courts
below.

Head. 14

The petitioners allege that their conviction on both
the substantive counts and a conspirary to commit the ecrimes
charged in the substantive counts constitutes
double jeopardy. It is settled law in this
country that the commission of a substantive
offense and a conspiracy to commit it are separate and distinet
crimes, and a plea of double jeopardy is no defense to a conviction
for both. See Pinkerton v. United States, 328 US 640, 643, 644.
90 L ed 1489, 1494, 1945, 66 S Ct 1304, and case cited therein.
Only if the substantive offense and the conspiracy are identical does
a conviction for both constitute double jeopardy. Cf. Gavieres v.
United States, 220 US 338, 55 L ed 489, 31 S Ct 421. The substantive
offenses with which petitioners were charge do
not require mcre than one person for their
commission; either could be accomplished by a
gingle individual. The essence of the conspiracy charge is an agree-
ment to use the mails to defraud and/or to transport in interstate
commerce property known to have been obtained by fraud. Pereira’s
conviction on the substantive counts does not depend on any agrea-
ment he being the principal actor. Similarly, Brading’s
conviction does not turn on the agreement. Aiding, abetting,

and counseling are not terms which pre-

Headnote 15

Headnote 16

Headnote 17 suppose the existence of an agreement. Those
terms have a broader application, making the
d dant a principal when he i shares in a criminal aet,

of the it of a Nye & Nissen v.

United States, supra (336 US at 620). Thus, the charge of cons-

piracy requires proof not essential to the convictions on the

ive offe proof of an to commit an offense

against the United States—and it cannot be said that the sub-

stantive offenses and the conspiracy are identical, any more than
the two substantive offenses are identical.

Petitioners further contend that there was no evidence that

they agreed to wuse the mails in furtherance of the
scheme to defraud Mrs. Joyce or that they
Headnote 18 agreed to transport stolen property in in<

terstate commerce. It is not necessary that
an agreement to use the mails or transport stolen property exists
from the inception of the scheme to defraud. If there was such
an agreement at any time, it is sufficient. The existence of a
conspiracy to defraud Mrs. Joyce is not denied. Pereira obtained
a check from the victim for the purchase of an automobile. That
check was drawn on a Los Angeles bank by Mrs. Joyce’s brokers.
When the subject of purchasing the hotel was broached, Mrs.
Joyce told Pereira that she would have to have her California
broker sell some stocks to obtain the funds for the purchase.
When there was a delay in contacting the broker, Brading, as
“E. J. Wilson,” sent a telegram extending the spurious option for
the purchase of the hotel. There is no doubt about Pereira’s
knowledge that a check on an out-of-state bank would be involved.
From what we have said with regard to the substantive offenses,
it is also clear that an intent to collect on the check would include
an intent to use the mails or to transport the check in interestate
commerce. It was certainly not improper to allow the
jury to determine from the circumstances
whether Brading shared Pereira’s knowledge
and agreed with him as to the use of the
cnly appropriate means of collecting the money. It would be
unreasonable to suppose that Brading would be sc closely asso-
ciated with Pereira in the scheme to defraud without knowing the

Headnote 19
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details related to the realization of their common goal. There is
no reason for this Court to apset the jury’s finding of conspiracy.

For the foregoing reasons, the judgment below is Affirmed.

Mr. Justice Reed took no part in the consideration or decision
of this case.

Mr. Justice Minton, with whom Mr. Justice Black and Mr.
Justice Douglas join, concurring in part and dissenting in part.

That a monumental fraud was perpetrated by the petitioners
on Mrs. Joyce in the true fashion of a confidence game cannot be
disputed. Such fraud could be punished by the States. For the
United States to take cognizance of the offenses, the mails had
to be used to carry out the fraud or the check fraudulently ob-
tained must have been carried across state lines. That is what
the Government charged. Count one charged that they caused
a letter to be mailed from El Paso, Texas, to Los Angeles, Cali-
fornia, on June 15, 1951. Count ten charged that on or about the
same date they caused the check, in the amount of $35,286.78, to
be transported in interstate commerce from El Paso to Los An-
geles, knowing it was obtained by fraud. Count 11 charged a
conspiracy to commit the substantive offenses.

I would affirm the convictions except as to Brading on the
substantive counts. To convict on the substantive counts, the pe-
titioners must have actually used the mails to transport the check
from El Paso to Los Angeles. The use may be proved by direct
or circumstantial evidence, but it must be proved. Brading must
have used, or must have known or from the facts and circumstances
be reasonably expected to have known, that Pereira actually would
use the mails. United States v. Peoni (CA2d NY) 100 F2d 401,
402. To be guilty of the conspiracy, Brading had only to reason-
ably anticipate that Pereira might use the mails, and if he did
subsequently use them, then Brading is bound.

The elements of the offense under the Mail Fraud statute are
1) a scheme to defraud which (2) reasonably contemplates the
use of the mails, and (3) use of the mails in furtherance of
the plan. The National Stolen Property Act is violated if (1)
one transports securities or money of the value of $5,000 or more
in interstate commerce and (2) does so knowing they have been
taken by fraud.

Concededly, Brading did not participate directly in the use of
the mails to transport the thirty-five thousand dollar check from
El Paso to Los Angeles. He can be convicted, if at all, only as
an aider and abettor, Nye & Nissen v. United States, 336 US 618,
618, 93 L ed 919, 924, 69 S Ct 766. There is no evidence to
establish that he could reasonably have expected that the mails
would be used in carrying out the scheme.

Three financial transactions are mentioned by the Court in
its opinion. First, the $5,000 transaction. That all took place
in Roswell, New Mexico, where Mrs. Joyce cashed a check on &
Roswell bank aud gave the proceeds to Pereira. No federal of-
fense there. The Cadillac transection was liquidated by a check
received from Los Angeles by Mrs. Joyce and turned over to
Pereira, who cashed it in Kansas City, Missouri. Brading was
not shown to have known where this money came from, and, more
important, it was not proved that that check was mailed, as
was done in the case of the third check, for $35,286.78.

Mrs. Joyce arranged for this check, the only transaction upon
which the convictions are based by selling securities in Los An-
geles. She received the check and turned it over to Pereira in
Roswell, New Mexico, from whence he took it to El Paso, and
there, on June 15, 1951, after securing Mrs. Joyce's endorsement,
caused it to be sent through the mails for collecticn. The evi-
dence does not show where Brading was at the time these events
occurred. He next appeared at Mrs. Joyce’s home in Roswell after
the completion of the acts constituting the federal crimes, and
on June 19, 1951, left with Pereira, ostensibly to see about some
oil leases in Texas. The same day Pereira collected the money at
the El Paso bank. There is no direct evidence that Brading actual-
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ly knew or had reason te believe that a check would be received
or that the check would be drawn on an out-of-town bank, ne.
cessitating its being placed in the mails for collection.

Lacking such proof, an imporiant element of each crime
charged, namely, that Brading had reason to foresee the use of
the mails or interstate commerce, has not been established. It 18
true that the use of the mails need not have been originally in-
tended as a part of the plan, but its use must have been a na-
tural, bl means of i the plan. Bra-
ding might well have assumed that cash would be given to Pereira,
or, if & check, one drawn on a local bank.

It may well be reasonable to infer that one receiving a check
drawn on an out-of-town bank would know that it would be
mailed in the process of collection, but to that inference must be
added the inference that Brading had reason to know that a check
would be received and also that the check would be on an out-of-
town bank. This is piling inference upon inference, in the ab-
sence of direct proof. In short, this is simply guessing Brading
into the federal penitentiary. It may be good guessing, but it is
not proof.

Brading is clearly an aider and abettor of the scheme to
defraud, which a State may punish, but is he an aider and abet-
tor of the federal offenses of using the mails to defraud and caus-
ing the fraudulent check to be carried across state lines? I think

not, unless we are willing to say that aiding and abetting the
scheme to defrand is aiding and abetting any means used for the
consummation of the fraud. Brading must aid and abet the fede-
ral crimes, not just the fraudulent echeme. There is not a scin-
tilla of evidence thay Brading aided and abetted anything more
than the scheme to get the money from Mrs. Joyce.

In Bollenbach v. United States, 326 US 607, 90 L ed 350,
66 S Ct 402, the defendant was charged with transporting securities
in interstate commerce knowing them to have been stelen, and with
conspiracy to commit the offense. The court had instructed the
jury that possession of the securities by the defendant in New
Yerk soon after their theft in Minnesota was sufficient to warrant
the jury in finding that the defendant knew the securities had
been stolen, and this would support the further “presumption”
that the defendant was the thief and transported the securities
in interstate commerce. This Court set the conviction aside. The
latter inference was said to be untenable.

In this case, I think it untenable to infer that Brading had
reason to know that Pereira would get a foreign check that must
be sent through the mails and in its handling must e carried across
statelines, thereby making out the federal crimes. It is untenable
because it is unreasonable to infer one or more facts from the
inference of another fact. Looney v. Metropolitan R. Co. 200 US
480, 488, 50 L ed 564, 569, 26 S Ct 303; United States v. Ross,
92 US 281, 23 L ed 707.—«

OPINIONS OF THE SECRETARY OF JUSTICE
Continued from page 538)

New Mabuhay Cabaret which ceased operation after liberation. The
cnly identity between that cabaret and the cabaret proposed to be
constructed is that the latter would use the same name and b:
constructed at the same place. For all legal and practical pur-
poses, the new cabaret is a new business and does not come within
the protection of the Cabinet resolution which is being invoked.

The license granted the former owner of the New Mabuhay
Cabaret was a mere privilege; he had not acquired any vested right
therein which he could transfer as of right to anyone with or with-
out valuable consideration.

The undersigned is therefore of the opinion that the query
should be answered in the negative.

(Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice
OPINION NO. 157

/(On the question as to whether the circumstances surround-
g the death of M. Lapira, former member of the Police Force
of Guagua, Paumpanga, entitle him to the benefits of Sec. 1 of Rep.
Act No. 80.)

5th Indorsement
June 30, 1954

Respectfully
Manila.

d to the the E:

Secretary,

The within papers refer to the claim for gratuity under Re-
public Act No. 30 of the widow of the late Martin Lapira.

The late Martin Lapira was a former member of the Police
Force of Guagua, Pampanga. On several nights prior to November
18, 1951, he was assigned to guard duties at Barrio San Antonio,
Municipality of Guagua, in connection with the campaign for the
maintenance of peace and order. It appears that the barrie of
San Antonio had been the scene of nightly depredations by the dis-
sidents prior to the deceased’s assignment to said barrio.

On the night of November 18, 1951, while on guard duty, he
suddenly had a slight chest pain followed by frothing at the mouth,
dyspnea, snoring, unconsciousness and cyanosis. He died at about
§:80 that sume night. According to the maternity and charity phy-
sician of Guagua who attended the deceased, he “died of heart failure
which may be the result of coronary thrombosis or a long standing
myocarditis, either of which may be cause by prolong physical
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cxertion and sleepless nights during guard duty.” It also appears,
from an examination conducted by the Committee on Physical
Txamination of the Department of Health (4th indorsement of
July 7, 1952, not attached), that the continued performance of the
strenuous duties of Lapira who was already suffering from a chro-
nic heart desease may have been the direct and immediate cause
of his death.

Opinion is now requested as to whether under the facts above
described the widow and children of said deceased may be entitled |
to the benefits of section 1 of Republic Act No. 30 which provides
as follows:

“SECTION 1. In addition to any right or benefit which,
by operation of law, accrues to the widow and/or children of

a deceased officer or member of any police force or similar

governmental organization, whether national, provincial, city or

municipal, sngaged in the maintenance of peace and order,
there is authorized to be paid to such widow and/or children

a gratuity equivalent to one year salary, but in no case less

than the sum of one thousand pesos, if the deceased officer or

member of the force shall have been killed while engaged in the
performance of his duties in commection with the campaign for
the maintenance of peace and order or as a direct consequence
of his participation therein. If such deceased has no surviving
widow or children, such gratuity shall be paid to his other
heirs in the order of succession established by the Civil Code.”

From the finding of the Maternity and Charity Physician of
Guagua and the Committee. on Physical Examination of the De-
partment of Health, there is a clear showing that the late Policeman
Lapira died as a of his partici in the i
for the maintenance of peace and order in his municipality. The
fact that he was already suffering from a chronic heart desease
at the time of his assignment does not detract from the findings
that the deceased died in line of duty; died as the direct and im-
mediate result of his duties which, because of the hours and the
dangerous character of said duties, must have inflicted heavy strain
on his physic and produced severe nervous tension. He was all the
more daserving of reward because of the greater risk he undertnok
to his life on account of his impaired health.

In view of the in the affirma-

tive.

the query is

(Sgd.) PEDRO TUASON
Secretary of Justice



SUPREME COURT DECISIONS

&
Petitioner-Appellant, vs. National Labor
L-5577, July 31, 1954,

H. E. Heacock Co.,
Union et al., Respondents-Appellees, No.
Paras, CJ.

1. EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEES; FINDINGS OF FACT OF
COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS, CONCLUSIVE IN
APPEAL BY CERTIORARI. — The findings of fact of the
Court of Industrial Relations in an appeal by certiorari are
conclusive on the Supreme Court,

2. ID.; BONUS; PAYMENT ON EQUITABLE CONSIDERA-
TION. — For the year 1947 the petitioner paid a bonus of one
month salary to all its employees, and for the years 1948 and
1949, realizing necessary profits, it also paid a bonus to its
exccutives and heads of depariments, omitting only the low
salaried employees. Held: Even if a bonus is not demandable
for not forming part of the wage, salary or compensation of the
employee, the same may nevertheless be granted on equitable
considerations.

3. ID.; ID.; ITS CONSIDERATION. — Any extra concession
granted by the employer to his employee or laborer is necessarily
premised on the need of improving the latter’s working con-
ditions to the highest possible level, in return only for the ef-
ficient service and loyalty expected from the employee or
laborer.

Perlins, Ponce Enrile and Contreras for the petitioner.
l/ H. A. Ferrer for the respondent court.
Eulogio R. Lerum for the respondent Union.
DECISION
PARAS, CJ.:

The National Labor Union, hereinafter to be referred to as
the Union, filed a petition under date of June 26, 1950 in the
Court of Industrial Relations against H. E. Heacock Co., herein-
after to be referred to as the Company, praying that the latter
be ordered to pay to all its low salaried employees their bonus for
the years 1948 and 1949, in an amount equivalent to one month
salary for each year, it being alleged in substance that on the
occasion of the distribution on April 17, 1948 of the same bonus for
the year 1947, the Company promised that said benefit would be
granted yearly to the employees, provided sufficient profits were
made; that in 1948 and 1949 the Company, notwithstanding available
profits, distributed bonus only to its high salaried employees; that
upon the Company’s failure to accede to the Union’s demand for
the payment of the stipulated bonus for the years 1948 and 1949,
and upon its refusal to. submit the matter to the labor-management
committee in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement
of April, 1949, the employees declared a strike on June 19, 1950.

In its answer, the Company in substance alleged that i1t had
never bound itself to pay an annual bonus and that granted for
the year 1947 was purely an act of grace and liberality on the
part of the Company; that while the Company made some profits
and paid to its executives and chiefs of departments bonuses for
the years 1948 and 1949, the sume was a voluntary concession to
said officials who had received no increases in pay and were not
entitled to and did not actually collect compensation for overtime
work; that the compensation of the employees was never made to
depend wholly or in part upon profits, and all wages to which
were set out in the agreement of July 11, 1949, and any other
payment or gratuity was entirely within the Company’s discretion;
that the illegal strike staged by the Union led the Company to
suffer damages in the sum of P12,000.00.

After hearing, the Court of Industrial Relations, through Judge
Jose S. Bautista, rendered a decision in favor of the employees,
ordering the Company to pay them one month salary as bonus
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for the year 1948 and another one month salary for the year
1949. A subsequent motion for reconsideration filed by the
Company was denied by the resolution of the Court of Industrial
Relations in bane, dated July 16, 1951, by a vote of three to two.
The instant petition for certiorari was filed by the Company, assailing
the decision of the Court of Industrial Relations.

The lower court found that on April 17, 1948, the Company
distributed to all its employees a bonus equivalent to their salaries
for one month for the year 1947; that the Company realized profits
in 1948 and 1949, and although it paid bonus to its high officials
and executives for said years, it did not extend the same privilege
to any low salaried employee; that the Union duly filed with the
Company a protest against such omission, and demanded the
payment of the same bonus to all the low salaried employees;
that in the protest of May 15, 1950, the Union gave notice that,
upon failure of the Company to grant the demand, steps would
be taken for the protection of the members of the Union; that
upon derial of the Company and its failure to submit the matter
to the labor- as T by the Union,
the employees staged a peaceful strike on June 19, 1950, although
they returned to work in obedience to a dlrectwe of the court;
that the Company in fact made a promise to all its low salaried
employees on April 17, 1948, that a bonus of one month salary
would be distributed among them yearly, as for the year 1947,
as long as the Company would realize sufficient profits.

The Company, however, contends that it had never assumed
the obligation of paying the bonus claimed by the Union, and that
there is no evidence whatsoever tending to prove such obligation.

It appears that the issues of The Manila Times and The Manila
Chronicle of August 22, 1948 featured a “Heacock Supplement”
ining the following 5

“The steady growth and enviable reputation of the H. E.
Heacock Co., as an institution well known in the Philippines
and in the entire Far East for its quality merchandise and
courteous service exemplify a modern tenet of progressive em-
ployer-employee relationship founded on mutual confidence and
good-will,

“The Heacock employees arc given all the benefits that can

bly be d from the Jose Y. Orosa,

the firm’s first vice-president and assistant general manager,

declared. ‘For this reason,’ he added, ‘we have never had the

unfortunate experience of seeing our employees go on strike

since the company was organized in 1905. And we don’t expect
to have any strikes.”

“That the sound relationship between the management and
the employees redounds to the good of everybody concerned was
also pointed out by Mr. Oresa. The employer’s goodwill is
returned with a spontaneous manifestation of loyalty, coopera-
tion, efficiency and unstinted henesty on the part of the em-
ployees, it was further explained.

“The present mutual confidence and good-will of Heacock’s
personnel is maintained for the ultimate benefit of the buying
public, Mr. Orosa said. Employees who are treated right have
sufficient reasons to give their employers full cooperation so
that in the final analysis, the customers are the recipients of
the rewards of such cooperation.

“Since the H. E. Heacock Co. resumed business after
the war, 87 of its 200 employees have been given salary increases,
Mr. Orosa revealed. There are other meritorious cases which
deserve similar consideration in due time, it was pointed out.

“One of the most helpful and progressive steps ever taken
by a firm like Heacock’s is the setting up of a special fund for
which the employees may draw a cash loan equivalent to a half-
month salary and payable within 60 days. This privilege,
it was explained, is a boon to those employees who may be forced
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by circumstances beyond their control to meet emergency needs.

“Another benefii extended to Heacock employees is a 25
per cent overtime pay in addition to their regular pay. In
other words, the employees are paid 25 per cent for all hours of
work beyond the eight-hour limit fixed by law, it was also
stressed. This makes it fair and profitable for the employee
of this firm to render overtime service whenever the need arises,
and that generally is during special sales and the Christmas
season.

“At the end of every year, Mr. Orosa declared, the Heacock
employees enjoy a profit-sharing privilege when they are given
bonuses by the management, the amount depending on the profits
realized during that year. This progressive policy, he pointed
vut, makes for a genuine interest on the part of the employees
to work honestly and sincerely for the good of the company —
a company which is theirs in a sense,

“Every year the employees of Heacock’s are given 15 days
vacation leave and 15 days sick leave with pay. They are
also entitled to free medical and dental service rendered by
the company physician and dentist,

“The management of the H. E. Heacock Co. firmly be-
lieves that athletics fosters fraternity, cooperation and ‘a sound
mind in a sound body.” With this end in view, the firm formed
an athletic association whose membership is open to all employees
of the company. Followers of the basketball game in this
country are familiar with the reputation of the Heacock quintet
which has time and again garnered laurels in the local sporting
world.

“Mr. Orosa revealed that the H. E. Heacock Co. is a
bona fide member of the Manila Industrial and Commercial
Association (MICA). Such membership, he said, assures both
the management and the employees with a solid foundation for
profitable and sound business relationship. Problems affecting
both parties which may arise are met and solved with open
minds on common grounds.  Fortunately for Heacock’s, 40
years of public service have proved that the management
and the employees have joined hands in mutual confidence and
good-will,

‘““‘Heacock’s has a splendid reputation, Mr. Orcsa declared,
‘and this has been built up by the employees and the government.
We have lived up to the expectation of the public. We con-
tinue to do so, and to better serve our customers, we are opening
our now air-conditioned store this week.””

The same publication was carried in the issue of The Manila
Daily Bulletin of August 23, 1948,  The Union presented oral
evidence tending to show that the President and General Manager
of the Company, Donald O. Gunn, was the one who made the
promise of April 17, 1948, to pay to all its employees yearly cne-month
salary as bonus, provided there were profits. This testimony is
controverted by Mr. Gunn; but the lower court considered, in addi-
tion to such oral evidence, the publication of the “Heacock Supple-
ment” on the occasion of the opening of the new store of the Com-
pany in Dasmarifias Strest, Manila, as conclusive proof of its com-
mitment to pay the bonus in question.

The “Heacock Supplement”, in the portion pertinent to the case
at bar, contained the following paragraph: “At the end of cvery
year, Mr. Orosa declared, the Heacock employees enjoy a profit-
sharing privilege when they are given bonuses by the management,
the amount depending on the profits realized during the year.
This progressive policy, he pointed out, makes for a genuine interest
on the part of the employees to work honestly and sincerely for the
good of the company — a company which is theirs in a sense.”
These statements are denied by Mr. Orosa, Vice-President and

istant General M of the Ci ; and attorneys for the
latter argue that Guaztavo M. Torres, Assistant Manager of the
Personnel Service Advertising Bureau which was then handling
the advertising account of the Company, prepared the “Heacock
Supplement”, and, testifying on his interview with Mr. Orosa,
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declared that he was not certain as to the nature of the bonus talked
about, and that he thought that it referred to the Christmas bonus
which the Company gives to its employees at the end of every
year, and that this was what he had in mind when he wrote the
article in question. The Court of Industrial Relations gave no
weight to the denial of Mr. Orosa, and observed that the latter
was aware, or should have read and known the Supplement in
question, and his failure to make any correction or denial of its
contents shortly after its publication, negatives the stand now taken
by him.

The Company also points out that both Mr. Gunn and Mr.
Orosa could not legally bind the Company which can only act
through its board of directors, and there is nothing in the record
to show that the board promised to pay any yearly bonus or ratified
the alleged promise made by Mr. Gunn or Mr. Orosa. Counsel
for the Union, however, observes that notwithstanding the publica-
tion of the “Heacock Supplement” which undoubtedly must have been
noticed by all the officials of the Company, no correction or denial
ever came from its board of directors which, by such silence, must
be deemed as having ratified the commitment of Mr. Gunn and the
statement of policy featured in the “Heacock Supplement”.

The Court of Industrial Relations also invoked, as another
circumstance confirming the promise made by Mr. Gunn to pay
an annual bonus to all the low salaried employees of the Company,
the following passage contained in his letter of February 19, 1949,
addressed to the Union: “The company desires to call your attention
to the fact that the salaries, bonuses (on plural por referirse al bono
de Navidad y al bono por razon de utilidades) paid vacation leaves,
paid sick leave, medical and dental services, and other privileges
and facilities, accorded to its employees are the highest in the ecity
of Manila for comparahle positions and, as a consequence, we cannot
consider any general increase in wages at the present time without
doing violence to the stability of ihe labor situation here, of which
you are fully aware.”

Attorneys for the Company have exerted great efforts in dis-
puting the findings of the lower court, but we are not in a
position to pass upon, much less alter, said findings which are
conclusive in this instance. Even so, the decision favorable to
the Union may further be predicated upon the case of Philippine
Education Company, Inc. vs. Court of Industrial Relations et al.,
G. R. No. L-5103, December 24, 1952, in which we held that, even
if a bonus is not demandable for not forming part of the wage,
salary or compensation of the employee, the same may nevertheless be
granted on equitable considerations. It appears herein that for the
year 1947 the Company paid a bonus of one-month salary to all
its employees, and for the years 1948 and 1949, realizing necessary
profits, it also paid a bonus to its executives and heads of depart-
ments, omitting only the low salaried employees. The payment of
the bonus in 1947 already generated in the minds of all the em-
ployees the fixed hope of receiving the same concession in subse-
quent years, and on the ground of equity they deserved to be paid
the bonus for the years 1948 and 1949, when the Company admittedly
realized enough profits. The Company insists that its high officials
were given bonus for 1948 and 1949 because they had never been
granted any salary raise or paid for any overtime work. This is,
however, answered by the Union which alleges that no salary
increase or overtime pay was nccessary for the high officials of
the Company, since they have already been receiving adequate
compensation.

The Company also maintains that no valid obligation to pay
the bonus in question could arise, because there was no considera-
tion therefor. It is sufficient to state that any extra concession
granted by the employer of his employee or laborer is neecessarily
premised on the need of improving the latter’s working conditions
to the highest possible level, in return only for the efficient service
and loyalty expected from the employee or laborer.

Wherefore, the decision of the Court of Industrial Relations
is hereby affirmed, and it is so ordered with costs against the
petitioner, H. E. Heacock Co.

Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Montemayor, A. Reyes, Jugo, Bautista
Awngelo, Labradoy, Concepcion, J.J., eoncur.
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Juan Galanza, Plaintiff-Appellee, vs. Sotero N. Nuesa, Defend-
ant-Appellant, No. L-6628, August 31, 1954, Paras, C. J.

PURCHASE AND SALE; RIGHT OF REPURCHASE; STI-
PULATION ON THE PERIOD FOR LEGAL REDEMP-
TION. — The parties to a sale with pacto de retro may stipu-
late on the period for redemption, unaffected by registration
or by section 119 of Commonwealth Act No. 141.

Alejo Mabanag and Mauro Verzosa for defendant and appellant.
Fidel Sor. Mangonon for plaintiff and appellee.
DECISION
PARAS, C.J.:

The plaintiff Juan Galanza owned a parcel of land covered by
orlgmal certlflcate of title No. 1-2247 issued on July 23, 1934, and
d. On S ber 7, 1940, he sold said land
to the defendant Sotero N. Nuesa with a right of repurchase with-
in 5 years from the date of execution of the deed of sale. The ori-
ginal certificate of title No. I-2247 was mot cancelled until July
17, 1947, when a transfer certificate of title No. T-172 was issued
in the name of the defendant. On May 19, 1951, the plaintiff
instituted in the Court of First Instance of Isabela a complaint
against the defendant, praying that the latter be ordered to re-
convey the land to the plaintiff in accordance with Section 119 of
Commonwealth Act 141. In his answer, the defendant set up the
special defense that the plaintiff had failed to exercise his right of
redemption within the period stipulated in the deed of sale executed
on September 7, 1940, and that therefore the title to the property
had already consolidated in the defendant. The parties entered
into an agreement of facts, and the Court of First Instance of
Isabela, on June 23, 1952, rendered a decision ordering the defend-
ant to convey to the plaintiff the land in question, upon payment
by the plaintiff to the defendant of the sum of P1,328.00 as the
repurchase price, and ordering the Register of Deeds of Isabela
to cancel transfer certificate of title No. T-172 and issue another
in the name of the plaintiff, after the proper deed of reconveyance
shall have been d for ion, without pr
as to damages and costs. From this decision the defendant has
appealed.

The question that arises, as expressly framed in the stipula-
tion of facts is “whether the period to repurchase the land in ques-
tion shall be counted from the execution of the deed of sale with
right to repurhcase or from the issuance of transfer certificate of
title of the herein defendant.” The trial court held that the 5-year
period of repurchase should be computed from the day the deed of
sale with pacto de retro was registered on January 17, 1947, apply-
ing section 50 of the Land Registration Law which provides that
“the act of registration shall be the operative act to convey and
affect the land.” 1In his brief, counsel for the plaintiff-appellee
admits that the latter’s right of repurchase under the deed of sale
executed on September 7, 1940, had already expired, but it is eon-
tended that the present action is based on the right of repurchase
granted by section 119 of Commonwealth Act 141 which provides
that “every conveyance of land acquired under the free patent or
homestead provisions, when proper, shall be subject to repurchase
by the applicant, his widow, or legal heirs, within a period of 5
years”; and that the term “conveyance” imports the transfer of
legal title, which in the present case took place only after the is-
suance of the transfer certificate of title in the name of the de-
fendant-appellant.

In our opinion, appellant’s title had already become absolute,
because of appellee’s failure to redeem the land within five years
from September 7, 1940. Both under section 50 of the Land Regis-
tration Law and under section 119 of Commonwealth Act 141, the
owner of a piece of land is neither prohibited nor precluded from
binding himself to an agreement whereby his right of repurchase
is for a certain period starting from the date of the deed of sale.

546

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

Indeed section 50 of the Land Registration Law provides that, even
without the act of registration, a deed purporting to convey or af-
fect registered land shall operate as a contract between the parties.
The registration is intended to protect the buyer against claims of
third parties arising from subsequent alienations by the vendor,
and is certainly not necessary to give effect, as between the par-
ties, to their deed of sale. In the case of Carillo vs. Salak, G. R.
No. 1-4133, May 13, 1932, we made the following applicable pro-
nouncement: “While we admit that the sale has not been regis-
tered in the office of the register of deeds, nor annotated on the
torrens title covering it, such technical deficiency does not render
the transaction ineffective nor does it convert it into a mere mo-
netary obligation. but simply renders it ineffective against third
persons. Said transaction is, however, valid and binding against
the parties.

In the stipulation of facts, it is provided that in case judg-
mert be in favor of the defendant, “the plaintiff will pay the amount
of FIVE HUNDRED PESOS (P500.00) to the defendant in con-
cept of damages suffered.” Even so, we are inclined to disallow
appellant’s claim for damages, in the same manner that, in the
appealed decision, no damages were awarded in favor of the plain-
tiff in the absence of evidence to show how said damages accrued.

Wherefore, the appealed decision is hereby reversed and the
issed, without as to costs.

Pablo, Padilla, A. Reyes, Jugo, Bautista Angelo, Labrador,
Concepcion, and J. B. L. Reyes, J.J., concur.

Montemayor reserved his vote.
BENGZON, J. concurring:

The idea occurs to me that the five-year period under section
119, C.A. 141 did not begin to run until after expiration of the
conventional 5-year period of redemption. I should like to mull it
over. Nevertheless I concur in this opinion, now because anyway
the plaintiff allowed more than ten years to elapse before exercis-
ing his rights (Sept., 1940 to May 1951).

pisg

Esperanza V. Buhat, et al.,, Plaintiffs-Appellants, vs. Rosario
Besana, Ete., et al., Defendants-Appellees, No. L-6746, August 81,
1954, Paras, C. J.

ACTIONS; PRESCRIPTION; MORTGAGE; REGISTRATION
OF MORTGAGE DOES NOT MAKE IT IMPRESCRIPTIBLE.
—The fact that a mortgage is registered does not make action
to foreclose it imprescriptible.

Vicente Abalajon for plaintiffs and appellants.
Santiago Abella Vito for defendants and appellees,

DECISION
PARAS, C. J.:

On May 31, 1924, Jose M. Besana mortgaged his undivided
one-half share in lot No. 1406 of the cadestral survey of Panay
in favor of Luis Bernales, to secure an indebtedness of P900.00,
payable within six years from said date. On October 27, 1926,
original certificate of title No. RC-1354 (10255) was issued ir the
name of Jose M. Besana and Rosario Besana, brother and sister,
covering lot No. 1406 in undivided equal shares; and on said cer-
tificate the mortgage in favor of Luis Bernales was noted. Jose
M. Besana died and his portion passed to his surviving sister,
Rosario Besana. Luis Bernales also died and his merigage credit
againt Jose M. Besana was inherited by Antonio Bernales who
in turn transferred the same to the herein plaintiffs, Esperanza
V. Buhat and Mauro A. Buhat. Rosario Besana sold her portion
to Manuel B. Bernales who, on June 30, 1950, conveyed it ‘to the
plaintiffs. As the indebtedness above referred to remained unpaid,
the present action was instituted in the Court of First Instance of
Cupiz by the plaintiffs against Rosario Besana and her hushund
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Lorenzo Contreras on December 6, 1952, for the foreclosure of the
mortgage of May 31, 1924, The defendants Rosario Besana and
Lorenzo Contreras filed a motion ¢ dismiss the complaint, on the
ground that plaintiffs’ cause of action had prescribed, the com-
plaint having been filed more than ten years from May 31, 1930 ‘in
fact some 22 years after the obligation had become due and demand-

able), On May 6, 1953, the Court of First Instance of Capiz issued
an order dismissing the case without costs. The plaintiffs have
appealed.

Appellants’ contention is that, as the mortgage was registered,
the action to foreclose did not prescribe, because section 48 of the
Land Registration Act, No. 496, provides that “No title to register-
ed owner shall be acquired by preseription or adverse possession.”
This is clearly without merit. The citation speaks of the title
of the “registered owner” and refers to prescription or adverse
possession as a mode of acquiring ownership, the whole philosophy
of the law being merely to make a Torrens title indefeasible and,
without more, surely not to cause a registered lien or encumbrance
such as a mortgage — and the right of action to enforce it — im-
preseriptible as against the registered owner, The important ef-
fect of the registration of a mortgage is obviously to bind third
parties.

Wherefore, the appealed order is affirmed, and it is so ordered
with costs against the appellants.

Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Montemayor, A. Reyes, Jugo, Bautista
Angelo, Labrador, Concepeion and J.B.L. Reyes, J.J. concur. _

v

Ben L. Chuy, Demandante y 4pelado, cantfra Philippine Amer-
ican Life I Company, D L G. R. No.
L-6672, Junio 29, 1954, Pablo, M.

1. LEY DE SEGURO; SEGUROS DE VIDA; LA CERTIFICA-
CION DE MEDICOS DE LA COMPARIA ASEGURADORA
PREVALECE CONTRA LA DECLARACION NO CORROBO-
RADA DE OTRO MEDICO QUE NO ES DE LA COMPA-
NIA. — Después de examen fisico por médicos de la compa-
fifa aseguradora, se expidieron a Dee Se pélizas de seguro de

vida. Las primas correspondientes fueron pagadas debida-
mente, Después de un afio, De: Se fallecié de cancer. Su be-
neficiario reclamé el pago del importe de las pélizas. Después

de sicte meses de tramite, la cosa aseguradora le envio una
carta dandole cuenta de que rescindia los contratos de seguro,
y se negaba a pagar el importe de las polizas y le envié dos
cheques que venian a constitutir la restitucién de las primas
pagadas con sus intereses. La negativa de la casa asegurado-
ra a pagar el importe de las polizas se fundaba en la declara-
¢ibn de otro medico que no era de la compaiiia aseguradora,
de que Dee Se, bajo el necmbre de José Dy, habia sido tratado
por aquel por estar enformo de cancer por mas de tres afios
de su muerte. Se declara: Que las opiniones de los doctores de la
casa aseguradora son de méas peso que la declaracién no corro-
borada de otro medico que no es de dicha compafifa. Los me-
dicos de las casas aseguradoras son los que debian tener in-
teres en saber el verdadero cstado de salud del solicitante, y
8i expidieron certificados de buena salud sera porque estaban
convencidos de la verdad de lo que certificaban, No hay el
menor indicio de que ellos hayan obrado de mala fe. No
existe en autos ninguna prueba de que el asegurado haya en-
gafiado a la casa aseguradora haciendo creer que él gozaba
de buena salud cuando en realidad estaba enfermo de cancer.

2 ABOGADOS; HONORARIOS; SENTENCIA POR HONORA-
RIOS CONTRA LA PARTE QUE PERDIO EL ASUNTO;
LA MANIFESTA Y EVIDENTE MALA FE, DEBE PRO-
BARSE. — Se reclama también contra la casa aseguradora
honorarios de abogado que asciende a P10,000. Se declara:
“In the absence of stipulation, attorney's fees and cxpenses
of litigation, other than judicial costs, cannot be recovered,
except: (5) Where the defendant acted in gross and

November 30, 1954

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

evident bad faith in refusing to satisfy the plaintiif’s plainly
valid, just and demandable claim” (Art. 2208, Céd. Civ. de
Filipinas). La casa aseguradora no obro con manifesta y evi-
dente mala fe al no pagar el importe de la poliza. EIl tra-
mite de siete meses demuestra la precaucién que ha tenido
en cerciorarse de si Dee Se era el mismo José Dy que habia
sido informacién de dicho médico, cualquiera que estuviese en
lugar de la casa aseguradora hubiera hecho lo mismo. Si
después de una vista larga en que declararon varios doctores,
el Juzgado ha llegado a la conclusién de que Dee Se no era
€l mismo José Dy, no se debe deducir necesariamente que la
demandada ha obrado con abierta y evidente mala fe.

J. A. Wolfson and Manuel Y. Macias por el demandado y ape-
lante.

Primicias, Abad, Mencias
apelado.

and Castillo por el demandante y

DECISION
PABLO, M.:

Ben L. Chuy presents una demanda contra la Philippine Amer-
ican Life Insurance Company (que se denominaré PHILAMLIFE
en el curso de esta decisién) en el Juzgado de Primera Instancia
de Pangasinin, causa No, 12033, nidiendo que se condenase a la
demandada a pagarle la suma de P46,008.75 con su interés legal desde
2l 22 de junio de 1951 hasta su completo pago, méas la cantidad de
P10,000 en concepto de dafios. También se presenté otra demanda
por Ben L. Chuy y Lee Sin contra la Lincoln National Life Insurance
Company, causa No. 12034, en el mismo juzgado, reclamando el
pago de igual cantidad con igual causa de accibn.

A peticién de ambas partes, las dos causas se vieron conjun-
tamente, sometiende un convenio de hechos ademis de presentar
otras pruebas. Después de considerar las prucbas presentadas, el
Juzgado dictd di la r i6n de los deman-
dantes. TLas dos companiae aseguradoras apelaron; pero antes de
la aprobacién del de lacién, la Lincoln Life
Insurance Company, considerando tai vez initil todo esfucrzo, pagé
a los d: d la tidad de ¥50,000, aband do la apela-
cién. Por eso solamente se decidird por este Tribunal la apelacién
de la Philamlife.

Eutiquiano P. Nava, un agente asegurador de la Lincoln Na-
tional Life Company, i a Dee Se para
asegurarse en P25,000; los doctores G Oreta-Dizon y Godofredo
A. Antonio le examinaron y expidievon el certificado médieo corres-
pondiente, que fué aprobado por el director médico de la Lincoln
National Life Insurance Company. La solicitud de Dee Se fué
aprobada y la péliza No. 812 254 por la suma de P25,000 se ex-
pidi6 en 8 de mayo de 1950; otra péliza No. 812 411 por igual
cantidad se expidié a Dee Se en 10 de jumo de 1950 después de

lidas todas las

Paula Dolores Sendaydiego, agente de la Philamlife, consiguié
también convencer a Dee Se de quc se asegurarse en su compa-
ifa en la suma de P25,000. E! Dr. Braulio M. Venecia examiné a
Dee Se y su certificado médico fué aprobado por recomerdacién del
doctor de la oficina central. En 2 de mayo de 1950 se expidié a
Dee Se la péliza No. 97310 por la suma de P25,000. Por medio de
la agente Paula Dolores Sendaydiege, Dee Se otra vez solicité otra
péliza por la suma de P25,000. EI Dr. Ricardo B. Villamil le exa-
miné y expidié ¢l certificado corr di que fué aprobado por
el Dr. Valenzuela, director médico de la Philamlife. Se aprobé la
solicitud y se expidié a Dee Se otra péliza No, 101840 por la suma
de P25,000 en 18 de julio de 1950. Las primas de las cuatro pblizas
fueron pagadas debidamente.

En 22 de junio de 1951 Dee Se fallecié de cancer en la regién
nasofaringea en el Hospital Provincial de Pangasinin, situado en
la ciudad de Dagupan; su beneficiario, que es el demandantc en
esta causa, reclamé el pago del importe de las dos pélizas. Después
de siete meses de trdmite, la demandada, con fecha 24 de enero de
1952, le envié una carta déndole cuenta de que rescindia los dos
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contratos de seguro; se negaba a pagar el importe de las dos pé-
lizas y le envié dos cheques, uno por P1,723.58 y otro de ¥2,570.90
contra el Bank of America, cantidades que venian a corstituir la
1restitucién de las primas pagadas, con sus intereses.

La demandada, en apelacién, alega que el juzgado erro: (1) al
declarar que José Dy, el paciente del Dr. Chikiamco, no era
el asegurado Dee Se; (2) al declarar que Dee Se gozaba de buena
ealud al tiempo de solicitar su seguro y que no habia hecho ninguna
manifestacién falsa en su solicitud de seguro; (3) al no declarar
que dichas dos pélizas de segurn cran nulas y de ningtn valor; y
“4) al der al ios de abogado.

La demandada contiende que Dee Se, bajo el nombre de José
Dy, habfa sido tratado por el Dr. Paterno S. Chikiamco por estar
enfermo de céncer desde el 19 de abril de 1948 hasta el 20 de encro
de 1951, fundandose en la declaracién del mismo doctor, el cual
declaré asi:

“I think I have a clear memory of his features bec2use—

except when I was away for six months in the State in 1949—

most of the treatment was done by me although scme of the

records are jotted down by my assistant.”  (Exhibit “17”,

page 23.)

“I remember very well that he Jooks the same as the patient

by the name of Jose Dy.” (Exhibit “17”, page 24.)

1. Es suficiente la declaracién no corroborada del Dr. Ch'kiamco para
concluir que el asegurado Dee Se fué su paciente José Dy? =

Este del Dr. Chiki i ible con el de
varios doctores, El Dr. Braulio M. de Venec'a, médico de la
Philamlife, asegura que al tiempo er que le examiné, Dee Se gozaba
de buena salud; que le habia conocido por unos des afios porque
era su vecino y que trabajaba en ura tablerfa; que al tiempo en
que lo llamé para examinarle, Dee Se acababa de venir de su tra-
bajo con la tablerfa, un trabajc &rduo, y estaba aun sudando
cuando él le examiné; si Dee Se — asegura el Dr. de Venecia —
hubiera estado sufriendo de cancer y habia estado bajo un trata-
miento médico por mas de tres afios, no habria podido afrontar los
rigores del trabajo en una tablerfa.

Dee Se habia sido examinado, ademis del Dr. de Venecia, por
el Dr. Villamil de la Philamlife y los doctores Oreta-Dizon y Godo-
fredo A. Antonio de la Lincoln National Life Insurance Company y
los certificados médicos que ellos expidieron fueron aprobados por
Ics directores médicos de las dos compaiifas demandadas.

El Dr. Amado Tan Lee declaré que habfa tratado a Dee Se en
28 de diciembre de 1950 y enviadole al Dr. Sevilla en 18 de febrero
de 1951. (Exh. E.)

El Dr. Manuel D. Pefias declmé que en 18 de febreu de 1951
habia hecho un exédmen hi de dos sacados
de la nasofaringe de Dee Se por recomendacién del Dr. Sevilla.

El Dr. Carlos L. Sevilla declaré que habfa tratado por primera
vez a Dee Se en 13 de febrero de 1951 por recomendacién del Dr.
Amado Tan Lee. Creyendo que padecia de céncer, le envié al Dr.
Valencia en la misma fecha (13 de febrero de 1951) para que se lo
sometiera a rayos X; dos dias después él sacé especimenes de la
nasofaringe para ser examinades por el Dr. Pefias, quien hLizo
constar en su informe que hallé “Granulation tissue with Subacute
and Chronic Inflammation (non-specifie).”

Si el Dr. Sevilla fué el que envio a Dee Se al Dr. Chikiameo en
1951, entonces debia ser otro y diferente el paciente a quien el Dr.
Chikiameo habfa estado tratando con el nombre de José Dy desde
el 19 de abril de 1948 hasta el 20 de enero de 1951. Si D2e Se y el
Dr. Chikiameo eran ya antiguos conoc'dos, ;qué necesidad tenfa
Dee Se de una recomendacién del Dr. Sevilla? Esta recomendacién
llevada por Dee Se al Dr. Chikiamco nos convence que Dee Se era
el nuevo paciente y no el antiguo: que Dee Se y José Dy eran dos
aistintas personas.

Cuando acudié a los Drs. Lee v Sevilla y enviado al Dr. Chi-
kiamco, Dee Se ya estaba aseguradn. Si €l solicité el seguro para
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medrar o favorecer a sus beneficiarios haciendo creer que gozrba
de buena salud cuando en realidad ya padecia de cincer por ries
afios, jpor qué entregé al Dr. Chikiamco la recomendacién (Exh. 2)
cel Dr. Sevilla? ;Para que se descubriese més tarde su impostura?
Eso es contrario al sentido comin. Debia de haber destruido la
recomendacién y proponerse no ver ya al Dr. Chikiameco.

El tratamiento de José Dy de cerca de ires afios no se hubfa
hecho exclusivamente por el Dr. Chikiamco, porque habia estado
fuera de Filipinas por seis meses y la Dra. Carmen Chikiamco, de
la misma clinica, traté al paciente en lugar de aquél. Es extraiio
que el testimonio de ella — que hubiera sido una excelente corro-
boracién -— no se haya presentado ante el juzgado sin explicar
la razén.

El Dr. Chikiamco, segin €l, fué honrado con un lauriat por
José Dy, su paciente, en 26 de diciembre de 1950; pero existe prueha
€1 autos de que Dee Se estaba en Dagupan en dicho dia y salié
para Manila el 27 después de las fiestas de Dagupan.

La declaracién del Dr. chzno Parayno, médico residente del
Hospital Provincial de P: an, de que la enf d de Dee
Se, (cancer en la regién nasofaringea) debia haber existido entre
cuatro y seis meses antes de su muerte en 22 de junio de 1951 apoya

las opiniones de los cuatro doctores de las casas asegnradoras.

Las opiniones de estos cuatro dectores, las de dos directnres
médicos de las mismas casas de segmios, las de los Drs, Lee, S vil'a,
Pefias y Parayno, son de mas peso, a nuestro juicio, que la decla-
racién no corroborada del Dr. Chikiamco,

Los cuatro médicos de las casas aseguradoras son los que de-
Dian tener interés en saber el verdacero estado de salud del sol'ci-
tante, y si expidieron certificados de buena salud serd porque esta-
ban convencidos de la verdad de lo que certificabin. No hay el
menor indicio de que ellos hayan obrado de mala fe. No existe en
autos ninguna prueba de que Dee Se haya engafiado a las casas
aseguradoras haciendo creer que él gozaba de buena sa'ud cuando
en realidad estaba enfermo de cincer. La mala fe debe probarse.

Creemos que el juzgado infericr no erré al concluir que Dee Se
y José Dy no eran una misma persona y que Dze Se gozaba de
buena salud al solicitar su seguro. Como no ex’ste prucba de que
Dee Se habfa emmnleado fraude y engafio para obtener las dos pé-
lizas de seguro, fuerza es concluir que el juez a quo no cometié el
tercer error artibuido a él.

En cuanto al cuarto error, el nuevo Cédigo Civil dispone que
“In the absence of stipulation, attorney’s fees and expenses of liti-
gation, other than judicial costs, cannot be recovered, except:
X X X (5) Where the defendant acted in gross and evident bad
faith in refusing to satisfy the plaintiff’s plainly valid, just and
demandable claim;” (Art. 2208, Cédigo Civil de Filipinas.)

En el caso presente, creemos que la demandada no obré con
manifiesta y evidente mala fe al no pagar el importe de las dos pé-
lizas. El trimite de siete meses demuestra la precaucién que
ha tenido en cercicrarse de si Dee Se era el mismo José Dy que
habia sido tratado por el Dr Chikiameo por cerca de tres anrs
Teniendo a la vista la i i6n del Dr. Chi
que estuviese en lugar de la Philamlife hubiera hecho lo mismo.
Si, después de una vista larga en que declararon varics doctores,
el Juzgado ha llegado a la conclusién de que Dee Se no era el mismo
José Dy, paciente por tres afios del Dr. Chikiameo, no se debe de-
ducir necesariamente que la demandada ha obrado con abierta y
evidente mala fe. Creemos que la decisién del tribunal inferior,
condenando 2 la demandada a pacar P10,000 para honorarios de
abogado, no estd justificada: el demandante es quien debe pagarlos
a su abogado.

Se revoca la sentencia apelada en cuanto condena a la deman-
dada a pagar P10,000 como honorarios de abogado, y se confirma
en todo lo demas.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Montemayor, Reyes; Juya Bautista Angelo;
Labrador y Concepcién, J.J., conformes,
Padille, J., took no part.
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v

Eugene Arthur Perkins, Plaintiff-Appellee, vs. Benguet Consoli-
dated Mining Company, et al., Defend: ; Benguet Cq lidated Min-
ing Company, Defendunt-Appellant, Nos. L-1981, L-1982, May 28,
1954, Pablo, J.

1. DECISIONS; EFFECT OF DECISION OF A FOREIGN
COURT AGAINST A DECISION OF A COURT IN THE PI'IL-
TPPINES. — The doctrine of Coke (Coke on Littleton, 325%)
“that where there are two conflicting judgments on a claiin
or demand . . The two judgments neutralize each other and
both parties may assert their claims anew,” is not icable in

los de Nueva York para pedir precisamente que se ejecutase dichs
sentencia. La mocién de reconsideracién dice:

“The only purpose of his New York action was to enfsree
his final Philippine judgment. x x x (pag. 12.)

x x x x x x

“All that plaintiff sought by his complaint in the New York
suit was to enforce the final judgment of the Phiiippine courts,
by securing the return of the certificates, the ownership of whieh
had already been d ined by the said jud XX X.

“Plaintiff, in pursuing the New York suit, far from having

The litigants, whether they are citizens or
foreigners, should respect the decisions of Philippine Courts;
but if they choose to resort to a foreign court, asking for
a remedy that is incompatible with the execution of a decision
obtained in the Philippines and obiain a decision that is adverse,
they should not be permitted to repudiate the decision of the
foreign court and to ask the enforcement of the decis'on of the
Philippine court which they have abandoned. To permit them
to litigate in that manner is contrary to the order and public
interest in the Philippines hecause it disturbs the orderly
administration of law.

the present case.

2. ID.: COMMENCEMENT OF A NEW CASE ABROAD, ABAN-
DONING THE DECISION OF A PHILIPPINE COURT. —
“One who subjects himself to the jurisdiction of a Court, even
where he would not otherwise be subject to suit, becomes subject
to any valid claim asserted against him directly relating to the
subject matter of his voluntarily initiated proceeding.”

8. ID.; ID.; THE CASE OF QUERUBIN VS. QUERUBIN NOT
APPLICABLE. — The case of Querubin versus Querubin
(1.-8692, July 19, 1950), is not applicable in the present case.
In the present case the decision of the New York court was
not obtained by Mrs. Perkins behind the back of the plain‘iff;
on the contrary, that decision was rendered by virtue of the
complaint filed by Mr. Perkins, he was the p'aintiff, the initia-
tor of the case.in which was discussed for the second time the
owner of the 24,000 shares and, abandoning the decision of the
court of Manila, he asked that said shares be declared his
exclusive property. After the trial in which the parties had
ample opportunity to be heard, decision was rendered declaring
Mus. Perkins owner of the shares. Thijs decision is final between
the two of them. The plaintiff has no right to impugn said
decision rendered in a case commenced by him before a Court
m New York where plaintiff and defendant are citizens.

4. ID.; ID.; DISTINCTION BETWEEN EXECUTION OF FO-
REIGN DECISION AND TRANSPOSING OF THE SAME AS
RES JUDICATA. —- There exists a difference betweer asking
for the enforcement of foreign judgment in the Philippines and
that of preventing the defense of res judicata. To order the
enforcement of a foreign decision implies a direct act of sov-
ereignty; to recognize the defense of a judicial cause only the
spirit of justice enters; hence Sections 14 and 48-a of Rule 39.
do not require that there be a special reason in order that the
defense of res judicata may be accepted as required in Sce. 47
which we abolished by the resolution of August 9, 1946, The
reason is simple; the execution of res judicata 1s not asked for
as the enforcement of a foreign decision is asked; 1t is solely
presented as a defense against an action.

Claro M. Recto & Perkins, Ponce Enrile, Contreras & Gomez
for the plaintiff-appellee.

Ross, Selph, Carrascoso & Janda for the appellant.
RESOLUCION
PABLO, M.:

El d d pide la r 16n de la decisién sosteniendc
que no abandoné la sentencia que él habia obtenido en la causa
tramitada en los Tribunales de Manila, porque él habfa acudido a
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the i of the rights granted him under the
Philippine judgments, sought to enforce them, x x x.” (pags. 18-14.)

La demanda enmendada que se presenté en Nueva York habla por
si misma, Contiende dos causas de accién: en la primera, el de-
mandante alega hechos que dieron lugar a que se dictase una decisién
en su favor por los tribunales de Filipinas en que se declaraba que
las 24,000 acciones de la Benguet Consolidated Mining Company eran
bienes gananciales del demandante y su esposa,J y no _propiedad ex-
clusiva de Mrs. Perkins; en que se la ordenaba que rindiera cuenta
de los bienes gananciales que estaban en su poder y que los entre-
gase al demandante; y que, en vez de cumplir dicha sentencia, clla
huyé de Filipinas y deposité las acciones en poder de la Guaranty
Trust Company of New York. Como segunda cause de accién, el
demandante alega hechos que tienden a establecer que las 24,000
acciones de la Benguet Consolidated Mining Company son de su
exclusiva propiedad y vedia lo siguiente:

“Wherefore, judgment

defendants:

this plaintiff demands against the

“1. Adjudging and declaring the plaintiff herein to be the
true and lawful owner of said certificates numbered 1484, 1595, 2176,
2238, 2773, 2780 and 2781 of stock of said Benguet Consolidated
Mining Company.

“2. Permanently enjoining and restraining the said defendants,
and each of them, from delivering, assigning or transferring said
twenty-four thousand (24,000) shares of Benguet Consolidated Mining
Company stock to any other person except to the plaintiff herein.

“3. Directing the said defendants, and each of them, to-deliver
to the plaintiff herein the said twenty-four thousand (24,000) shares
of Benguet Consolidated Mining Company stock.

“4, Requiring the said defendants, and each of them, to account
tc the plaintiff herein and to pay over to said plaintiff any and all
dividends which have been or may be received by either of them upon
said twenty-four thousand (24,000) shares of Benguet Consolidated
Mining Company stock, and for the costs and disbursements of th's
action, together with any other and further relief as to the Court
may seem just and proper.” (Exhibit A-64, pags. 20-21.)

Como se ve, el demandante no pidi6 la entrega a él, como marido
o administrador de los bienes gananciales, de las 24,006 acciones;
no pidié que se condenase a Mrs, Perkins y la Guaranty Trust Co.
a entregarle las acciones en cumplimiento de la sentencia del Tribunal
de Manila: lo que pidié6 fué (1) que fuese declarado duefo legal de
las 24,000 acciones de la Benguet Consolidated Mining Company;
(2) que se prohibiese a los demandados a entregarlas o trasferirlas a
cualquiera persona; (3) que las mismas acciones fuesen entregadas
a él (como duefio indudablemente y no como administrador); y (4)
que los demandados rindiesen cuenta de los dividendos de dichas
acciones,

De acuerdo con la primera causa de accién y la decisién obtenida
por el demandante en Manila, €] era solamente conduefio de las
24,000 acciones, o propietario de la mitad de las mismas, con derecho
a poseer todas ellas como administrador de los bienes gananciales.
Cuando pidi6 en su demanda enmendada que fuese declarado duefio
de las 24,000 acciones, abandoné necesariamente la sentencia que
declaraba que dichas acciones eran bienes gananciales; al pedir que
fuese declarado duefio legal de las acciones, abrié de nuevo el pleito
sobre la propiedad de dichas acciones, considerando inatil y de
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ningfin valor la decisién de los tribunales de Manila. Que él aban-
doné dicha decisién es evidente; €] pidi6 que fuese declarado duefic
de las 24,000 acciones; en vez de pedir que se ordenase por el
Tribunal de Nueva York el cumplimiento y ejecucién de la sentencia
que él habfa obtenido en Filipinas. EI mismo, con su demanda en-
mendada suscitando de nuevo la propicdad de las acciones; deshizo
dicha decisién, implicitamente pid 6 su revoec 61 para q e pudiese
cbtener del Tribunal de Nueva York una decis'én declarandole duefio
legal de las accmnes. O estas acciones son gananciales, o son de la
iedad del d d : no pueden ser gananciaies j,
al mismo t)empo, de la propiedad exclusiva del demandante. Si
son gananciales, no pueden ser del demandante, y si son de su
exclusiva propiedad, entonces rechazaba, o por lo menos nugaka la
validez de la decisién de los tribunales de Filipinas: sostenia entonces
que él era el Gnico duefio de las 24,000 acciones. Si el objeto del
demandante al acudir a los tribunales de Nueva York era solamente
conseguir la posesién de las acciones, “the ownership of which had
already been determined by said judgment” (de Filipinas), ;por
qué no lo pidi6 asi en su demanda cnmendada en vez de pedir que
sea declarado duefio de las mismas? Si en su demanda enmendada en
Nueva York no hubiera el demandante pedido mas que el cumplimiento
de la decisién del Tribunal de Manila, sin suscitar de nuevo la cues-
tién de Ja propiedad de las acciones y el Tribunal de Nueva York
hubiese dictado una decisién contraria a la del Tribunal de Fili-
pinas, esté Tribunal probablemente no titubearia en no honrar esa
nueva decisién y harfa cumplir la primera. Y asi la Sra. de Perkins,
a espaldas de sumarido, reclamando la propiedad de las acciones
en Nueva York, hubiera obtenido sentencia a su favor, este Tr biinal
indudablemente no tendrfa ningln reparo en ignorar tal decisién y,
a peticién de parte, harfa cumplir la decisién dictada por el Tribunal
Filipinas.

Bueno es hacer constar que la demanda enmendada no fué fir-
mada por el demandante ni por sus abogados en Filipinas, sino por
sus abogados en América, Sres. Platt, Taylor & Walker, pero la
actuacién de éstos le obliga.

Se invoca una decisién de esto Tribunal que, en parte, dice asi:

“x x x Creemos que este Tribunal no debe hacer cumplir
un decreto dictado por un tribunal extranjero, que con‘riv’ene
nuestras leyes y los sanos principios de moralidad que informan
nuestra estructura social sobre relaciones familiares.

x X x x X x

“Las sentencias de tribunales extranjeros no pueden ponerse

del Tribunal de California en gue se le habia concedido la custo-
dia de la menor. Este Tribunal no reconocié el decreto porque era
centrario a la moral y a la ley; porque “la menor estaria bajo el
cuidado de su madre que fué declarada judicialmente culpable de
infidelidad conyugal; viviria bajo un techo juntamente con ¢l hombre
que deshornér a su madre y ofendié a su padre.”

La custodia de hijos menores en Filipinas se encomienda al
cényuge inocente; por esta razon, este Tribunal, al decidir el recurso
de habeas corpus en apelacién, Gesatendié el decreto del Tribunal
d= California.

En el caso presente, la decisién del Tribunal de Nueva York
no ha sido obtenida por la Sra. de Perkins a espaldas del demandante;
al contrario, esa decisién fué dictada en virtud de la demanda
entablada por el Sr. Perkins; ¢l fué el actor, el iniciador de la causa
en que se discutié por segunda vez la propiedad de las 24.000
acciones y, abandonando la decisién del Tribunal de Manila, pidié
que dichas acciones fuesen declaradas de su exclusiva propiedad.
Después de una vista en que las partes habian tenido amplia opor-
tunidad de ser oidas, se dicté sentencia declarando a la Sra. de
Perkins dueiia de las acciones. Esta sentencia es final entre los dos.
El demandante no tiene derecho a impugnar dicha decisién dictada
en un asunto mlclado por él ante el Tribunal de Nueva York en que
ellos, d dada, son ciudad Es inapli
doctrina de Querubin contra Querubin en la presente causa.

Suponiendo que el Tribunal de Nueva York hubiera decidido
que las 24,000 acciones eran de la exclusiva propiedad del demar-
dante, y la Sra. de Perkins hubiera venido a Filipinas para pedir
judicialmente la particién de dichas 24 000 acciones que son bienes
se habria allanado el a tal d da de
particién? Indudablemente que no; él habria nlegado como defensa de
7es judicata la decisién del Tribunal de Nueva York en que se le
declaraba duefio exclusivo de las 24,000 acciones; habrfa alegado que
el Tribunal de Nueva York tenia jurisdice’én sobre la cosa litizivsa
no habria permitido que la decisién del Tribunal de Manila fuese
reconocida. Precisamente pidi6 que fuese declarado duefio de las
24,000 acciones porque no estaba conforme en que diches acciones
fuesen sol 2 iales: su interés era obtener una
sentencia incompatible con la del Tribunal de Filipinas. Y ahora
que la decisién no favorece al demandante pero sf a la Sa. de
Perkins, jpor que esa decisién no zonstituye res judicata y tiene que
ser nula, por qué el Tribunal de Nueva York no tiene jurisdice on
scbre la materia litigiosa, y por qué la decisién del Tribunal de
Nueva York no debe tener ningin valor en Filipinas? Para el
demandante el Tribunal de Nueva York tiene jurisdiceién si la

o iales,

en vigor en Filipinas si son contrarias a las leyes, bres y
orden pilblico. Si dichas decisiones, por la simple teoria de
reciprecidad, cortesfa judicial y urbanidad internacional son base
suficiente para que nuestros tribunales decidan a tenor de
las mismas, entonces nuestros juzgados estarfan en la pobre tesi-
tura de tener que dictar sentencias contrarias a nuestras leyes,
costumbres y orden piiblico. Esto es absurdo.” (Querubin
contra Querubin, 47 0. G. (Supp. 12) 315.)

Por esta doctrina el demandante rostiene que la decisién de Nueva
York no debe ser reconocida en Filipinas.

Hay confusién en cuanto a la semejanza de las dos causas.
En el asunto de Querubin ocurrieron los siguientes hechos: Sil-
vestre Querubin, filipino, y Margaret Querubin, americana, se ca-
saron en América y tuvieron una hija l'amada Q -erubma; porque
la esposa cometié adu]teno el marido pidio divorein; se le adj-d co
el decreto corr ddndole la cus'od’'a de la menor.
Posteriormente la esposa se casé con el hombre con quien habfa co-
metido adulterio, tuvieron una hija y después acogieron a una como
protegida, y alegando que tenfa bastantes recursos para mantencr
a la hija legal y a la protegida, la esposa pidié la custodia de su
hija Querubina cuando Querubin y su hija ya no estaban en Ios
Angeles porque ya habian venido a Filipinas; el Tribunal Supremo
de Los Angeles, California, se la concedié, ordenando al padre que
pase una pensién mensual de $30 a Querubina. La esposa presentéd
en Vigan, Ilocos Sur, un recurso de habeas corpus pidiendo la eus-
todia de la menor, fundando su reclamacién cn el segundo decrcto
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le es f , pero no sl le es con(rarm Es inconsistente
la teorfa del d ey, por insosten ble.

“Une who subjects himself to the jurisdiction of a Court, even
where he would not otherwise be subject to suit, hecomes subjeet
to any valid claim asserted against him directly relating to the
subject matter of his voluntarily initiated proceeding.” (Hoxsey
vs. Hoffpauir, 180 F.2d 84.)

“It does not lie in the mouth of one who has affirmed the
jurisdiction of a court in a particular matter, to accomplish a pur-
pose to afterward deny such jurisdiction to escape a pena'ty.”
(Littleton v. Burgess, 16 L.R.A. [N.S.] 49, 16 Wyo. 58, 91 Pac.
832.)

“To permit one to invoke the exercise of a jurisdiction within
the general powers of a court and then to reverse its order upon
the ground that it had no jurisdiction would be to allow one to
trifle with the ccurts. The principle is one of estoppel in the
interest of a sound administration of the laws x x x closes the
mouth of the complainant.” (Spence et ux. v, State Nat, Bank of
El Paso et al., 5 S. W, (2d), 754.) (Commission of Appeals of
Texas, Sec. B, May 2, 1928.)

El demandante contiende que !a decisién del Tribunal de Nueva
York no tiene efecto como res judicata en Filipinas, porque Manresa
dice que “En cuanto a las sentenc’as extranjeras, de mayor impor-
tancia cada dfa, debera atenderse a las reglas que sobre su ejecucién,
con la cual se relaciona su firmeza, contiene la lay Procesal, dis-
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tinguiendo segiin los varios casos que é? regula, y no atr“buyendn
efecto de cosa juzgada a la no se haya
gu ejecuciébn.” (Manresa, 531.)

La ley de enjuiciamiento civil espafiola no esta en vigor en Fili-
pinas. En su lugar esti la Regla 39, articulé 44, que dispone lo
siguiente:

“El efecto de una sentencia u orden finales dictadas por urn
tribunal ¢ juez de Filipinas o de los Estados Unidos, ¢ de cual-
quicr estado o territorio de los Estados Unidos, que tenga ju-
risdiccibn para dictar dicha sentencia u orden, pueden ser el
siguiente: x x x (b) En los demés casos, la sentencia ast dictada
es, respecto de la materia sobre la cual recayd, concluyente
entre las partes y sus derecholabientes por titulo subsiguiente
al comienzo de la accién o actuacién especial, que (itiguen sovre
la misma cosa, bajo el mismo titulo y en la misma capacidad.”

Y el articulo 48 (a) trata del efecto de las sentencias dictadas en
el extranjero, dice:

“Si la sentencia fuere sobre una cosa determinada, sera con-
cluyente en cuanto al titulo de la misma;”

No es preciso, segtin estos articulos, que para que la excepcién de
cosa juzgada, consistente en una decisién extranjera, pueda ponerse
con exito en Filipinas, haya mediado un ju'cio admtiendo dicha
decisién.

No debe confundirse la ejecucién de una sentencia extranjera
con la excepcién de res judicata. Existe diferencia entre pedir
en Filipinas el cumplimiento de una decisién extranjera (enforce-
ment of foreign judgment) y presentar la defensa de res judicata.
Ordenar el cumplimiento de una sentencia extranjera implica acto
directo de soberanfa; reconocer la excepcién de cosa juzgzda sola-
mente interviene el sentido de justicia; de ahf que el articulo 44,
de la Regla 89, no dispone que haya mediado actuacién especial
para que la excevcién de res judicata fuese aceptada como se exige
en el articulo 47.

El procedimiento para pedir el cumplimiento de uns decisién
extranjera no es igual en las siguiente naciones:

En Filipinas, antes de la derogacén por este Tr'bunal en su
regolucién de 9 de agosto de 1946, del articulo 47 de la Regla 89,
era el siguiente:

“E] efecto de un expediente judicial de un tribunal de los
Estados Unidos, o de unc de sus Estados o territorios, es
en las Islas Filipinas el mismo que en los Estados Unidos o en
el Estado o territorio en donde se tramité, s6o que, para
que tenga vigor aqui, es menester que haya mediade un juicio
o actuacién especial al efecto.” (Art, 47, Regla 39.)

A falta de procedimiento previamente establec’do, creemns que
para que se pueda pedir cumplimiento de una decisién extranjera en
Filipinas, deberd presentarse una accién fundada en ella.

En Italia: “Of all the foreign countries enforcing foreign ju'g-
ments as such, Italy has had the distinction for many years of
having adopted the most liberal policy. According to this system
the status of the foreign judgment is fixed once for sll. The
review of the judgment relates only to certain points which have
no reference to the correctness of the decision. Before the foreign
judgment is enforced a preliminary proceeding takes place (Guidizie
di delibazione) whose object it is to ascertain whether the judgment
was rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction, whe hir the
defendant had due notice of the original proceeding, whether he
appeared or was duly defaulted, and whether the enforcement of
the foreign judgment wonld be contrary to the public policy of
Italy., If the judgment satisfies these requirements, the ju:tic;,
or injustice of the plaint'ff’s claim will not be reviewed. \_The
above system is derived from the principle of the equality of all
states, and rests upon the fundamental assumption that the judg-
ments of other states are entitled to full trust and confidence. As
in the case of domestic judgments, a foreign judgment so far as its
merits are concerned, imports absolute verity — an irrebuttable
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presumption being created in favor of its fairness and inherent
justice.”

En Francia: “Under the ordinance of 1629 the French courts
would enforce foreign jud ined by French without
a review of the merits. No effect would be given, however, to
foreign jud, against a Frencl As against them a new
suit would have to be brought on the original cause of actiom.
According to Maleville the law was not changed by the Code Na-
poleon, but this view is now generally abandoned. The system
actually prevailing is one which reviews the merits of the case
(révision au fond). It does not content itself with inquiring into
the jurisdiction of the foreign court, the regularity of the service
of the summons, appearance or default, and the public polcy of the
state in which the proceeding for the enforcement of the foreign
judgment is brought; but examines the merits of the decision itself.
The French doctrine rests upon an assumption diametrically opposed
tc that underlying the Italian system, and emphasizes the fact that
while the different states of the civilizad world are in theory
equal and entitled to the same respcct, their courts do not actually
inspire the same degree of confidence in regard to their dec'sions.
It takes notice of the fact that the judges of certain countries are
less competent than those of others and are sometimes not free
from bias against defendants belonging to a foreign country. Under
these circumstances it is felt to be the duty of a state, b fore allow-
ing the execution of fore'gn judgments within its territory, to
ascertain whether the foreign judgment was fair and just.”

En Inglaterra: “The English law by requiring a suit on
the foreign Judgment d\ffers from the other fore'gn sys‘ems in
th: mode of for the p of money. It
differs from them also in that it regards fore'gn j:dozmen's as
enfoxceahle in prm:lp ‘e and imposes upon the d:fendant the burden
of i the d by raw. As regards the
cenclusive effect of foreign judgments the English law stands
between the French and Ital'an systems, Originally foreign judg-
ments were regarded as being only prima facie evidence of the
justice of plaintiff’s claim, but since the case o: odard v. Gray
they are ordinarily conclusive. In this respect ‘the English law
has abandoned the viewpoint of the French law and accepted that
of Italy (before the decree of July 30, 1919). It does not go so far,
however, as does the former Italian law, for in exceptional cases it
will try the merits of the case over again. The law appears to
be established in England that forelgn Judgments may be 1mpeached
if procured by false and fr and
of the plaintiff, even if the same questmn of fraud was presented
to and decided by the foreign court. Such fraud may be shown
although it cannot be done without a retrial of the case. The
cbjeet of such retrial is not, however, to show that the foreign
court came to a wrong conclusion. Courts of equity may enjoin
the enforcement of judgments, domestic or foreign, if they have
been procured through fraud, accident, mistake or surprise.” (29
Yale Law Journal 194-199.)

En cuanto al reconocimiento de decisiones extranjeras como res
Jjudicata, varios autores sostienen que, sigu‘endo la teorfa del derecho
romano, una sentencia tiene la naturaleza de un contrato o cuasicon-
trato y que la obligacién que emana de dicha sentencia cuando se
presenta como defensa de res judicata, debe considerarse como cual-
quiera otra obligacién. “By submitting the case to the foreign
court, the parties are deemed, according to this view, to have made
an implied agreement that they will abide by the decision of the
court. The obligation arising from the judgment is referred, there-
fore, to the will of the parties rather than being derived directly
from the sovereign power of the foreign state.” (29 Yale Law
Journal 190.)

En Filipinas no es necesario teorizar porque los articulos 44
v 48 (a) de la Regla 39 son claros: no exigen que haya mediado ae-
tuacién espec'al sobre la decision ecxtranjera para que ella surta
cfecto como defensa de cosa juzoauda, La razén es sencilla: no se
pide la ejecucién de la res judicata como se, pide al cumplimiento
de una decisién extranjera; solamente se presenta contra una accién
como defensa. Ahora bien, si se pidiese por la Sra. de Perkins
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el pago en Filipinas de los dividendos de las 24 00) acciones de la
Benguet Consolidated Mining Ce., entonces ya no es suficiente
la simple exhibicién de la decision del Tribunal de Nueva York; es
indispensable que ella entable la accién correspondiente en ¢l juzgad,
competente pera pedir una sentencia fundada en la del Tribunal
de Nueva York. Hemos estuidado d:tenidamente las dec’s onés
extranjeras y nacionales que tienen relacién con la presente causa, y
no hemos encontrado ninguna razén por qué la decisién del Tribunal
de Nueva York no debe tener efecto como res judicata entre las
partes litigantes,

Si el demandante huhiera obtcnido sentenc'a a su favor en su
demanda pidiend> que fuese declarado dvefio absoluto de las 24 000
acciones, él habrfa sostenido en América, en Filipinas y en todas
partes que dicha decisibn era vélida; pero como la fué adversa,
arguys hoy en la presente causa que dich4d dec'sién es nula y de
ningtn valor y que no tiene efecto de cosa juzgada. Les litigantes,
ya sean naturales; va extranjeros, deben respetar las decisiones de
los tribunales de Filipinas; pero si optaran por acudir a un tribunal
extranjero, pidiendo un remedio inccmpatible con la disposicién de la
sentencia obtenida en Filipinas y obtuviesen una decis’én adversa,
no se les deberfa permitir que rerudiaran luego la del trikamal
extranjero y pidieran el cumplimiento de la d-cis'61 da] tribumal
de Filipinas que ellos habian abandonado. Permitrles I'tigar de
esa manera es contrario al orden e interés publico en Filipinas porque
perturba la ordenada administracién de la ley.

Los errores atribuidos a Tribunal del Nueva York hubieran
sido resueltos por el Tribunal Supremo de los Estados Unidos si el
demandante no hubiese abandonado su apelac'éa.

El demandante pide que se aplique la siguiente doc‘rina de

declarada. Los dividendos vencidos de dichas acciones, que asc’enden
a P1,019,245.92, ya habian'sido satisfechos, por ejec.c.6a; en Cau-
fornia, y no por acto voluntario de la d-manda. Los mismos divi-
dendos no deben pagarse o otra persona, especialmente al dcman-
dante que fué vencido en la cuestién sobre la propiedad. EI sobre-
simiento de la demanda estd bien fundado.

Se deniega la mocién de reconsideracién.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Padilla, Jugo; Bautista Angelo; Labrador
and Concepcion, J.J., conformes,

vI

Joseph Feldman, Petitioner, vs. Hon. Demetr'o B. Encarnasion,
as Judge of the Court of First Instance of Rizal, Victorio Lachenal,
Alfonso Lachenal and Jose Villaflor, Respondents, No. L-7021, July
31, 1954, Padilla, J.

EXECUTION PENDING APPEAL; APPEALS; EFFECT OF
PERFECTED APPEAL ON JURISDICTION OF TRIAL
COURT: EXCEPTIONS; MATTERS INVOLVED AND LI-
TIGATED IN APPEAL. — In a judgment rendered on the

by the d d the Court of First Instance or-
dered the plaintiff to vacate and surrender to the defendants
the property in question and to pay the rentals up to the date
the possession of the entire property shall have been received
by them. Plaintiff appealed from this judgment to the Court
of Appeals. After the approval of the record on appeal, de-
fend filed in the Court of First Instance a motion, praying

Coke: “That where there are two conflicting jud S on a
claim or demand, there is an estopp2] against an estopp~l w'’'ch
‘setteth the matter at large’. Coke on Littleton, 3250. The two
judgments neutralize each other and both parties may assert thuir
claims anew.”  Sin decidir si esta doctrina = debe adop‘ars- o
no en esta jurisdiccion, se puede decir que 12 m'sma no es eplec ble
al caso presente. La parte petitoria de la d manda enmendda es
del tenor siguiente: .

“WHEREFORE, it is respectfully prayed that judgm-nt be
entered in favor of the plaintiff and aga'nst the d-fendants B nguet
Consolidated Mining Company for the sum of P71.379.90, ¢ nsisting
of the dividends which have been declared and made p*’y be on the
said 52,874 shares in defendant Bonguet Conso'idated Mining C m-
pany registered in plaintiff’s name which remain unpaid, as herein-
before alleged, together with interest thercon at the rate of sx
rer cent (6%) per annum from the date of {'ling of the or'gin.l
complaint herein until paid; that the defendant B-nguet Consolidated
Mining Company be ordered to pay i pla'ntiff all dividends dec'ared
in the future on the said shares, so long as they stand in p'ain‘iff’s
name, whenever said dividends are made payable; that defendant Ben-
guet Consolidated Mining Company be vequired and ordered to re-
cognize the right of the plaintiff to the control and disposal of caid
shares, so standing in his name, to the exclusion of all others; that
the additional defendants Idonah Slade Perkins and G:orge H.
Fingelhard be each held to have no interest or eloim 1n the subjcet
matter of the controversy between plaintiff and defendant, B>nguet
Consolidated Mining Company, or in or under the judgment to bz
rendered herein and that by the said judgment they, and each of
them, be excluded therefrom; and that the plaintiff be awarded the
costs of this suit and general relief.”

El demandante no pide ser declarado duefis de las 24,000 acciones:
s6lo pide al pago por la Bengurt Consolidated M'ning Company de
los dividendos vencidos ¥ no pagados y fos dividendos que vayan
venciendo, y no expresa en qué concepto ha de recibir los dividendos:
si como administrador de los bienes ganarciales o ¢'mo duefio ¢b-
soluto.  Los dividendos son accesorios de las accicmes, ¢ mn el
interés sigue al capital, EI duefio de las acc'ones es el duefio de los
dividendos y es el que debe recibirles, a menos que disponga o‘ra

that the plaintiff be ordered to d-pssit with the c’erk of ‘le
trial court the accumulated rertals plus interest and the month-
ly rental until the decision appealed from shall have been fi-
nally disposed of by the appellate court. The trial court grant-
ed the motion. Plaintiff seeks by certiorari to annual the order
of the trial court. Plaintiff contends that upon the approval
of the record on appeal, the trial court losses its jurisdiction
over the case and, consequently, the order complained of was
entered without jurisdiction. On the other hand, defendants
claim that despite the appeal, the trial court retains the power
“to issue orders for the protection and preservation of the
rights of the parties which do not involve any matter litigated
by the appeal.”” In support of their pretense, they cite the
assignment of errors made by the plaintiff that the lower court
erred in holding (1) that the consent of plaintiff to the waiver
of his rights over the leased property was voluntary and for
good consideration and not under duress; (2) that plaintiff
had not exercised the option granted by the original lease; and
(3) that plaintiff was a possessor in bad faith and the defend-
ants in good faith. Held: It would seem that the defendants’
theory is that taking into consideration the assignment of er-
rors of the plaintiff, the directive to the latter to deposit with
the clerk of court the accumulated unpaid rentals including
interest thereon and the future rentals until the appeal is fi-
nally decided, does not involve a matter litigated in the appeal
of the plaintiff in the original motion. The contention is not
well taken, because if the consent of the plaintiff to the waiver
was not voluntary and for good consideration but under duress,
he might be entitled to exercise the option granted in the lease;
because if plaintiff had exercised the option granted, he would
be entitled to continue in possession of the leased premises, and
because if he was a possessor in good faith, then the judgment
of the trial court directing the plaintiff to vacate the premises
and to pay the rentals would have been to be reversed. The
accumulated unpaid rentals and interest thereon and the fu-
ture rentals of the leased premises are then matters involved
and litigated in the appeal. To order the deposit thereof with
the clerk of court is virtually, if not actually, an execution of

cosa. Como la propiedad de las 24,000 acciones ha sido debid:
decidida va por el Tribunal de Nueva York, a irstenc’a prce’samen-
te del demandante, sus dividendos deben ser pagados a las duefia
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the jud; which the trial court cannot direct but for good
reasons to be stated in a special order and to be set forth in
the record on appeal.
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L]
Juan T. Chuidian and Jose S. Zafra for the peitioner.

Sizto de la Costa, Benjomin C. Alonzo and Protgmo Amonoy for
the respondents.

DECISION
PADILLA, J.:

The petition seeks to annul the order of the respondent court
entered on 30 June 1953, the dispositive part of which reads as
follows:

IN VIEW OF THE FOREGOING, the second motion of
the defendants in the opinion of this Court is in order, and
the plaintiff is hereby ordered to deposit with the Clerk of
Court of this Court the accumulated unpaid rentals including
interest thereon in the total amount of P119,700.00 and the
corresponding rental on the said property every month from
May 1, 1953 until the appeal is finally decided; x x x

for lack of jurisdiction of the respondent court to enter it.

The petitioner and the respondents are agreed that in civil case
No. 7799 of the Court of First Instance of Rizal entitled Joseph
Feldman, plaintiff; Mercedes H. Vda. de Hidalgo, intervenor, as
party-plaintiff; Hon. Herbert Brownell, Jr., Attorney .General of
the United States in lieu of the Philippine Alien Property Adminis-
trator of the United States, intervenor -versus- Ramon L. Corpus,
ete., defendants: Victorio Lachenal, Ildefonso Lachenal, and José

Villaflor, joinders, as parties-defendant, judgment was rendered on °

the counterclaim of the defendants, the pertinent dispositive part
of which reads as follows:

X X X. On the of the d dants, the plain-
tiffs and his business partners, Henry File and George Feldman,
are hereby ordered to vacate and to surrender to the defend-
ants the property formerly known as Varadero de Navotas x x x
and to pay the defendants, by way of rentals on the shipyard
the amount of P1,000.00 a month from and beginning June 1,
1946, up to the date the physical possession of the entire pro-
perty or shipyard with all its accessories and improvements
thereon shall have been actually returned to and duly received
by the defendants, the registered owners thereof, with legal
interest thereon from the date of the filing of the counterclaims;

that from such judgment a notice of appeal, an appeal bond and
a record on appeal were filed on 30 October 1950; that on 10 March
1952 the trial court issued an order which reads as follows:

There being no opposition to the amended record on ap-
peal, dated March 10, 1952, filed by counsel for the plaintiff,
which is also adopted by the above-named intervenor, and find-
ing the name to be correct and in order, the said amended re-
cord on appeal is hereby approved.

The Clerk of Court is hereby directed to certify and ele-
vate the same to the Court of Appeals, together with all the
exhibits adduced during the trial, oral and documentary, within
the period preseribed by the Rules of Court;

that the record on appeal was forwarded to and docketed in the
Court of Appeals as CA-GR No. 9875-R; that on 3 August 1953 the
case was forwarded to this Court by the Court of Appeals; that
on 14 May 1953, the respondents Victorio Lachenal, Alfonso La-
chenal and José Villaflor, defendants therein, filed in the respond-
ent court a supplemental motion, the prayer of which reads as
follows:

1. That the plaintiff (now petitioner) be ordered to de-
posit with the Clerk of this Court (Court of First Instance of
Rizal) the accumulated rentals plus interest in the total amount
of P119,700.00 and the monthly rental of P1,000.00 every month
beginning June 1, 1953, until the decision app-aled f om shall
have been finally considered and disposed of by the appellate
court;

2. That the plaintiff and his business partners be ordered
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and enjoined not to sell, encumber, remove, dismantle, or olhex-
wise dispose of any of the i
and motor vehicles listed in the Annex “B” hereto attached,
without the consent and approval by this Honorable Court:

that on 30 June 1953 the respondent court granted the motion in
an order the dispositive part of which is quoted at the beginning
of this opinion; and that a motion for reconsideration of the order
just referred to on the ground of lack of jurisdiction of the trial
(respondent) court was denied.

It is the contention of the petitioner that upon approval or
allowance of the record on appeal the respondent court lost its
jurisdiction over the case and, consequently, the order of 30 June
1953 complained of was entered without jurisdiction.

On the other hand, the respondents claim that despite the ap-
peal the respondent court retains the power “to issue orders for
the protection and preservation of the rights of the parties which
do not involve any matter litigated by the appeal,” pursuant to
section 9, Rule 41. In support of their pretense they cite the as-
signment of errors made by the petitioner, appellant therein, to wit:

1. The lower court erred in holding that the consent of
appellant to the waiver of his rights over the waradero on
May 5, 1943 (Exhibit G-1) was voluntary and for good con-
sideration and not under duress;

2. The lower court erred in holding that the appellant
had not exercised the option granted by the original lease,
Exhibit “A”;

3. The lower court erred in finding that the appellant was
a possessor in bad faith, and the appellees in good faith, for
purposes of article 861 of the Civil Code. (pp. 10-11, appellant’s
brief, CA-GR No. 9375-R, now SC-GR No. L-7195.)

It would seem that the respondents’ theory is that taking into
consideration the assignment of errors of the petitioner, appellant
therein, the directive to the petitioner to deposit with the clerk of
court the accumulated unpaid rentals including interest thereon
amounting to 119,700 and the corresponding rental of the property
every month from 1 May 1953 until the appeal is finally decided,
does not involve a matter litigated in the appeal of the petitioner
in the original action. This contention is not well taken, because
if the consent of the petitioner, appellant therein, to the waiver was
not volurfary and for good consideration but under duress as he
contends, he might be entitled to exercise the option granted in
the lease; because if the petitioner, appellant therein, had exercised
the option granted as he contends, he would be entitled to continue
in possession of the leased premises; and because if he was a pos-
sessor in good faith, as he contends, then the judgment of the trial
court, which unfortunately has not been brought to us by the par-
ties but only the pertinent dispositive part directing the petitioner,
appellant therein, to vacate the leased premises and to pay the ren-
tals would have to be reversed. The accumulated unpaid rentals and
interest thereon and the future rentals of the leased premises are
then matters involved and litigated in the appeal. To order the
deposit thcleof with the clerk of court is virtually, if not actually,
an of the jud, which the r d court cannot
direct but for good reasons to be stated in a special order and to
be set forth in the record on appeal. (!) The good reasons do not
appear. The order complained of is not the one contemplated in
the rule just referred to because it was issued not while the case
was still within the jurisdiction of the respondent court. If it be
true as ded by the therein, that the
order of the respondent court complained of was just to supple-
ment the writ of execution issued against Mercedes H. Vda. de
Hidalgo, intervenor and party-plaintiff therein, who has not ap-
pealed from the judgment rendered against her, then it would be
pertinent to ask why the liability under the judgment of the inter-
venor and party-plaintiff who has not appealed by making the pe-
titioner, llant therein, ible for her. obligation or liability

(1) Sectlon 3, Rule 39,
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under the judgment? Are they severally (solidariamente) respon-

sible?

That part of the order which enjoins and prohibits the peti-
tioner, appellant therein, “to sell, encumber, remove, dnmantle or
otherwise dispose of any of the i 1lati;
ries and motor vehicles as listed aforesaid, without the consent and
approval of this Court,” is not being questioned by the petitioner.
It need not be passed upon.

The order in so far as it directs the petitioner, appellant therein,
to depoesit with the clerk of court the accumulated unpaid rentals
including interest thereon in the total amount of P119,700 and the
corresponding rental of the property every month from 1 May 1952
until the appeal is finally decided, is annulled and set aside for
lack of jurisdiction of the respondent court to enter it, without
pronouncement as to costs.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Montemayor; A. Reyes; Jugo: Bautista
Angelo, Labrador, Concepcion and J. B. L. Reyes, J.J., concur.

viI

Domingo de la Cruz, Plaintiff-Appellant, vs. Northern Theatri-
cal Enterprises Inc., et al., Defendants and Apellees, No, L-7089,
August 31, 1954, Montemayor, J.

1. EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEE; DAMAGES CAUSED TO EM-
PLOYEE BY A STRANGER CAN NOT BE RECOVERED
FROM EMPLOYERS; GIVING LEGAL ASSISTANCE TO EM-
PLOYEE IS NOT A LEGAL BUT A MORAL OBLIGATION.—
A claim of an empl against his for d caused
to the former by a stranger or outsider while said employee was in
the performance of his duties, presents a novel question which
under present legislation can not be decided in favor of the
employee., While it is to the interest of the employer to give
legal help to, and defend, its employee charged criminally in
court, in order to show that he was not guilty of any crime
either deliberately or through negligence, because should the
employee be finally held eriminally liable and he is found to
be insolvent, the employer would be subsidiarily liable, sueh
legal assi might be ded as a moral obligation ‘but
it does not at present count with the sanction of man-made laws.
If the employer is not legally obliged to give legal assistance
to its employee and provide him with a lawyer, naturally said
employee may not recover from his employer the amount he
may have paid a lawyer hired by him.

2. ID.; ID.; PARTIES WHO MAY BE HELD RESPONSIBLE
FOR DAMAGES. — If despite the absence of any criminal
responsibility on the part of the employee he was accused of

and order and to prevent the commission of disorders within the
premises, Asysuch guard he carried a revolver, In the afternoon
of July 4, 1941, one Benjamin Martin wanted to crash the gate
or entrance of the movie house. Infuriated by the refusal of plaintiff
De la Cruz to let him in without first providing himself with a
ticket, Martin attacked him with a bolo. De la Cruz defended him-
self as best he could until he was cornered, at which moment, to
save himself, he shot the gate crasher, resulting in the latter’s death.

For the killing, De la Cruz was charged with homicide in
Criminal Case No. 8449 of the Court of First Instance of Ilocos
Norte. After a re-investigation conducted by the Provincial Fiscal
the latter filed a motion to dismiss the complaint. which was grant-
ed by the court in January 1943, On July 8, 1947, De la Cruz was
again accused of the same crime of homicide, in Criminal Case No.
431 of the same Court. After trial, he was finally acquitted of the
charge on January 31, 1948. In both criminal cases De la Cruz
employed a Iawyer to defend him. He demanded from his former

of his but was refused, after
which he ﬁ]ed the present action against the movie corporation and
the three members of its board of directors, to recover not only the
amounts he had paid his lawyer but also moral damages said to
have been suffered, due to his worry, his neglect of his interests
and his family as well as the supervision of the cultivation of his
land, a total of P15,000.00. On the basis of the complaint and the
answer filed by defendants wherein they asked for the dismissal
of the complaint, as well as the agreed statement of facts, the Court
of First Instance of Ilocos Norte after rejecting the theory of the
plaintiff that he was an agent of the defendants and that as cuch
agent he was entitled to reimb of the incurred
by him in connection with the agency (Arts. 1709-1729 of the old
Civil Code), found that plaintiff had no cause of action and dis-
missed the complaint without costs. De la Cruz appealed directly
to this. Tribunal for the reason that only questions of law are

“involved in the appeal.

We agree with the trial court that the relationship between
the movie corporation and the plaintiff was not that of principai
and agent because the principle of representation was in no way
involved. Plaintiff was not employed to the d d
corporation_ in its dealings thh t}urd parties.

He was a mere
employee hired to perform a certain specific duty or task, that
of acting as special guard and staying at the main entrance of
the movie house te stop gate crashers and to maintain peace and order
within the premises. The question posed by this appeal is whether
an employee  or servant who in line of duty and while in the per-
formance of the task assigned to him, performs an sct which
eventually results in his incurring in expenses, caused not directly
by his master or employer or his fellow servants or by reason of
his performance of his duty, but rather by a third party or stranger
not in the employ of his employer, may recover said damages against
his D .

homicide, the responsibility for the improper a may bs
laid at the door of the heirs of the deceased at whose instance
the action was filed by the State through the Fiscal. This
ibility can not be t: to his employer, who in no
way intervened, much less initiated the criminal p di

The learned trial court in the last paragraph of its decision
dismissing the complaint said that “after studying many laws or
prnvnslons of law to find out what law is applicable to the facts

and whose only connection or relation to the whole affair was
that it employed plaintiff to perform a specific duty or task,
which was performed lawfully and without negligence.

Conrado Rubio for plaintiff and appellant.

Ruiz, Ruiz, Ruiz, Ruiz and Benjamin Guerrero for defendante
and appellees.

4 DECISION
MONTEMAYOR, J.-

The facts in this case based on an agreed statement of facts
are simple, In the year 1941 the Northern Theatrical Enterprises
Inc., a domestic corporation operated a movie house in Laoag, Ilocos
Norte, and among the persons employed by it was the plaintiff
DOMINGO DE LA CRUZ, hired as a special guard whose duties
were to guard the main entrance of the cine, to maintain peace
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and admitted by the parties, has found none and it has
no other alternative than to dismiss the complaint.” The trial court
is right. We confess that we are not aware of any law or judicial
authority that is directly applicable to the present case, and realizing
the importance and far-reaching effect of a ruling on the subjeet-
matter we have searched, though vainly, for judicial authorities and
enlightenment. All the Jaws and principles of law we have found,
as regards master and servant, or employer and employee, refer to
cases of physical injuries, light or serious, resulting in loss of a
member of the body or of any one of the senses, or permanent ply-
sical disability or even death, suffered in line of duty and in the
course of the performance of the duties assigned to the servant
or employee, and these cases are mainly governed by the Employers’
Liability Act and the Workmen’s Compensation Act. But a case
involving damages caused to an employee by a stranger or outsider
while said employee was in the performance of his duties, presents
a novel question which under present legis’ation we are neither
able nor prepared to decide in favor of the employee.
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In a case like the present or a similar case of say a driver
employed by a transportation company, who while in the course of
employment runs over and inflicts physical injuries on or causes
the death of a pedestrian, and such driver is later charged criminally
in court, one can imagine that it would be to the interest of the
employer to give legal help to and defend its employee in order
show that the latter was not guilty of any crime either delibsrately
or through negligence, because should the employee be final'y held
criminally liable and he is found to be insolvent, the employer would
be subsidiarily liable. That is why, we repeat, it is to the interest
of the employer to render legal assistance to its employee. But we
are not prepared to say and to hold that the giving of said legal
asgistance to its employees is a legal obligation. While it might
yet and possibly be regarded as u moral obligation, it does not at
present count with the sanction of man-made laws.

If the employer is not legally obliged to give legal ass'stance to
its employee and provide him with a lawyer, naturally said employee
may not recover the amount he may have paid a lawyer hired by him.

Viewed from another angle it may be said that the damage
suffered by the plaintiff by reason of the expenses incurred by h'm
in remunerating his lawyer, is not caused by his act of shooting to
death the gate crasher but rather by the filing of the charge of
homicide which made it necessary for him to defend himself with
the aid of counsel. Had no criminal charge been filed against
him, there would have been no expenses incurred or damage suf-
fered. So, the damage suffered by plaintiff was caused rather by
the improper filing of the criminal charge, possibly at the instance
of the heirs of the deceased gate crasher and by the State thrcugh
the Fiscal. We say improper filing, judging by the results of the
court proceedings, namely, acquittal. In other words, the p'aintiff
was innocent and blameless. If despite his innocence and despite
the absence of any criminal responsibility on his part he was
accused of homicide, then the ibi for the i
accusation may be laid at the door of the heirs of the deceased and
the State, and so theoretically, they are the parties that may be
held ible civilly for d: and if this is so, we fail to
gee how this responsibility can be transferred to the employer who
in no way intervened, much less initiated the criminal proceedings
and whose only connection or relation to the whole affair was that
he employed plaintiff to perform a specific duty or task, which
task or duty was performed lawfully and without negligence.

Still another point of view is that the damages incurred here
consisting of the payment of the lawyer’s fee did not flow direetly
from the performance of his duties but only indirectly because there
was an efficient, intervening cause, namely, the filing of the
criminal charges. In other words, the shooting to death of the de-
ceased by the plaintiff was not the proximate cause of the damages
suffered but may be regarded as only a remote cause, because
from the shooting to the damages suffered there was mnot that
natural and continuous sequence required to fix civil respensibility.

In view of the foregoing, the judgment of the lower court
is affirmed. No costs.

Paras, C.J., reserved his vote

Bengzon, Padlla, A. Reyes, Bautista Angelo, Labrador, Con-
cepcion and J.L.B. Reyes, J.J., concur.

Jugo and Pablo, J.J., took no part.

viir

Macario Enriquez, et al., Petitioners, vs. Honorable Alcjandro
Punlilio, in his capacity as the presiding Judge of Branch A, Court
of First Instance of Manila; the Sheriff of Manila; Dee C. Chuan
Co., Inc. and Standard Vacuum Oil Co., Respondents, G. R. No.
L-7825, July 16, 1954, Montemayor, J.

1. EMINENT DOMAIN; SUSPENSION OF EJECTMENT PRO-
CEEDINGS, WHEN PROPER; PURPOSE OF COMMON-
WEALTH ACT NO. 538, — Commonwealth Act No. 538 con-
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templates the expropriation of lands lawfully oeccupied, where
said occupancy is known and permitted by the owner under an
agreement, express or implied. of tenancy, and where the tenants
and occupanis are observing the terms of the agrcement by
pzying the rentals agreed upon, or, a reasonable amount as-
certained by the court for the use and occupation of the pre-
mises. The purpose of the law is to aid and benefit the law-
ful occupants and tenants, by making their occupancy per-
manent and giving them an opportunity to become owners of
their holdings.

2. ID.; ID.; ID.; OCCUPANTS WHO CAN NOT INVOKE THE
LAW. — Where petitioners entered the land in question wi'k
out the knowledge and consent of the owner and lessce thereof,
the relationship of landlord and tenant has not bzen es‘ablished.
Hence, they can not invoke the benefits of Commonweal.h Act
No. 538.

Castaiio, Ampil, and Pronove for peti‘ioner.

Ross, Selph, Carrascoso and Janda for respondent Standard-
Vacuum Oil Company.

Qui; ing, Sycip, Qui: and Salazar for other re-
spondents.

DECISION
MONTEMAYOR, J.:

_ This is a petition for certiorari with prelimnary injunetion.
TFrom the allegations of said petition and its annexes as well as of
the answer filed by respondents, we gather the following:

Respondent Dee C. Chuan Co. (to be later referred to as
Chuan Co.) is the owner of quite a large parcel of land situated
in the City of Manila and adjoining the Juan Luna sub-d vision
and the North Bay Boulevard. A portion of the same of about
1,000 sq. m. was leased to respondent Standard Vacuum Oil Co.
(to be later referred to as Oil Co.). Sometime prior to 1947,
without the knowledge and consent of Chuan Co. (owner) and the
0il Co. (lessee), a number of people including the petitioners enter-
ed the parcel, particularly that portion under lease, and erected
thereon temporary houses (barongz-barorg), and thereaf er refused
to leave the same despite repeated demands made upon them by the
owner and lessee. The oil company filed a suit in ejectment in
the Municipal Court of Manila against the petitioners and ob-
tained a favorable judgment ordering petitioners to vacate the por-
tion occupied by them and denying their counterclaim. Petitioners
as defendants appealed to the Court of First Instance of Manila
which rendered judgment against them on December 27, 1949. For
purposes of reference particularly as to the facts of the case, we
are reproducing said decisions, to wit:

“This is an ejectment case appealed from the Mun‘cipal
Court. The lower court in its decis'on ordered the defendants
to vacate the premises in question and denied defendants’ counter-
claim. Hence the appeal of the Defendants to this Court.
While the case was pending trial, Dee C. Chuan prays the
defendants be ejected from the premises and to pay jointly
and severally a monthly rental of P90.00 from May 5, 1947 to
October, 1949, Subsequently, counsel for the defendants filed
a motion asking for the suspension of the trial of the case on
the ground that the government was negotiating for the pur-
chase of the land in question from the plaintiff-intervenor, Dee
C. Chuan & Sons, Inc. Because the hearing of the case had
been postponed already several times on the same ground, with-
out any positive results having come out from said supposed
negotiations, the petition was denied, and trial was then com-
menced. After the plaintiff has presented their evidence, coun-
sel for the defendants asked for postponement alleging, as
their reason, that not all the defendants were present in Court.
To give the defendants their day i court, the case was then
postponed to an agreed date among the parties. But on the sa’d
date, counsel for the defendants failed fo appear on the un-
verified ground that he was indisposed. Further postpone-
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ment of the case was objected to by the other parties, and the
case was then submitted for decision.

“It appears that the plantiff is the lessee of a parcel of
land, as evidenced by a contract of lease (Exh., “A’) between
plaintiff and the owner, who 1s the plaintiff-intervenor herein;
that the defendants, prior to February, 1947, without the know-
ledge and consent of the owner or plaintiff-intervencr, illegally
entered and occupied the premises in question and erected barong-
barong therein; that, in spite of repeated demands of the piain-
tiff-intervenor, as well as the plaintiff (Exhs. B, B-1, B-2, C, C-1
to C-5), the defendants refused to vacate the property.

“WHEREFORE, in view of the foregoing, judgment is
hereby rendered ordering all the defendants to vacate the pre-
mises in question, and each of them to pay the plaintiff-inter-
venor a monthly rental of P5.00 from May 1947 to October
1949. Defendants are further ordered to pay the costs in both
instances,

“SO ORDERED.”

The judgment above reproduced apparently became final and
executory. Why it was not then executed, the record does not
show. In July, 1950, the Republic of the Philippines instituted
expropriation proceedings, Civil Case No. 11525, concerning a par-
tion of the parcel belonging to Chuan Co., including that portion
leased to the Oil Company, under the provisions of Commonwzal'h
Act No. 538. By reason of said expropriation proceedings, the
Court of First Instance of Mamlu, deciding the ejectment case
against petitioners, of its jud, by order
dated April 17, 1951, Early in 1953, Chuan Co. moved to lift the
order staying execution. We quote the order dated February
21, 1953 granting the motion.

“After a careful consideration of the grounds advanced by
Coungel for Intervenor Dee C. Chuan & Sons, Inc., in support of
the motion te lift order staying execution, the Court has reqch-
ed the conclusion that said motion is well taken and i

chase of the lands, in which latter case, the period of suspension
shall not exceed one year.

“To avail himself of the benefits of the suspension, the
tenant shall pay to the landowner the current rents as they
become due or deposit the same with the court where the action
for cjectment has been instituted.”

We agree with the trial court and the herein respondents that
petitioners are in no position to invoke the benefits of Common-
wealth Act No. 538, particularly section 1 thereof. As found by
the trizl court in the ejectment case, they are not bona-fide oc-
cupants or tenants because they entered the land without the know-
ledge and consent of the owner and lessee thereof. The relation-
ship of landlord and tenant has not been established; on the con-
trary, as socn as their illegal occupation of the land was noted
the owner and lessee made demands upon them to vacate the pre-
mises, which demands were ignored. Petitioners have not paid
anything for th¥ir i Even after jud was rendered
by the Court of First Instance against them ordering them to
vacate the land illegally occupied by them and ordering them to
pay a reasonable amount for their occupation, fixed by the Court,
up to this time they have paid nothing. Commonwealth Act No.
538 contemplates the expropriation of lands lawfully occupied, where
said occupancy is known and permilted by the owner under an
agreement, express or implied, of tenancy, and where the tenants
and occupants are observing the terms of the agreement by pay-
ing the rentals agreed upon, or, a reasonable amount accer'a‘ned
by the court for the use and occupation of the premises. The pur-
pose nf the law is to aid and benefit the lawful occupants and
tenants, by making their occupancy permanent and giving them
an opportunity to become owners of their holdings. This is not
the case with respect to petitioners.

Petitioners annexed to their petition a copy of an alleged
agreement (Exhibit “E”) between Chuan Co., the Oil Co., and
the Rural Progress Administration to the effect that the land sub-

and hereby grants same,

“The defendants, not being bona-fide tenants or occupants
of the land in question, and having failed, on the other hand,
to pay to the landowner, or to deposit in Court, the current
reasonable rental for the land they illegally occupy, can not
avail themselves of the provision of Commonwealth Act No. 538.

“Accerdingly, the Order of April 17, 1951, suspending the
ion of the J lered in the case, is hereby lifted
and set aside.

“SO ORDERED.

Manila, Philippines, February 21, 1953.

(Sgd.) Alejandro J. Panlilio
Judge”

A copy of said order was duly served on counsel for the defendants
in said Civil Case No. 5654 (now petitioners herein). It was only
on November 23, 1953, that defendants-petitioners filed a motion
for reconsideration of the order of February 21, 1953, which was
denied by order dated November 28, 1953. Claiming that in issuing
the orders of February 21, 1953 ard November 28, 1953, the trial
court acted with grave abuse of discretion, amounting to excess of
jurisdiction, petitioners have filed its present petiticn for certiorari
with preliminary injunction.

We are reproducing section 1 of Commonwealth Act No. 538
by virtue of which the expropriation proceedings, as already stated,
was initiated by the Government.

“Sec. 1. When the Government seeks to acquire through
purchase or expropriation proceedings, lands belonging to any
estate or chaplaincy (capellana), any action for ejectment
against the tenants occupying said lands shall be automatically
suspended, for such time as may be required by the expro-
priation proceedings or the necessary negotiations for the pur-
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ject of Iy would be leased to the owners of the houses
standing thereon on a monthly rental not to exceed 1% of the
assessed value of the land for the current year. Respondents in
their answer explained that this agreement was made the basis of
the motion for dismissal of the expropriation case, resulting in
the dismissal of the same. However, with the abolition of the
Rural Progress Administration and the taking over of its fune-
tions by the Bureau of Lands, the latter upon the instigation of
the i th 1) d the validity of the agree-
ment, thus resulting in the lifting of the order of dismissal in the
cxpropriation case. Moreover, the agreement itself excludes from
its operation a portion of about 920 sq. m. which |s apparently the
portion involved in the ej: (now ied by iti

the agreement providing for the removal from sald port'nn of the
houses and other improvements made by the petitioners.

In conclusion, we find that the respondent court did mot com-
mit any abuse of diseretion, much less did exceed its jurisdiction
in issuing its order of February 21, 1953 and in denying the mo-
ticn for its reconsideration. The present petition for certiorari
with preliminary injunction is hereby denied, with costs against
petitioners.  The writ of preliminary injunction heretofore is-
sued, is hereby dissolved.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Padilla, Alex Reyes, Jugo; Bautista Angelo.
Labrador, Concepcion and J. B. L. Reyes, J.J., concur.

X

Alicia Go, et al., Plaintiffs-Appellees, vs. Alberto Go, et al.,
Defendants-Appellants, G. R. No. L-7020, June 30, 1954, Bautista
Angelo, J.

1. PLEADING AND PRACTICE; JOINDER OF PARTIES, AP-

PLICABLE TO BOTH COMPLAINT AND COUNTERCLAIM.

—The rule permitting the joinder of parties applies with equal
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force to a counterclaim in view of the similarity of rules ap-
plicable to both complaint and counterclaim.

ID.; COUNTERCLAIM; TEST TO DETERMINE JURISDIC-
TION OF JUSTICE OF THE PEACE COURT.—If the claim
is composed of several accounts each distinct from the other
or arising from different transaction, they may be Jomed in a

of action involving an aggregate amount of P3,500.

Claiming that the amount involved in the counterclaim is be-
yond the jurisdiction of the Municipal Court, and, therefore, the
Court of First Instance cannot act on it in the exercise of its ap-
pellate jurisdiction, plaintiffs filed a motion to dismiss under Rule
8, Section 1 (a), of the Rules of Court. This motion was resisted
by d but the court, in its order issued on March 30, 1953,

single action even if the total exceeds the j of the
justice of the peace court. Each account furnishes the test. But
if the claim is composed of several accounts which arise out of
the same transaction and can not be divided, the same should
be stated in one cause of action and cannot be divided for the
purpose of bringing the case within the jurisdietion of the jus-
tice of the peace court.

ID.; ID.; CLAIM COMPOSED OF SEVERAL ACCOUNTING
EACH DISTINCT FROM THE OTHER CAN NOT BE
JOINED IN ONE SINGLE CLAIM.—Where the first claim
refers to the rccovery of an amount arising from the alleged
unlawful mkmg by the plaintiffs of certain furniture and

ing to the defend: while the second and
third causes of action arose, not from the illegal taking of the
property, but from the alleged unlawful institution by the plain-
tiffs of the action of ejectment in the Municipal Court, the
claims can not be joined in one single claim because they arise
from different tets of facts.

4. ID; ID.; COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIM TO BE SET. UP
REGARDLESS OF AMOUNT; CLAIM BARRED IF NOT
SET UP.—If a counterclaim arises from, or is necessarily con-
nected with, the facts alleged in the complaint, then that coun-
terclaim should be set up regardless of its amount. Failure
to do so would render it barred under the rules.

5. ID.; ID.; ID.; COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIM SET Ur,
COGNIZABLE BY COURT OF FIRST INSTANCE.—"h: sec
ond and third claims of defen’ants being comnulsory, and ‘he res-
pective amounts, considered separately, are within the jurisdie-
tion of the municipal court, the Court of First Instance can
not act on them in the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction.

3

Emmanuel T. Jacinto for plaintiffs and appellees.

Enrique V. Filamor and Nicolas Belmonte for defendants-ap-
pellants.

DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

On December 18, 1951, plaintiffs brought an action in the
Municipal Court of Manila to recover from defendants the posses-
sion of a house situated at 921 Dagupan Si., Manila, and the sums
of P2,000 as damages and P200.00 as attorney’s fees.

Defendants in their answer set up several special defenses and
a im. The im was divided into three causes of
action as follows: the first is for P2,000 rapresentmg the value of
certain furniture and i belonging to and which
are claimed to have been taken away by plaintiffs from the house
in litigation; the second is for P1,000 representing expenses incurred
by defendants arising from the falsity of the facts alleged in the
complaint; and the third is for P500.00 as attorney’s fees arising
from the institution of the present action.

The court found for the plaintiffs, after due hearing, ordering
defendants to vacate the house in litigation and to pay the costs,
but denied the claim for damages both of plaintiffs and defendants
on the ground that their amounts are beyond its jurisdiction. The
defendants, in due time, perfected their appeal to the Court of First
Instance, and after the latter had filed their answer as required by
the rules, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint wherein they re-
iterated their ongmal allegahons with some slight modifications.
To this d defend; filed an ded answer
reiterating the counterclaim they had alleged in their original an-
swer which, as previously stated, has been divided into three causes
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overruled the opposition .and granted the motion to dismiss. Hence,
this appeal.

Appellants, in their brief, present the question for determina-
tion in this appeal in the following wise:

“The issue involved in this appeal is purely a question of
law: whether or not the counterclaim was within the jurisdiction
of the Municipal Court, and, hence, whether or not the Court
of First Instance has appellate jurisdiction thereon. We res-
pectfully submit that the legal points involved are of paramount
importance, as a definition is sought of the rule which should
control, not only in the case at bar, but also in other cases,
in the ion of the jurisdictional amount in case there
are several causes of action: whether the jurisdiction is deter-
mined by the amount of each cause of action, or by the aggre-
gate amount of the several causes of action; and whether in
compulsory counterclaims the amount thereof is immaterial in
the question of jurisdiction.” (Underscoring supplied)

A case that may throw light on the issue before us is A. Soriano
& Co. vs. Gonzalo M. Jose, et al., 47 0.G., 156, decided on May 30,
1950, where various employees brought a joint complaint against
their employer in the municipal court to collect a month salary each
in licu of 30 days’ notice. The question there decidel was whether
the jurisdiction of the municipal court is governed by the amount
of each claim or by the aggregate sum of all the claims when there
are several plaintiffs suing jointly but have independent causes of
action. In that case, we held that “where several clulmants have
separate ard distinct d s against a d d: or dants,
which may be properly joined in a single suit, the claims cannot be
added together to make up the required jurisdictional amount; each
separate claim furnishes the jurisdictional test.” The purpose of
the rule permitting the joining of parties is to save unnecessary
work, trouble, and expense, consistent with the liberal spirit of the
new rules. This ruling, no doubt, applies with equal force to a
counterclaim in view of the similarity of rules applicable to both
complaint and counterclaim.

The question that now rises is: Can this ruling be applied
when there is orly one plaintiff or one defendant, or several plain-
tiffs or defendants but with a common claim, divided into several
causes of action involving transactions different one from the
other? Stated in another way, does this ruling apply to a coun-
terclaim set up by several defendants which have a common claim
against the plaintiff divided into several causes of action for the
reason that they arise from transactions one different from the
other?

A case which may be considered on all fours with the present
case is that of Villasefior v. Erlanger & Galinger, 19 Phil, 574,
wherein this Court, in discussing the test to be considered in deter-
mining the jurisdiction of a justice of the peace, laid down the fol-
lowing rule: “When a separate due is due, it is demandable in a
separate action. Therefore, neither a debtor nor a third party may
plead lack of jurisdiction because the sum of two separate debts
exceeds the amount for which action may be brought in a court of a
justice of the peace. On the other hand, if a debt is single a cre-
ditor may not divide it for the purpose of bringing the case within
the jurisdiction of a justice of the peace.” This case is authority
for the statement that if a claim is composed of several accounts
cach distinct from the other or arising from different transac-
tions they may be joined in a single action even if the total exceeds
the jurisdiction of a justice of the peace. Each account furnishes
the test. But if the claim is composed of several accounts which
arise out of the same transaction und cannot be divided, the same
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should be stated in one cause of action and cannot be divided for
the purpose of bringing the case within the jurisdiction of the jus-
tice of the peace.

The same rule obtains in the American jurisdiction. Thus, it
has been ganerally held that “In order that two or more claims may
be united to make the jurisdictional amount, they must belong to
a class that under the statute will permit them to be properly
juined in one suit, and not such as should be made the subject of
independent suits; and where two or more causes of action are im-
properly united in one suit the amounts involved in the different
causes cannot be added together so as to make an amount in con-
troversy sufficient to confer jurisdiction on the court in which the
suit is brought x x x.” But] “in so far as causes of action which
may be properly joined are concerned, and which concern all the
parties. litigants, there is, however, a lack of harmony on the ques-
tion of whether or not their various amounts should be aggregated
in order to determine the amount in controversy for jurisdiction
purposes.” (21 C. J., np. 76-78.) .

In the last analysis, therefore, the question to be determined is
whether the three causes of action into which the rcounterclaim of
the defendants has been divided refer to transactions which should
be stated separately, or transactions which have a common origin
and should be joined in one cause of action for jurisdictional pur-
poses. An analysis of the facts reveal that the three causes of
action of the counterclaim are different one from the other, or at
least the first is completely different and arises from a set of facts
different from those which gave rise to the other two. The first
refers to the recovery of the amount of P2,000 arising from the al-
leged unlawful taking by the plaintiffs of certain furniture and
equipment belonging to the defendants; while the second and third
causes of action arose, not from the illegal taking of property, but
from the alleged unlawful institution by the plaintiffs of the action
of ejectment in the Municipal Court. From this it can be seen that
the first cause of action cannot be joined with the other two in one
single claim because they arise from different sets of facts.

Another consideration that should be borne in mind is whether
the counterclaim is compulsory or not. If it is, such as if it arises
from, or is necessarily connected with, the facts alleged in the com-
plaint, then that counterclaim should be set up regardless of its
amount. Failure to do so would render it barred under the rules.
In this particular case, while the first cause of action cannot be con-
sidered compulsory because it refers to a transaction completely un-
related with the main claim, the second and the third belong to this
class because they necessarily arvise from the institution of the
main action. Viewed in this light, it can be said that the counter-
claim of the defendants should be deemed as coming within the
jurisdiction of the municipal court because the respective amounts,
considered separately, do not exceed its jurisdiction. From all
angles we view the order appealed from it would appear that it is
unwarranted and has no legal basis.

Wherefore, the order appealed from is hereby set aside, without
pronouncement as to costs.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Reyes, Jugo and Concepcion, J.J., concur.
Pablo, Jr., took no part,

PADILLA, J., dissenting:

This is an action of forcible entry and for recovery of P2,000 as
damages, and P200 as attorney’s fees. In their answer the de-
fendants sought to recover a counterclaim of P2,000, the value of
the furniture and equipment allegedly belonging to them and claimed
to have been taken by the plaintiffs from the apartment (accesoria),
the possession of which is sought to be recovered in the action; the
sum of P1,000, the expense allegedly incurred by the defendants as
a result of the action brought against them; and P500 as attorney’s
fees.

The municipal court of Manila rendered judgment ordering
the defendants to vacate the apartment but did not award the sums
sought to be recovered by both parties on the ground that the same
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are beyond its jurisdicticn. The defendants appealed to the Court
of First Instance setting up the same counterclaim they had sought
to recover in the municipal court. Plaintiffs moved for the dis-
missal of the counterclaim on the ground that the Court of First
Instance has no jurisdiction to try and decide on appeal a coun-
terclaim involving P3,500 set up by the defendants in the municipal
court and repeated on appeal in the Court of First Instance which
the municipal court had refused to try and decide for lack of juris-
dictior. The motion was granted and from the order dismissing
the counterclaim the defendants have appealed.

In the first place, the defendants should not have been allowed
to appeal from the order of dismissal of their counterclaim but
should have waited until after final jurgment shall have been ren-
dered by the Court of First Instance in the forcible entry action. (1)
By allowing this appeal the case may be submitted twice to an ap-
pellate court when all the issues joined and questions incident there-
to raised by the parties should be passed upon and decided in one
appeal.  Granting, nevertheless, that the defendants may appeal
from an order of dismissal of a counterclaim, I disagree with the
majority that the amount of each claim arising from different trans-
actions and not the aggregate amount of the counterclaim is deter-
winative of the jurisdiction of the Court.

Section 86, Republic Act No. 296, as amended by Republic Act
No. 644, provides:

The jurisdiction of justices of the peace and judges of
municipal courts of chartered cities shall consist of:

X X X

(b) Original jurisdiction in civil actions arising in their
respective municipalities and cities, and not exclusively cogniz-
able by the Courts of First Instance; and

X XX

Section 88, Republic Act No. 296, as amended by Republic Act

Nc. 644, provides:

In all civil actions x x x arising in his municipality or city,
and not exclusively cognizable by the Court of First Instance,
the justice of the peace and the judge of a municipal court shall
have exclusive original jurisdiction where the value of the sub-
ject-matter or amount of the demand does not exceed two thou-
sand pesos, exclusive -of interest and costs. x x x

The first claim for P2,000 which represents the value of cer-
tain furniture and equipment allegedly belonging to the defendants
and claimed to have been taken by the plaintiffs from the apart-
ment (accesoria), the possession of which is sought to be recovered
from the defendants who, plaintiffs claim, forcibly entered upon
the same and deprived them of the possession thereof, is nmot an
independent transaction or claim because it arose from the alleged
unlawful entry upon the premises by the defendants. Hence, the
three items of the counterclaim arose from the alleged unlawful
entry by the defendants upon the premises, the possession of which
the plaintiffs seek to recover.. The aggregate amount being beyond
the jurisdiction of the municipal court to hear, try and decide, the
order of the Court of First Instance of Manila to which the case
was appealed is in accordance with law.

The jurisdiction of the municipal court is limited whereas that
of the Court of First Instance is general. The limited jurisdiction
of the former should not be enlarged or stretched at the expense of
that of the latter. Enlarging the jurisdiction of the municipal
court would be illegal.

The case of A. Soriano y Cia. vs. José, 47 Off. Gaz. Supp. No.
12, 156, cited by the majority is not in point. There several em-
ployees having each a cause of action against the employer were
allowed to join in one suit brought in the municipal court of Ma-
nila, although the aggregate amount of the several causes of action

(1) Section 2, Rule 41.
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constituting the demand was beyond the jurisdiction of the municipal
court, because the amount of each cause of action which is less than
P2,000 determines the jurisdiction of the court, and the joinder of
euch parties is permitted by section 6, Rule 3. In other words, if
the several employees having a claim against the employer were
not permitted to join in one suit by the above mentioned rule, each
would have to bring a separate action and the action of each would
be within the jurisdiction of the municipal court because the amount
claimed by each plaintiff would not exceed P2,000 exclusive of in-
terest and costs.

nefits of the estate, and, accordingly, it ordered that the amount
of $1,190.83 be paid to her. However, as the widow, and her lawyer,
in a gesture of nobility, agreed to give one-half of said amount
to the four illegitimate children of the deceased, the court also in-
cluded in the decision an injunction that the widow deposit with
the Philippine National Bank said one-half, or the sum of $595.41,
in the name of the four minor children, in equal shares, to be dis-
posed of in accordance with law.

Two months after the money was received by the widow as
directed in the decision, Angela Fernandez, mother of the four minor

The rule in the case of Villasefior vs. Erl & Gali

19 Phil. 574, invoked by the majority does not support its opinion.
There the action was one of interpleading brought by the sheriff
of Tayabas for determination as to who among the defendants were
entitled to the ‘funds he had in his possession. The question of
jurisdiction of the justice of the peace court of Manila was not the
lie mota but rather the question of preference of credits. There
were two actions brought by Ruiz y Rementeria against Manuel
Abraham and two judgments rendered by the justice of the peace
court of Manila in favor of Ruiz y Rementeria — one for P572.91
and the other for P304.73 — both amounts being within the concur-
rent jurisdiction of the justice of the peace court and the Court of
First Instance of Manila. This Court in reversing the judgment of
the trial court, which disallowed the two credits of Ruiz y Remen-
teria ordered by the justice of the peace court of Manila in two
judgments to be paid to Ruiz y Rementeria correctly ruled that
such credits were allowable.

For these reasons, the order appealed from should be affirmed,
with costs against the appellants.

Labrador, J., concurs.

X

Marta Banclos de Esparagoza et al.. Petitioners, vs. B'env-mido
A. Tan, ete. et al., Respondents, G. R. No. L-6525, April 12, 1954;
Bautista Angelo, J. .

CERTIORARI; DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS CONSTITUTES
ABUSE OF DISCRETION. — Where a written charge for
contempt was filed against petitioners, but no copy thereof has
been served on them, and their plea to be given an opportunity
to answer the charge before any action is taken against them
was disregarded, this action is tantamount to a denial of due
process which may be considered as a grave abuse of disere-
tion.

Pio L. Pestano for petitioners.
Ricardo N. Agbunag for respondent Angela Fernandez.
DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

This is a petition for certiorari with preliminary injunction
seeking to set aside certain orders of respondent Judge which direct
the i di arrest of iti for their failure to appear to
show cause why they should not be punished for contempt, and to
set aside the decision rendered by the Court of Appeals dated Nov-
ember 17, 1952, sustaining and giving effect to the aforesaid
orders.

The orders herein referred to had arisen in a case instituted
in the Court of First Instance of Rizal by the Judge Advocate Gen-
eral of the Armed Forces of the Philippines against Marta Banclos
de Esparagoza, et al, in connection with the disposition of the
amount of §$1,190.83 accruing to one Aniceto Esparagoza, deceased,
as pay in arrears due the said deceased (Civil Case No. 877). The
case was instituted in order that it may be determined who among
the different claimants as heirs of the deceased is entitled to the
amount in question. After due hearing, the court found that Marta
Banclos, the widow, is the only person entitled to receive the be-
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children d ded that the money be given to her instead of being
deposited in the bank alleging as reason that if it be so deposited,
she would encounter difficulties in withdrawing the money for the
benefit of the children. The widow refused to agree to the request
unless the mother secure from the court an order authorizing her
to receive the money in line with her request. The mother failed to
do so, nor was she able to disclose the wherebou's of the chil-
dren, and instead the widow came to know that the children were
no longer living with their mother but had been given away to
vell-to-do couples who p to bring them up and take care
of them, and so, upon advice of Atty. Pio L. Pestafio, her counsel.
the widow declined to give the money either to the mother or to
the children. The result was that on March 28, 1952, Angela Fer-
nandez, the mother, i di against the
herein petitioners in view of their failure to deliver the money as
crdered by the court in its decision in Civil Case No. 877.

The petition for contempt was set for hearing, and after the
widow and her counsel were duly heard, the court found the peti-
tion without merit, and denied the same. Six months thereafter,
a similar petition for contempt was filed by Angela Fernandez
wherein she reiterated the same act of dereliction of duty on the
part of herein petitioners, copy of which was never served on the
petitioners. However, the same was acted upon ex parte by the
court who, on October 18, 1952, issued an order directing them to
appear and show cause why they should not be punished for con-
tempt for having disobeyed the order of the court. Copy of this
order was served on petitioner Pestafio on October 22, 1952, and
on October 25, the latter submitted to the court a written statement
explaining the circumstances why he could not show cause as di-
rected among which was the failure of the movant to serve on him
a copy of the petition containing the charges for contempt. In
said written manifestation, petitioner Pestafio made the special re-
quest that the order requiring his appearance be held in abeyance
until after he shall have been served with copy of the petition for
contempt as required by the rules, and that no action thereon be
taken until after he shall have been given an opportunity to an-
swer said motion. Instead of acceding to this request, the court,
on October 25, 1952, issued an order directing his immediate arrest
and that of his client Marta Banclos de Esparagoza. They sought
to set aside said order by bringing the matter to the Court of Ap-
peals by way of certiorari, but their petition was dismissed for
lack of merit.

The only issue to be determined is whether respondent Judge
has exceeded his jurisdiction or acted wi'h grave abuse of d'scre-
tion in issuing his order of October 25, 1952, directing the imme-
diate arrest of petitioners herein in view of their failure to appear
and show cause why they should not be punished for contempt for
having disobeyed the orcer of the court. The determination of this
would depend upon an examination of the facts leading to the
issuance of the disputed order.

It should be recalled that because of the refusal of Marta Ban-
clos de Esparagoza, following the advice of her counsel and co-
petitioner, Pio L. Pestafio, to deposit the money belonging to the
four minor children with the Philippine National Bank, or to deli-
ver it to their mother, Angela Fernandez, as demanded by the lat-
ter, Angela Fernandez filed a petition for contempt in the main
case praying that the two be ordered to show cause why they should
not be punished for contempt for their failure to obey the decision
of the court. This petition was acted upon by the court ex parte,
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and becanse petitioners herein never received copy of the petition
for they i a written i ion to the court
praying that action thereon be held in abeyance and that they be
not required to appear until after they shall have been given an
opportunity to answer as required by the Rules of Court. This
special request was disregarded by the court and considering their
failure to appear as a defiance, the court ordered their immediate
arrest. Is this attitude of the court justifiable under the rules?

Section 3, Rule 64, of the Rules of Court provides:

“SEC. 8. Contempt punished after charged and hearing.—
After charge in writing has been filed and an opportunity given
to the accused to be heard by himself or counsel, a person
guilty of any of the following act may be punished for con-
tempt:

“x b3 X x X x x X X x

“(b) Disobedience of or resistance to a lawful writ, pro-
cess, or order, judgment, or command of a court, or injunction
granted by a court or judge;

$x X X x x X x x x x

“But nothing in this section shall be so construed as to pre-
vent the court from issuing process to bring the accused party
into court, or from holding him in custody pending such pro-
ceedings.”

As may be seen, a contempt proceeding as a rule is initiated
by filing a charge in writing with the court, and after the charge
is filed, an opportunity should be given the accused to be heard, by
himself or counsel, before action could be taken against him. Here,
it is true, a written charge was filed against petitioners, but no
copy thereof has been served on them, nor have they been given an
opportunity to be heard. The petitioners asked for this opportuni-
ty, but it was denied them. Instead, their arrest was immediately
ordered. It is true that, under the same rule, “nothing x x shall
be so construed as to prevent the court from issuing process’ to
bring the accused party into court, or from holding him in custody
pending such proceedings”, but such drastic step can only be taken
if good reasons exist justifying it. Apparently, this reason does
not exist.  Petitioners not having received copy of the written
charge, they asked that they be given one. They also asked that
they be given an opportunity to answer said charge before action
is taken against them. Both pleas were disregarded. Such action,
in our opinion, is tantamount to a denial of due process, which may
be considered as a grave abuse of diseretion. As this court has
aptly said: “Courts should be slow in jailing people for non-com-
pliance with their orders. Only in cases of clear and contumacious
refusal to obey should the power be exercised. A bona fide mis-
understanding of the terms of the order or of the procedural rules
should not immediately cause the institution of contempt proceed-
ings.”  (Gamboa v. Tesodoro, 1.-4893, May 13, 1952.)

Wherefore, the orders of respondent Judge dated October 18,
1952 and October 25, 1952, are hereby set aside and it is hereby
ordered that before action be taken on the motion for contempt,
petitioners herein be given an opportunity to answer said motion
as prayed for in their written explanation dated October 24, 1952,
without costs.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Montemayor, A. Reyes, Jugo,
Labrador, Concepeion and Diokno, J.J., concur.

X1

Leopoldo R. Jalandoni, Protestant and Appellee, vs. Demetrio
N. Sarcon, Protestee and Appellant, G. R. No. L-6496, January 21,
1954, Bautista Angelo, J.

1. ELECTIONS; MOTION OF PROTEST, SUFFICIENCY OF.
—Where a motion of protest contains allegations that the pro-
testant is a qualified elector and one of the registered candidates
voted for in the general elections held on November 13, 1951,
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these allegations substantially comply with the law and are
sufficient to confer upon courts of first instance the requisite
jurisdiction.

2. ID.; ID.; CERTIFICATE OF CANDIDACY. — A motion of
protest need not in so many words state that the protestant
has presented his certificate of candidacy or that he is a can-
didate for the office of mayor because all these allegations
may be clearly inferred or deduced from the facts expressly
alleged therein for it cannot be denied that one cannot be a
registered candidate unléss he has duly filed the required cer-
tificate of candidacy for the office he seeks to be a candidate.
Emigdio V. Nietes for protestee and appellant.

Sizto Brillantes, Primitivo Buagas and Melquiades Sucaldito for
protestant and appellee.

DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

Demetrio N. Sarcon and Leopoldo R. Jalandoni were candidates
for the office of Mayor of Midsayap, province of Cotabato, and
had been voted for as such in the elections held on November 12,
1951. In the canvass made by the Municipal Board of Canvassers,
Sarcon obtained 3,181 votes and Jalandoni 3,088 votes, and as a
result the former was proclaimed elected. In due time, the latter
filed an election protest in the Court of First Instance of Cotabato.

The trial court, upon petition of protestant, directed the Na-
tional Bureau of Investigation to examine all the ballots contained
in the white boxes as well as the stubs contained in the boxes for
spoiled ballots, the corresponding voters affidavits and lists of
voters, and all the pads containing the stubs of ballots used, of
precincts Nos. 19 and 34 of Midsayap, to determine if the ballots
cast in said precinets were genuine, or were cast by persons uther
than the legitimate voters. Angel H. Gaffud, examiner of said
Bureau, made the examination as directed and submitted his report
to the court. N

During the trial, the protestant, through counsel, introduced as *
part of his evidence the certificate of candidacy he had filed as
required by law but its admission was objected to on the ground
that his motion of protest does not contain any allegation that he
has filed any certificate, but the objection was overruled and the
certificate was admitted in evidence. Upon the conclusion of the
trial, the court rendered judgment nullifying 226 ballots cast for
the protestee and declaring the protestant as the mayor elect with
a majority of 133 votes.

The case was orginally taken to the Court of Appeals, but, as
appellant has raised as one of the errors that the lower court had
no jurisdiction to try the case because the motion of protest does
not allege sufficient jurisdictional facts, it was later certified to
this Court.

Appellant contends that the motion of protest does not contain
jurisdictional facts because it fails to state that the protestant is
a candidate voted for in the elections held on November 13, 1951
and that he has presented the required certificate of candidacy. He
claims that these allegations are essential and the failure to include
them in the motion of protest operates to divest the court of its
jurisdiction over the case.

We agree with counsel that court of first instance, when taking
cognizance of election protests, act as courts of special jurisdiction.
In this sense they have a limited jurisdiction. They can only act
when the pleadings aver jurisdictional facts. As this Court aptly
said: “The Court of First Instance has no jurisdiction over an
election protest until the special facts upon which it may take ju-
risdiction are expressly shown i the motion »f protest. There
is no presumption in favor of the jurisdiction of a court of limited
or special jurisdiction. x x x Such court cannot, by any supposed
analogy to ordinary proceedings, exercise any power beyond that
which the legislature has given.” (Tengco v. Jocson, 43 Phil. 715.)
But we disagree with counsel that the motion of protest in the
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present case does mot allege facts sufficient to confer jurisdiction
upon the lower court.

Among the important allegations appearing in the motion of
protest are that protestant is a qualified elector and one of the
registered candidates voted for in the general elections held on
November 13, 1951, that, in accordance with the certificate of can-
vass of the Municipal Board of Canvassers, the protestee received
3,181 votes and the protestant 3,088 votes, and on December 3, 1951,
the protestee was declared elected to the office of Mayor of Mid-
sayap. In our opinion, these allegations substantially comply with
the law and are sufficient to confer upon the court the requisite
jurisdiction. It is true that the motion of protest does not in so
many words state that protestant has presented his certificate of
candidacy, or that he is a candidate for the office of Mayor of Mid-
sayap, but all these allegations are clearly inferred or deducible
from  the facts expressly alleged therein for it cannot be denied
that one cannot be a registered candidates unless he has duly filed
the required certificate of candidacy for the office he seeks to be
a candidate. This is a requirement which must needs be met be-
fore a person can be eligible or be voted for (Section 31, Revised
Election Code). This is also the interpretation placed by the Senate
Electoral Tribunal on the words “registered candidate” in a case
involving a similar issue (Sanidad v. Vera, et al, Case No. 1,
Senate Electoral Tribunal). Indeed, to countenance the plea of
appellant would be to defeat an otherwise good case through a
mere technical objection, which is the duty of the courts to prevent,
for “It has been frequently decided, and it may be stated as a gen-
eral rule recognized by all the court, that statutes providing for
election contest are to be liberally construed, to the end that the
will of the people in the choice of public officers may not be de-
feated by merely technical objections. To that end immaterial de-
fects in pleadings should be disregarded and necessary and proper
amendments should be allowed as promptly as possible.”  (Hey-
from v. Mahoney, 18 Am. St. Rep., 757, 768; McCrary on Elections,
3rd Ed., sec. 896; Galang v. Miranda, 35 Phil,, 269.) As a corollary,
it should be stated that the lower court did right in allowing the
presentation in evidence of the certificate of candidacy of protestant
which is necessary to d

a material jurisdictional fact.

Let us now come to the merits of the case. Note that the
ballots disputed by appellant are those cast in precinets Nos. 19
and 34, and that these were all examined as ordered by the court
by Angel H. Gaffud, a handwriting expert of the National Bureau
of Investigation. The ballots disputed among those cast in pre-
cinet No. 19 amount {o 306 of which 226 were found to be spurions.
And among those cast in precinct No. 34 those disputed amount
to 200 ballots and of these 53 were found also to be spurious. The
handwriting expert classified the first batch into 14 groups, and
basing his opinion on the striking similarities of the handwriting
found in each group, he gave the opinion that the 226 ballots had
been written by one and the same hand. The second batch was
classified into 10 groups and following the same process he reached
the same conclusion. The lower court concurred in this opinion as
regards the 226 ballots but disagreed with regard to the 53. It
found that these 53 ballots were all written in Moro characters, and
considering that these characters were not known to the handwrit-
ing expert, it entertained doubt as to the veracity of his findings.
This doubt the court resolved in favor of the protestee and counted
them in his favor.

Counsel for appellant disagrees with these findings concerning
the 226 ballots and, pointing out the individual characteristics of
the writer of each ballot shown by his habit of writing, “such &s
his slant, the proportional heights of his one spaced to his two
spaced letter, or to one another; the pressure of writing, the spacing,
the penlift of the writer, the crossing of his ‘t’s’, the dotting of his
‘i’s’, his habitual initial and terminal strokes, whether they are
blunt or flying, the loops of his letters, his speed in writing, and
the use of capital letters”, he now vehemently contends that the
ballots in question cannot be considered as having been written by
one and the same hand. And to make his opinion more impressive
and factual he made his own grouping of the ballots and proceeded
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to compare one with the other pointing out certain differences which
in his opinion tend to destroy the findings of the handwriting ex-
pert and of the trial court. In view of these conflicting opinions,
and in order to reach a conclusion as close as may be possible to
the truth, we have examined these ballots one by one and have
found that, with the exception of 15 ballots which appear to have
been written by different persons, the findings of the handwriting
expert are correct and should be sustained. For the purpose of
this decision, and in order that the characteristics of the writing
may be better appreciated, we have placed the ballots in small
groups within the classification made by the handwriting expert
and the following are the reasons supporting our conclusion:

GROUP 1

45 ballots (Exhs. A; A-1; A-4; A-10: A-14; A-25; A-3f
A-42; A-62; A-63; A-9; A-12; A-30; A-34; A-35; A-37;
A-49; A-50; A-52; A-53; A-66; A-67; A-T2; A-T4; A-81; A-85;
A-86; A-90; A-91; A-94; A-96; A-97; A-100; A-102; A-103;
A-107; A-109; A-110; A-2; A-3; A-15; A-93; A-45 and A-101)
were undoubtedly written Ly only one persen. While
there is an attempt to disguise the handwriting by using different
writing instruments, as indelible pencil, lead pencil and blue-colored
pencil, and by varying the slant of the writing, pen pressure and
spelling of the words, the general characteristics of the writer as
to form, formation of letters and habits are clearly noticeable.
In all these ballots, except one or two, one cannot help but notice
the peculiar form of the capital letter T in “Tadio” and “Tan”.
Except the first ballot, the M in “Mantel” has four “legs”. The
capital letter C in “Cambronero” and “Carlos” has a peculiar for-
mation, that is, the initial stroke begins from below, has a loop
on top and is brought down with the usual curve. The capital F
in “Flores”, the capital S in “Sarcon”, and the capital R in “Ro-
ganton” are similar in practically all these ballots as “Suluezeta”, or
G 5 OF, having to place the cross-bar
in the t, “Suluezat”, and the terminal “a” is separate from the
“t”, a practice habitual to the writer.

12 ballots (Exhs. A-6; A-8; A-16; A-39; A-40; A-43; A-51;
A-54; A-58; A-61; A-70; and A-73). These were clearly written
by same person who wrote the above 45 ballots. The characteris-
tic formations of the capital letter M in “Martel”, C in “Cambro-
nero” and “Carlos”, T in “Tan” and “Tadio” and R in “Roganton”
in the above 45 ballots are all found in these 12 ballots. In all
these ballots the name Zulueta begins with capital Z in printed
form. The terminal letter “a” is separate from the “t” just like
the 45 ballots above.

14 ballots (Exhs. A-13; A-19; A-20; A-21; A-22; A-26; A-29;
A-41; A-44; A-55; A-57; A-75; A-76; and A-87). In all these
ballots one hand wrote the votes for Senators with indelible pen-
cil, without any attempt to disguise the penmanship. Another hand,
which is the same one that wrote the above-mentioned 45 ballots,
wrote in lead pencil the votes for the provincial and municipal of-
ficials, with the usual characteristic formation of the capital letters
M in “Mantel”, C in “Cambronero” and “Carlos”, R in “Roganton”
and T in “Tadio” and “Tan”.

11 ballots (Exhs. A-5; A-7; A-32; A-38; A-60; A-69; A-T1;
A-77; A-78; A-80; and A-106). One hand wrote the votes for
Senators in all these 11 ballots, but different from the hand that
the above 14 ballots. This writer is a more accomplished writer.
He tried to disguise his writing in 8 of these ballots (Exhs. A-5,
A-78 and A-80) by making his letters smaller, but this betrayed
by his usual formation of the eapital letter Z in “Zulueta” which is
the same in all the ballots. He also wrote in the last 2 ballots
the votes for members of the Provincial Board. The rest of the
votes in these 11 ballots was written by another hand, the same
that wrote the 45 bailots, supra. as shown by the capital letters M
in “Mantel”, C in “Cambronero” and “Carlos”, T in “Tad.e” and
“Tan”, R in ‘Roganton”, B in “Bangas” and Y in “Yerno”. He
tried to disguise his handwriting in the last ballot by echanging
his slant.

3 ballots (Exhs.

A-27; A-31 and A-84). These were pre-
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pared by the same person who wrote the 45 ballots, supra, with
an indelible pencil. The usual characteristics of his writing as al-
ready described are present, like the C in “Cambronero” and ‘“Car-
los”, F in “Flores”, R in ‘““Roganton” and others.

6 ballots (Exhs. A-68; A-79; A-99; A-33 and A-56). The
first four ballots were cach prepared by different voters and could
have been regular were it not for the insertion of the name of can-
didate Carlos Tan in the space for special election by the same
guilty hand that invalidated all the ballots discussed. But this can-
not invalidate them. In the last two ballots, “Sarcon”, and ‘“Yerno”
in the spaces for Mayor and Vice-Mayor, respectively, were writs
ten by the samec guilty hand as shown by the capital letter C in
“Carlos”, T in “Tan” and Y in “Yerno”. These two ballots are,
therefore, invalid,

The

5 ballots (Exhs. A-23; A-59; A-64; A-89 and A-105).
voter in the first ballot voted only for “‘Borra” and ‘‘Cambronero”;
in the second, the voter voted only for “Quirino” and “Roganton”,
in the third the voter voted for “Sarcon”, “Yerno” and four coun-
cilors; in the fourth the voter voted for “Zuelueta”, “Borra” and
“Cambronero”, and in the last voted for seven councilors from
live 2 to 8. With the exception of the third ballot, the name “Sar-
con” was written by the same guilty hand and should therefore
be declared invalid. Only the third is valid. :

3 ballots (Ixhs. A-11; A-24 and A-83). Similarly, those three
ballots were tampered by the same guiity hand. The first 2 bal-
lots were voted in Arabics while the third voted only for “Kimpo”
in blue pencil. The guilty hand wrote “Carios Tan” and the
other writing as can be seen by his characteristic capital letters
“Q” and “T”,

2 ballots ( Exhs. A-98 and A-48). These were each prepared
by two hands. ‘“Zulueta” in both ballots were written by one
hand, the same person who wrote this word in the 11 ballots, suprea.
This hand wrote also the rest, written in blue-colored pencil, in
the second ballot. The rest of the writing in the first ballot was
written by the same guilty hand that prepared the 45 ballots,
supra.

2 ballots (Exhs. A-17 and A-47), These two ballots were
each prepared by 2 hands., “Carlos Tan’” was written in both
ballots by the same guilty person in the 45 ballots, supra, but the
name “Sarcon” was written by the same hand in the two ballots.

4 ballots (Exhs. A-82; A-95; A-104 and A-108). These were
prepared by the same guilty hand that prepared the 45 ballots,
supra. He tried to disguise his writing but he could not escape
judgment by one who has become used to his letter formation.

3 hallots (Txhs. A-18; A-65 and A-88). A careful serutiny
af these ballots shows that nothing in them indicates that they
have been tampered with. They are valid.

GROUP 11

30 ballots (Exhs. B to B-30, inclusive, with the exception of
B28). They were all prepared by only one individual, the same
person who wrote the votes for Senators in the group of 11 bal-
lots, supra, of Group I. The writer made an attempt to disguise
his handwriting which may be classified into three groups, as
follows: first group, Exhs. B; B-1; B-7; B-8; B-10; B-12; B-15;
B-16; B-17; B-18; B- B-2G; B-24; B-26 and B-27; second
group, Exhs. B-2; B-3; B-4; B-5; B-9; B-13; B-19; and B-21,
and thivd group, Exhs, B-6; B-11; B-14; B-20; B-23; B-29 and
B-30. The first group may be described as the writer’s ordinary
handwriting with his usual slant; in the second group, he ehanged
his slant making it a little bit vertical; and in the third group, he
made his letters smaller but in his usual slant. The writer is an
accomplished one. He comouflaged his handwriting by using lead,
indelible and blue-colored pencils, but this did not vitally change his
habitual form. His formation of capital Y in “Yerno” in all
the ballots, except a few, is eye-catching, in that, it starts with
a flourish from below. This is 2lso true in his capital V in
“Villareal”. One can easily notice his formation of Z in “Zulue-
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ta”, K
in “Tadio” and “Tan”.

in “Kimpo”, M in “Mantel”, C in Cambronero” and T
They are all alike in all the ballots.

1 ballot (Exhs, B-20). This is void because the writings there.
in were written by three different hands. This is apparent by a
mere examination of the ballot.

GROUP 1I1

17 ballots (Exhs. C to C-16, inclusive). They were all writ-
ten by one and the same person. The general appearance of the
handwriting in all the ballots shows that the writings therein were
made hurricdly, but the writer did not attempt to disguise his pen-
manship.  The ballots may be grouped into three: first group,
Exbs, C; C-1; C-2; C-3; C-6; C-9; C-10 C-11; C-12 and C-14
were all written in lead pencil; second group, Exhs. C-4; C-5;
C-7; C-8; C-13 and C-15, all written in blue-colored pencil; and the
last group, Exhs. C-16, written in indelible pencil.

GROUP IV

9 ballots (Exhs. D to D-8, inclusive). They were all written
by one hand with apparently the same indelible pencil. No at.
tempt was made to disguise the handwriting. The most distinguish-
ing characteristic of the handwriting is the upward flourish in all
terminal letters of the name of the candidates, especially the ter-
minal letter “o” in “Yerno”, “Carbronero” and “Kimpo”.

GROUP V

8 ballots (Exhs, E-1; E-4; E-5; E-6; E-11; E-12; E-13 and
E-16). They were all written by one hand. The similar formation
of the following capital letters tetray the fraud committed: S in
“Sarcon”, Y in “Yerno”; B in ‘“‘Bengzon” and “Borra”, R in
“Ragonton” and “Randing”; F in “Flores” and V in “Villareal”.
In all the ballots, the capital letter C in ‘“‘Cuenco” and “Cambro-
nero” were written like a small letter c.

4 ballots (Exhs. E-9; E-18; E-21 and E). They were writ-
ten by the same person who wrote the 8 ballots in the preceding
paragraph. The writing was disguised by the writer changing
his slant, making it vertical and using different pencils. But the
characteristic formation of his capital letters Y in ‘“Yerno”, F in
“Flores”, V in “Villareal”, R in “Ragonton” and “Randing” are
unmistakably present.

4 ballots (Exhs. E-10; E-17; E-19 and E-20). They were all
written by one hand using a blue-colored pencil. The writing in
all the ballots is very similar with the same light pen pressure.
The heavier downward stroke in the terminal “I” in “Laurel”, “Man.
tel” and “Villareal” is glaringly noticeable,

3 ballots (Exhs. E-3; E-7 and E-14), They were written
by the same hand that wrote the 8 ballots, supra. The writing in
these ballots was disguised by making the letters a little bigger
than the aroup referred to. But the same letter formation can
be found in these ballots.

2 ballots (Exhs. E-2 and E-15). They were written by one
person. This is apparent by a mere examination of the ballots.
His letter formation and slant are alike in both ballots.

3 ballots (Exhs. E-8; and E-22 and E-23).
ballots shows that they were tampered with.
written by difierent voters. They are valid.

GROUP VI

4 ballots (Exhs. F to F-3). They were all written by one
and the same person, the first hallot, in indelible pencil, and the
last three in blue-colored pencil. The handwriting in these 4 bal.
lots is very much alike. Even the spelling of the senators voted
for in these 4 ballots is the same. “Laurel” for Laurel, “Zulueta™
for Zulueta, and “Locsin” for Loesin.

GROUP vII
G and G-1).

Nothing in these
They were each

2 ballots (Exhs. They were each written by
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two hands. One hand wrote the name “Sarcon” in both ballots,
while the Arabic votes each ballot were written by two df event
persons. This is apparent by a mere examination of the ballots.
These ballots are, therefore, void.

GROUP vIII

8 ballots (Exhs. H to H-7, inclusive). They were all written
by one person using a blue-colored pencil. The handwriting in
these ballots is all identical, the writer having made no attempt ‘o
disguise his penmanship. This is apparent by a mere examination
of the ballots.

GROUP IX

7 ballots (Exhe, I-1 to I-7, inclusive). They were all written by
cnly one individual who tried to disguise his handwriting by using
indelible, lead and bl lored pencils, But his attempt is be-
lied by his identical formation of the four-legged capital M in
“Mantel”, the capital letter D in “D. Sarcon” and “Q. Man‘el” in
4 of the ballots, capital letter Z in “Zulueta” and L in “Locsing”
and “Laurel”. His attempt is further exposed by his wrong spell-
ing of Zulueta as “Zuleta” and Locsin as “Locsing” which are
found in all the ballots.

1 ballot (Exhs. I-8). This was written by at least two hands.
One hand wrote the names “Sarcon” and ‘““Yermo” in the spaces
fcr Mayor and Vice-Maor, respectively. One can immediately
detect that the writer of these names is more accomplished than
the hand that wrote the votes for senators, members of p.ovincial
beard and councilors.

1 ballot (Exhs. I).  This appears to be good. There is nothing
to indicate that it was tempered with.

GROUP X
2 ballots (Exhs. J and J-2).

They were written by one in-
dividual, The handwriting in hoth ballots is identical in all res-
pects. The name of Carlos Tan was written in hoth ballots as
one word, y

1 bal'ot (Exh. J-1). The handwriting in this ballot appears
to be different from that in the other ballots and there is nothing
to indicate that it was tampered with.

GROUP XI

2 ballots (Exhs. K and K-1). They were written by one hand.
No attempt to disguise the writing was made and the similarity
of the penmanship in both ballots is very apparent. These two
are void.

GROUP XII

2 ballots (Exhs. L and L-1). These two ballots were written
by two different persons. The disimilarities between the hand-
writing in both ballots are more striking than any similarity that
can be seen. The slant, letter distances, stroke, penlift and pen
pressure are different, These two ballots are, therefore valid.

GROUP X111

1 ballot (Exh. M). This was written by two persons. One
hand wrote the senatorial candidates from line 8 to 7, while the
rest was written by another. The first hand is the same one that
wrote the senatorial candidates in the group of 14 ballots, supra,
under Group I. The slant, pen pressure and terminal strokes
are different from the second hand.

1 ballot (Exh. M-1). This was written by the same per-
son who wrote the votes for provincial and municipal officials in
the ballot discussed in the preceding paragraph. The letter for-
mation, slant and the penlift in “Yerno” are identical.

GROUP XIV

2 ballots (Exhs. N and N-1), They were written by one and
the same person. No attempt to disguise the writing was made.
The sizes of the letters, spacing, alignment and letter formations in
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both ballots are identical. These two ballots are, therefore, vcid.

In resumé, we find that of the 226 ballots declared spurious
by the lower court, 15 are legitimate and should be cast in favor
of the protestee. These ballots are Exhibits A-68; A.79;
A-99; A-64; A-18; A-65; A-88; E-8; E-22; E-23; I;
L-1. The findings of the lower court as to the balance of 211 ballots
should be sustained. Deducting this number from the votes awarded
to the protestee by the Board of Canvassars, we have that the pro-
testant has won the election with a majority of 118 votes.

‘Wherefore, with the above modification, we hereby affirm the
decision appealed from, without pronouncement as to costs.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla Montemayor; A. Reyes; Jugo;
and Labrador, J.J. concur,

XI11

Marc Donnelly & Associates, Inc., Pet'tioner, vs. Manuel Agr-gade,
Auditor General; Cornelio Balmacela, Secretary of Commerce and
Industru; and Ramon L. Paguia, Chief of the Sugar Qota Ojfice,
Respondents, No. L-4510, Mey 31, 1954, Bautista Angelo, J.

1. CONSTITUTIONAL LAW; DELEGATION OF LEGISLATIVE
POWERS; POWERS MAY BE DELEGATED IF AUTHOR-
IZED BY THE CONSTITUTION; ACT OF CABINET IS
ACT OF PRESIDENT.—On July 10, 1946, the President, act-
ing upon the authority vested in him by Commonwealth Act
No. 728, making it unlawful to export agriculturai or indus-
trial products without a permit from the President, prohibited
the exportation of certain materials but allowed the exporta-
tion of other merchandise, like secrap meta's, provided an ex-
port license is first obtained from the Phi'ippine Sugar Ad-
ministration. The Cabinet, upon recommendation of the Nu-
tional Devel t , &P a resol fixing the
schedule of royalty rates to be charged on metal exports and
authorized their collection, Pectitioner exported large amounts -
of serap metals for which it paid by way of royalty fees the
total amount of P54,862.84. Petitioner now seeks the refund
of said royalty fees, contending that the uforesaid resolution
constitntes an undue delezation of legislative powers because,
in substance. it creates and imposes an ad valorem tax. Feld:
The resolution approved by the Cabinet is perfectly legal be-
cause it was done by authority of Commonwealth Act No. 728
and in pursvance of an exoress provision of the Constitution
that Congress may by law authorize the President, subject to
certain limitations, to fix, within specified limits, tariff rates,
import or cxport quotas, and tonnace and wharfare dues.
The fact that the resolution was approved by the Cabinet and
the collection of the royalty fees was rot decreed by virtue
of an order issued by the President himself do°s not invalidate
said resolution because it cannot be dispnted that the Act of
the Cabinet is deemed to be, and essentially is, the act of the
President.

2. ID.: IND.: RULE FORBIDDING DRLEGATION OF LEGIS-
LATIVE POWERS, NOT ABSOV.UTE: EXCEPTIONS.—Th=
rule which forbids delegation of legislative power is not ab-
solute. It admits of excentions as when the Constitution it-
self authorizes such delegation.

8. ID.: PROPERTY RIGHTS: EXPORTATION OF SCRAP ME-
TALS. NOT A RIGHT BUT A PRIVILEGE; AUTHORITY OF
PRESIDENT TO REGULATE EXPORTATION INCLUDES
AUTHORITY TO IMPOSE CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS
FOR THE EXERCISE OF PRIVILEGE.—Commonwealth Act
No. 728 expressly authorizes the President not merely to re-
gulate but to prohibit altogether the exportation of scrap me-
tals. Hence, there is no absolute right on the part of any
person or entity to export such materials. If, however, the
President chooses to grant the privilege, he can impose cordi-
tions and limitations he may deem proper, one of them being
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the payment of royalties for permissive or lawful use of pro-
perty right.

4. ROYALTY RATES, MAY TAKE THE FORM OF TARIFF
RATES; IMPOSITION THEREOF CAN BE DELEGATED
TO THE PRESIDENT.—Royalty rates may take form of tariff
rates, the imposition of which can be delegated to the President
by Congress in pursuance of an express provision of the Con-
stitution.

5. ID.; ROYALTIES NOT IMPOSITION; PAYMENT OF RO-
YALTY IS THE CONSIDERATION FOR THE EXERCISE OF
THE PRIVILEGE; EXPORTER WHO PAYS, GUILTY OF
ESTOPPEL.—The payment of royalty rates cannot be con-
sidered as an imposition or one exacted under duress, for the
exporter who wants to avail of this privilege is free to act
on the matter as his interest might dictate. The payment of
royalty can be considered as the consideration for the exercise
of the privilege and one who avails of that privilege and pavs
the consideration is guilty of estoppel.

Arturo Agustines for the petitioner,

Solicitor General Pompeyo Diaz, Assistant Solicitor General
Francisco Carreon, and Solicitor Augusto M. Luciano for the
respondents.

DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.*

This is a petition for review of a decision of the Auditor Gen-
eral denying the claim of petitioner for the refund of the export
fees paid by it tc the Sugar Quota Office in the amount of P54,862.84

On July 2, 1946, Congress enacted Commonwealth Act No. 728,
making it unlawful for any person, association or corporation to
export agricultural or industrial products, merchandise, articles,
materials, and supplies without a permit from the President of the
Philippines. This Act confers upon the President authority to “re-
gulate, curtail, control, and prohibit the exportation of materials
abroad and to issue such rules and 7 ions as may be n
to carry out the provisions of this Act, thmugh such departmenf
or office as he may designate.”

On July 10, 1946, the President, acting upon the authority
vested in him by Commonwealth Act No. 728, promulgated Execu-
tive Order No. 3, prohibiting the exportation of certain materials
therein enumerated but allowing the exportation of other merchan-
dise, like scrap metals, provided an export license is first obtained
from the Philippine Sugﬂr Administration.

On April 24, 1947, the Chief of the Executive Office, by “author-
ity of the President, sent a ion to the Philippine Sugar
Administration authorizing the exportation of scrap metals upon
payment by the applicants of a fee of P10.00 per ton of the metals
to he expmted Subsequently, the. Cabinet, upon recommendation
of the Nati Company, app ar ion fixing
the schedule of Nyalty rates to he charge on metal erorts

Petiticner herein exported large amounts of serap iron, blass
cepper, and aluminum during the period from December, 1947 to
September, 1948, for which it paid by way of royalty fees the total
amount of P54,862.84. This amount was collected by the Sugar
Quota Office under the authority granted by the Chief of the Fxs—
cutive Office and the resolution of the €abinet-above

“The Congress may by law authorize the President, sub-
ject to such limitations and restrictions, as it may impose, to
fix, within specified limits, tariff rates, import or export quo-
tas, and tonnage and wharfage dues.”

It is clear from the above that Congress may by law authorize
the President, subject to certain liniitations, to fix, within specified
limits, tariff rates, import or export quotas, and tonnage and whars-
age dues. And pursuant to this constitutional provision, Congress
approved Commonwealth Act No. 728 conferring upon the President
authority to regulate, curtail, control, and prohibit the exports of
scrap metals and to issue such rules and regulations as may be
necessary to carry out its provisions. ~And implementing this broad
authority, the Cabinet approved the resolution now in guestion au
thorizing the levy and collection of cretain royalty fees as a condi-
tion for the exportation of scrap metals and other merchandise

In our opinion, this resolution is perfectly legal because it was
done by authority of Commonwealth Act No. 728 and in pursuance
of an express provision of our Constitution. The fact that the
resolution was approved by the Cabinet and the collection of the
royalty fees was not decreed by virtue of an order issued by the
President himself does not, in our opinion, invalidate said resolu-
tion because it cannot be disputed that the act of the Cabinet is
deemed to be, and essentially is, the act of the President, And
this is so because, as this Cou:t has aptly said, the secretaries of

are mere of the Chief Executive and “the
multifarious executive and administrative functions of the Chief
Tixecutive are performed by and through the executive departments,
and the acts of the secretaries of such departments, performed and
promulgated inthe regular course of business, are, unless disapproved
or reprobated by the Chief Executive, presumptively the acts of the
Chief Ezecutive.” (Villena y. The Secretary of Interior, 67 Phil.,
451.) To hold otherwise would be to entertain technicality over
substance: -And with vegard {o the acts of the Cabinet, this con-
clusion acquires added force because, unless shown otherwise, the
Cabinet is deemed to be presided over always by the President himself.

It is contended that the royalty rates prescribed in the Cabinet

resolution ‘are not fees but -in -effect partake of the nature of an

ad valorem tax the imposition of which cannot be delegated to the
President by Congress. The rule which forbids delegation of legis-
iative power is not absolute. It admits of exceptions as when the
Constitution itself authorizes such delegation (Constitution of the
Phxhppmes by Tafiada and Fernando, p. 449). In the present case,
our Ce i expressly k such delegation. [Article
VI, Section 22 (2).] This is so because the royalty rates may
take the form of fariff rates. = At any rate, Commonwealth Act
No. 728 confers upon the President authority to regulate, curtail,
control, and prohibit the exportation of scrap metals, and in this
authority is deemed included the power to exact royalties for per-
missive or lawful use of property right. (Raytheon Mfg. Co-
v. Radio Corporation of America, 190 N. E. 1, 5, 286 Mass. 34,
cited in Words and Phrases, Vol. 87, p. 810)

One pomt - that should be considered is the distinction between
the business of exporting serap metals, on one hand, and other mer-
chandise on the other. As a:rule, common trades or industries, for
the exportation of merchandise in general, cannot be prohibited, but
may only be regulated in the exercise f the police power of the
States; not so wrth regards to serap metals whose exportation may
be completely banned. - This is the core of Commonwealth Act No.
728. - It authorizes the President not merely to regulate but to

The case is now before us by way of appeal from the decision of
the Auditor General who denied the request for refund of said
royaity fees.

Petitioner contends that the resolution of the Cabinet of Octo-
ber 24, 1947, fixing the schedule of ro)alty rates on metal export:
and providing for their collecti an undue del
of legislative powers because, in substance, it creates and imposes
an ad valorem tax.

Article VI, Section 22 (2), of the Constitution provides:
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prohibit al h the exportation” of certain articles, among them
serap metals. Hence, there is no absolute right on the part of
any person or entity to export such materials. But the President,
acting under the authority granted by said Act, did not, in promul
gating Executive Order No. 3, choose to place a complete ban or
the exportation of serap metals, but permitted such exportation
upon payment of certain royalty.- If the President can prohibit
altogether such exportation, a fortiori he can, as he did, impose
conditions and limitations he may deem proper in grunting the
privileges, one of them being the payment of royalties similar to
the one subject of the present litigation.
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The p: of these cannot be ids as con-
tended by petitioner, as an imposition or one exacted under duress,
for the exporter who wants to avail of this privilege is free to act
on the matter as his interest might dictate. Compliance with the
resolution was optional. It was left entirely to his discretion.
If with full knowledge of the condition imposed by the resolution
the exporter of the prohibited article deems it convenient to traf-
fic on it because of the profit he expects to derive from the tran-
saction, he cannot later be heard to complain of what the Gov-
ermment huas exacted because of the presumption that, in spite of
that charge, the transaction would still bring him a substantial
profit. The payment of the royalty can be considered as the con-
gideration for the exercise of the privilege and one who avails of
that privilegza and pays the consideration is guilty of estoppel.
This is the predicament of petitioner.

without

Wherefore, petition is ag to

costs.

Paras, C.J., Labrador, Montemayor and Jugo, J.J.; concur in the
result,

PABLO, M, concurrente:

La recurrente pide la devolucié de la cantidad de P54,968.41
que habia pagado a Ja Sugar Quota Office por el perniso que ob-
tuvo para exportar desperdicios de metal, “scrap metals.” Cuan-
do Ja recurrente pidié permiso estaba enterada de que la Ley del
Commonwealth No. 728 declaraba ilegal, sin permiso del Presidente
de Filipinas, la exportacién de productos, mercancids, articules.
materiales y efectos agricolas e industriales. En su articulo 2.
dicha ley auloriza al Presidente a regular, restringir, controlar y
prohibir dicha exportacién y dictar los reglamentos necesarios para
llevar a efccto las disposiciones de dicha ley. En 10 de j 1o de
1946, ejerciendo los poderes que le conferfa dicha ley, el Presidente
promulgé la orden ejecutiva No. 8 que prohibfa la exportacién de
los materiales enumerados en el articulo lo; pero permitia la ex-
portacién de otras mercancias como los desperdicios de metal con
la condicién de que se obtuvierantes licencia de la Philipoine
Sugar Administration.

En 24 de octubre de 1947 el Gabinete, por recomendacién del
Ad d tle a | N; D Company, aprob6é una
resolucion estableci un of royalty rates on metal ex-
ports.”

La recurrente contiende que la cantidad que pagé de acuerdo
con dicha tarifa (schedule) y que hoy reclama fué un impuesto
sobre las cantidades de desperdicios de hierro, latén, bronce y alu-
minio que habid exportado desde diciembre de 1947 hasta septiem-
bra de 1948,

En 2 de diciembre de 1947 la recurrente, acogiéndose a las dis-
posiciones de la ley del C Ith No. 827, p: té su recla-
macién al Auditor General, alegando que el impuesto era anticons-
titucional, porque el Gabinete no tenia autoridad para adoptar di-
cho impuesto v que solamente el Congreso es el gue esta autorizado
para aprobar ley sobre impuestos. En su decisién de 8 de noviem-
bre de 1950 el Auditor denegé el reembolso, y contra ella ia recur-
rente apelé en 25 de enero de 1951.

Los articulos 1 y 2 de la Ley del Commonwealth No. 327, en
que se funda se reclamacién, dicen asf:

“SECTION 1. In all cases involving the settlement of
accounts or claims, other than those of accountakle officers,
the Auditor General shall act and decide the same within six-
ty days, exclusive of Sundays and holidays, after their pre-
sentation. If said accounts or claims need reference to other
persons. office or offices. or to a party interested, the period
aforesaid shall be counted from the time the last comment
reccssary to a proper decisicn is received by him. With res-
pect tc the accounts of accountable officers, the Auditor Gen-
eral shall act on the same within one hundred days after their
submission, Sundays and holidays excepted.

still pending decision by the Auditor General or befcre the ap-
proval of this Act, the periods provided in this section shall
commence from the date of such approval.

“SEC. 2. The party aggrieved by the final decision of
the Auditor General in the settlement of an account or claim
may, within thirty days from receipt of the decision, take an
appeal in writing:

“(a) To the President of the United States, pending the
final and complete withdrawal of her sovereignty over the
Philippines, or

“(b) To the President of the Philippines, or

“(¢c) To the Supreme Court of the Philippines if the
appellant is a private person or entity.

“If there are more than one appellant, a'l appeals shall
be taken to the same authority resorted to by the first ap-
pellant.

“From a decisicn adversely affecting the interests of the
Government, the appeal may be taken by the proper head of the
department or in case of local governments by the head of the
office or branch of the Government immediately concerned.

“The appeal shall specifically set forth the particular act-
jon of the Auditor General to which exception is taken with
reasons and authorities relied on for reversing such decision.”

Toda reclamacién, al parecer, estd incluida en la palabra
“claims” porque su significado es amplio; pero no estd incluida la
reclamacién que pide el reembolso de una contribucién indebida-
mente cobrada, porque el Cédigo Administrativo de 1916, el Cédigo
Administrativo Revisado de 1917, la Ley No. 3685 y el Cédigo Na-
cional de Rentas Internas dlsponen especificamente ante qué auto-
ridad deben presentarse 1 de bolso de i
ilegalmente cobrados.

Si el Auditor General tiene facultad o ]urlsdmmén para resol-
ver asuntos como el presente, una
antes de la 1 ién de la inds ds seria apelable al Pre-
sidente de los Estados Unidos. No creemos que la Legislatura haya
intentado, ni en suefios, que el Presidente de Estados Unidos y el de
Filipinas se entretuviesen en asuntos de tal naturaleza. Si se tra-
tase, por ejemplo, de recobrar un impuesto ilegalmente cobrado por
poseer licencia de armas de fuego, japelaria el interesado al Pre-
sidente de Estados Unidos si no estuviese satisfecho de la decisién
del Auditor? La palabra “claims” de que habla el articulo 1.0 de
la Ley del Commonwealth No. 327 que se aprobé en 18 de junio
de 1938 no debe referirse a reclamaciones de reintegro de impues-
tos indebid: brad. porque la ién de las mismas ya
estaba dada expr al Ad: ador de Rentas In-
ternas y a los tribunales de justicia por el Cédigo Administrativo
Revisado de 1917, tal como fué enmendado por la Ley No. 3685.

El artfculo 1721 del Cédigo Administrativo de 1916, el articulo
1579 del Cédigo Administrativo Revisado de 1917 y el artfculo 1579
del dltimo cédigo, tal como .fué enmendado por la Ley No. 3685,
dicen textualmente: “When the validity of any tax is questioned,
or its amount disputed, or other question raised as to liability there-
for, the person against whom or against whose property the same
is sought to be enforced shall pay the tax under instant protest,
or upon protest within thirty days, (10 dias en el Céd. Adm. de
1916 y C6d. Adm. de 1917) and shall thereupon request the deci-
sion of the Collector of Internal Revenue. If the decision of the
Collector of Internal Revenue is adverse, or if no decision is made
by him within six months from the date when his decision was
requested, the taxpayer may proceed, at any time within two years
after the payment of the tax to bring an action against the Col-
lector of Internal Revenue for the recovery x x x.” (Art. 1579,
Céd. Adm. Rev., tal como fué enmendado por la Ley No. 3685.)

En las palabras “any tax” empleados en‘los tres cédigos estéin
lufdas todas las 1 i sobre cualquier impuesto inde-

“In case of accounts or claims already submitted to but
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bidamente cobrado: no se refieren a impuestos de rentas internas

solamente.

La disposicién especifica del Cédigo Administrativo Revuado,
tal como fué dado, debe p: 1 sobre la di de
caricter general de la Ley del Commonwealth No. 327: asi lo exige

la hermenéutica legal.

El asunto citado por la mayoria de la Manila Electric Company
contra la Auditor General y Comisién de Servicios Pablicos, 73
Phil,, 128, no puede servir de precedente; no se percataron el Au-
ditor y este Tribunal del articulo 1579 del Cédigo Administrativo
Revisado, tal como fué enmendado, de que el asunto era de la in-
cumbencia del Administrador de Rentas Internas y del Juzgado de
Primera Instancia

El articulo 584 del Cédigo Administrativo Revisado dice asi:
“The authority and powers of the Bureau of Audits extend to and
comprehend all matters relating to accounting procedure, including
the keeping of the accounts of the Government, the preservation
of vouchers, the methods of accounting, the examination and inspec-
tion of the books, records, and papers relating to such accounts,
and to the audit and settlement of the accounts of all persons res-
pecting funds or property received or held by them in an account-
able capacity, as well as to the examination and audit of all debts
and claims of any sort due from or owing to the Government of the

road Co. contra Rafferty, 40 Jur. Fil, 237, se trataba de un inde-
bido aumento de impuesto sobre franquicia, y la cuestién se plantes
ante el Administrador de Rentas Internas y luego ante el Juzgado
de Primera Instancia.

El Auditor General no tiene jurisdiccién para resolver la re-
clamacién fundada en la i itucionalidad del i cobra-
do; tampoco este Tribunal adquiere jurisdiccién apelada.

Por estas razomes, concurro con el sobreseimiente de la causa.

Creo, con el Magistrado Pablo, que el Auditor General carece
de autoridad para determinar la validez de los derechos o “royal-
ties” envueltos en la presente causa.

(Fdo.) Roberto Concepcion

BENGZON, J. dissenting:

With due deference to the majority opinion, my vote is for the
petitioner.

On several occasions, between December 1947 and September
1948, the domestic corporation Marc Donnelly and Associates Inc.
exported considerable quantities of scrap irom, brass, copper and
aluminum, for which it paid under protest to the Sugar Quota Of-
fice as *“ i the total amount of P54,862.84. Such royalties

Philippine Islands in any of its branches x x x" Esta di
no incluye la 1 6

were ad dl led “under the authority granted to it (Su-

e
Darle al Auditor facultad para resolver semejante reclamacién es
concederle funcién judicial.

El Cédigo Nacional de Rentas Internas (en sustitucign del Co-
digo Administrativo Revisado y otras leyes enmendatorias) en vigor
cuando la recurrente presenté su reclamacién dispone lo siguiente:

“SEC. 306. RECOVERY OF TAX ERRONEOUSLY OR
ILLEGALLY COLLECTED. — No suit of proceeding shall be
maintained in any court for the recovery of any national inter-
nal-revenue tax hereafter alleged to have been erroneously or
illegally assessed or collected, or of any penalty claimed to
have been collected without authority, or of any sum alleged
to have been excessive or in any manner wrongfully collected,
until a claim for refund or credit has been duly filed with the
Collector of Internal Revenue; but such suit or proceeding may
be maintained, whether or not such tax, penalty, or sum has
been paid under protest or duress. In any case, no such suit
or proceeding shall be begun after the expiration of two years
from the date of payment of the tax or penalty.”

La cantidad que reclama la recurrente estd incluida en las
siguientes palabras: ‘“of any sum alleged to have been excessive
or in any manner wrongfully collected”, que equivalen a any tax
empleadas por los cédigos anteriores.

No es de la incumbencia del Auditor (,eneml decidir la recla-
macién sobre la ion de i il t brados o de-
clarar que una ley, orden o resolucién que dispone el cobre de un
impuesto, sea a no anticonstitucional. Son dos questiones que deben
resolver las tribunales de justicia, porque son asuntos esencialmente
Jjudiciales y no administrativos. La recurrente, por tanto, debm de

haber pl do la devolucién del i

cobrado ante el Administrador de Rentas Internas primero o la
Philippine Sugar A ration, y si d 0 no se resolviera
su recl it presentar d da ante el Juzgado de Primera

Instancia dentro de dos ailos después de pagados los impuestos.
(Art. 306, Céd. Nac. de Rentas Internas.)

Podria arguir la recurrente que el impuesto hoy discutido no
es de rentas internas sino de exportacién y, por lo tanto, no debiera
pl rse ante el Administrador de Rentas Internas ni en el Juz-
gado de Primera Instancia. Tal contencién seria insostenible, por-
que en Visayan Electric, S.A. contra Saturnino David, ete., G.R. No.
L-5157, abril 27, 1953; Philippine Railway Co. vs. Collector of In-
ternal Revenue, G.R. No. L-3859, marzo 25, 1952; y Manila Rail-
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gar Quota Office) by the resolution of the Cabinet of October 24,
19477, which reads as follows:

“Upon recommendation of the General Manager of the Na-
tional Development Company, the Cabinet approved the following
schedule of royalty rates on metal exports:

Serap copper .. .. P50.00 per metric ton
Scrap brass .. 50.00 per metric ton
Scrap aluminum 20.00 per metric ton
Serap lead 40.00 per metric ton
Scrap cast iron 5.00 per metric ton
Scrap steel ..... 2.00 per metric ton

other than burnt

copper wire G ey, 5.00 per metric ton

Contending that the Cabinet’s resolution was invalid, and that
the payments were involuntary, Mare Donnelly and Associates Inc.
submitted to the Auditor General, in September 1950, a formal claim
for refund, which was denied with the explanation:

“The collection of the royalties in question is based on the re-
solution of the Cabinet, dated October 24, 1947, which is as-
sailed by you as unconstitutional. Inasmuch as this Office
has no power to pass upon the constitutionality or validity of
said resolution and the fact that the resolution is presumed to
be constitutional unless declared by a competent court to be
otherwise, the request for refund of royalties collected by vir-
tue of said resolution is hereby denied.”

Reversal of the Auditor’s decision is now requested under the pro-
visions of Com. Act No. 327 and Rule 45 of the Rules of Court.
In Manila Electric v. Auditor General, 73 Phil. 128, we entertained
a similar petition.

It is urged that the execution is illegal, the Cabinet having
no lawful power to require the collection of “royalty” fee on me-
tal exports.

As the Auditor General Disapproved the refund solely upon
the ground that the Cabinet’s resolution “should be presumed to
be constitutional unless declared by a competent court to be other-
wise”, the question is the Cabinet’s authority to direct the collec-
tion of the aforesaid royalties.

No statute has been quoted authorizing ‘the Cabinet to levy
the assessment. Observe that “the taxing power of the State is
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exclusively a leglslatlve function, and taxes can be imposed only
in of ity” (61 CJ. p. 81).

However, seeking to justify the collection, the respondents have
formulated these propositions:

1. Commonwealth Act No. 728, July 1946, made it unlawful
to export agricultural or industrial products, materials or supplies,
without a permit from the President. It authorized the President
to regulate, control or prohibit exportation of materials and to
igsue rules and regulations in connection therewith.

2. In the exercise of such authority, the President promul-
gated Executive Order No. 3 prohibiting the exportation of scrap
metal unless an export license was first obtained from the Philip-
pine Sugar Administration. Subsequently the Cabinet at its 132nd
meeting of Otcober 24, 1947 approved the resolution in question.

3. And the President authorized the collection by the indorse-
ment of the Chief of the Executive Office dated April 24, 1947
which reads as follows:

“Respectfully referred to the Philippine Sugar A ‘m'nistra-
tion, Manila, hereby authorizing the exportation of scrap brass
and scrap metals representing only the balance of the expert
permits issued before November 1, 1946, upon payment by the
applicants concerned of a fee of P10.00 per ton of scrap brass
and scrap metals to be exported.”

4. The President was validly authorized by Congress (deleéa-
tion of legislative power) (Art. VI Sec. 22 (2) Constitution) to
regulate, control and prohibit the exportation of metals.

5. “When the Cabinet, the highest advisory-body to the Pres-
ident approved the resolution in question and the President himself
authorized the Sugar Quota Office to levy and collect royalties as
fixed in said resolution, this was done by authority of Com. Act
No. 728.”

6. The authority to regulate included the authority to exact
royalties or export dues.

To repeat, the respondents’ defense is founded on the above
propositions which for i have been b in six se-
parate pa hs to i

or analysis.

The first two paragraphs are undeniable. The third is incor-
rect insofar as it asserts that these royalties were demanded pur-
suant to the indorsement of April 24, 1947. The Auditor-General
expressly found they were demanded by virtue of the resolution of
the Cabinet —not by the indorsement— and this involves a ques-
tion of fact, the indorsement referring specifically to exports “re-
presenting only the balance ete.” which did not evidently cover
herein petitioner’s consignments abroad.

The fourth proposition is correct.

as the i of the office is inap-
plicable, the fifth proposition poses the crucial question whether
the Cabinet approved the resolution by authority of Com. Act No.
728. The authority to regulate —and to require payment of fees
on — exports was entrusted to the President. That power was not
expressly delegated by the President to the Cabmnet. (It
is doubtful whether he could validly do so.) And the Cabinet is
not the President. True, the President presides Cabinet meetings,
but his voice is only one, convincing though it may be. Further-
more, the Cabinet may meet without the presence of the President.
The conclusions of the Cabinet and its resolutions are not neces-
sarily the President’s. We may not, therefore, hold that, in the
eyes of the law, the Cabinet's resolution of October 24, 1947 was
the act of the President. It was the act of the Cabinet, that had
no statutory authority to require payment of royalties or export
fees. Our ruling in the Vilena case? followed by the m-jori'y,
applies only to executive powers of the President — not to legis-
lative powers delegated to him. Delegata potestas delegari non

(3) Villena v. Secretary of the Interior 67 Phil. 451
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potest.
As a pr¢ the r d claim the entire
transaction “might be regarded as a contract between the govern-

ment, the latter conceded to the exporters the privilege of export-
mg certam goods the export of which could otherwise have been

The govi theref collected the royalty, not
by virtue of its taxing power, but in the exercise of a contractual
right.”

But the comparison is unacceptable, because the exporter was
not on equal footing with the government; it was virtually under
duress. The officers said, “pay, otherwise your metals will not be
exported.” And the exporter had to disgorge, under protest;
otherwise his goods would rust and rot. And then, accepting the
comparison for the sake of argument, I think ‘“the Government”(X)
means the appropriate governmental agency, which in this
instance should be the Legislature or the President (at most).
Surely not the Cabinet.

Supposing however that the resolution of the Cabinet might
be regarded as a Presidential directive, the question remains whe-
ther the President himself had power to exact the “royalty”. In
my opinion he had not. Under Com. Act 728 he could, at most,
require a license fee; but a “royalty” is not a fee. It connotes
some kind of ownership4, far different from that power of re-
gulation justifying the exaction of license fees. Yet even supposing
the royalty had been labeled “export fees”, it would undoubtedly
be also unauthorized, because, virtually, it was a taz, for it ended
to produce revenue — ad valorem charges. It was not collected
merely as compensation for services rendered, in the interest of
necessary regulations. This difference between fees and taxes is
well-known in this jurisdictionS. the cne imp'ying the exc:reise
of police power, and the other the taxing power. And authority
to collect fees, does not ordinarily embrace the power to impose
tuxesS.

In this regard it is noteworthy that, doubting the validity of
these exactions, the House approved in 1950 a bill (H. Bill No.
511) validating the Cabinet action re royalties on metal exports.
Such bill, nowever, failed to pass the Senate, because there were
objections to its retroactive operations.

It is said that, because the President had the power to regu-
late and prohibit exportation of metals, he could permit exporta-
tion thereof upon payment of taxes. This is a tantamount to say-
ing, as the Secretary of Education has the power to regulate the
establishment and operation of schools, he may, instead of regulat-
ing, just require the schools to pay taxes — without supervision,
inspection, etc. And because the City of Baguio has authority to
control or prohibit the establishment of gambling houses, and houses
of ill fame (Sec. 2553 (u) Rev. Adm. Code), it may permit their
operation upon payment of taxes. Extreme examples indeed: but
they illustrate the idea that the police power to prohibit, or regu-
late, does not include the power to permit upon payment of taxes.

The power of regulation and prohibition in the case of schools
or gambling houses is founded upon the same principles as the
power to prohibit exportation of metals: pro bono publico. Police
power. Such regulation of prohibition cannot be bartered away in
exchange for thousands of pesos.

It is also said that the matter was not within the jurisdiction

" (x) The question is not whether the Government may tax metal export
{©) Abparently wuch was tho Gnbinets view: It approved the coeolution induced

a um of the General Manager, National Development Co.
saying: ““How it is an indisputable fact that t! rap iron, serep
metals, scrap brass, etc. that were lying in any public places and waters.
especally sunken ships and barges, belon; o

o
the parties who were

issued licenses
of a minimum of §

.00 or

£10.00 per ton or serap irom, scrap metals, scrap brass, ete. that may
be exported.” But this “ownership” was not pressed here.
lection in_ thi a mistaken application of the Cabi
a3 the metals exported were not shown to be “lying In public places and

Waters especially. sunken ships and barges.”
Phi

(5) Manila Electric C uditor General, ng v. Fal-
one, 42 Phil. o18: Phil, Transit v asur 7, 1049,

(6) cf. Cooley on 10241 Vol, Pp. County v.
Dunn. 21 Colo. 185, 40 Pac, 357  Jackson v. 5. b5;

Western U. Tel. Co. v. City Council 56 Fed. 419
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of the Auditor General’s Office. It was a “claim x x x due from
x X x the government of the Philippine Islands” within the mean-
ing of Art. 584 of the Revised Administrative Code. It was also
a claim within the scope of C.A. 327. The fact that appeal to the
President of the U.S. is no longer feasible, does not have, in my
opinion, the effect of annulling the whole law (C.A. No. 327).

Granted that the Auditor General had no authority to annul
the Cabinet’s resolution, still it does not follow that the Auditor
had no power to take cognizance of the monetary claim against
the Government. Before him were two questions: Was the tax
collected in accordance with the Cabinet’s resolution? Was this

1 valid or ituti ? He the first in the
As to the second he said he must hold it valid because
he had no power to annul it. He thought prudently; but he acted
on the claim. And we now have appellate jurisdiction. Had he
decided both questions in the negative, appeal could still be made
to this Court.

affirmative.

Let us remember that this being a government of laws, its
officers may only exercise those powers expressly or implied by
them without authority are void, confer no rights, afford no pro-
tection. Royalties in taxes demanded without lawful authority and
paid under protest, should be returned” no matter the conse-
quent loss of revenue. The citizens will thus be imbued with the
fullest respect, the utmost loyalty to constituted authority and re-
publican government.

A, Reyes, J., concur in this dissent.
(1) Zaragoza v. Alforso, 46 Phil. 169

paiig

Ignacio Arnido, Plaintiff-Appellee, vs. Alfonso Francisco, De-
fendant-Appellant, G. R. No. L-6764, June 30, 1954, Labrador, J.

1. PUBLIC LAND; MERE OCCUPATION AND PLANTING
DOES NOT CONVERT IT INTO PRIVATE LAND; ACQUISI-
TION IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLIC LAND LAW. — The
mere occupation of public land by the applicant and the planting
thereon of improvements do not convert it into a private land.
and it may, therefore, be acquired only in accordance with the
public land law.

2. ID.; JUDGMENT BASED ON ADMISSION, NOT BIND-
ING ON DEFENDANT WHO IS NOT PARTY TO THE AC-
TION. — A judgment based on an admission contained in a com-
promise agreement between the parties can not bind the defend-
ant who was not a party to the action, especially where there
is no showing that he has acquired his right fraudulently.

Jose M. Angustia for plaintiff and appellee.
Jose L. Alman'c; for defendent and appellant.

DECISION
LABRADOR, J.:

This is an action to recover the title to and possession of a
certain parcel of land in the bariio of Kabangkalan, Placer, Mas-
bate, designated as Lot 1 in sketch plan attached to Exhibit A, to-
gether with damages. The case was presented for decision upon an
agreed statement of facts, the most pertinent of which are as
follows: The land forms part of the homestead application of one
Albaro Vergara, H. A. No. 123545, which was presented in July,
1926 (Exhibit A). - The application was approved on June 2, 1981,
and given Entry Np. 83952. On October 17, 1941, Albaro Vergara
sold the land applied for to defendant Alfonso Francisco for P370
(Exhibit C), and on August 10, 1948, Vergara assigned his home-
stead rights thereto (Exhibit B), and after proper investigation and
report by a land officer (Exhibits E and E-1), the assignment was
recommended for approval. Thereupon, Alfonso Francisco filed
his own homestead application for the land (Exhibit D).
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It also appears from the agreed statement of facts that in an
action of forcible entry and detainer filed by Arnido against Ver-
gara, which was appealed to the Court of First Instance, it was
found by that court that on July 13, 1939, one Joaquin Ferrer sold
a land, eleven hectares in area to Arnido, and in the same deed
of sale, Vergara sold the coconuts and bamboes on the land pur-
chased; that the land had been the object of controversy between
the said Ferrer and Vergara before the Bureau of Lands, and that
the latter had adjudicated it to Vergara; that Ferrer could not
have sold the land, because it was not his, and that Vergara had
a better right thereto. The court absolved the defendant from the
action (Exhibit F).

It further appears that in September, 1940, Arnido presented
an action to recover the title to the property against Albaro Ver-
gara, Civil Case No. 989-R (Exhibit G). The records of the case
were destroyed during the last war, and after its reconstitution in
November, 1948, Vergara recognized Arnido’s title to the property
in a compromise (Exhibit H-1), as a result of which judgment was
entered in favor of Arnido (Exhibit H). The agreed statement is
to the effect that the lands officer who investigated the transfer
of homestead rights in favor of Francisco was not aware of this
case or of the compromise and judgment. The judgment entered
upon the compromise is dated November 27, 1948, and was execu-
ted by the sheriff, but defendant herein refused to deliver the
property to plaintiff (Exhibits I & I-1).

The trial court held that the land is private land, solely on
the alleged ground that it was improved. The alleged improve-
ments consist of some 15- to 35-year old coconut trees and Lanenas
existing thereon even before Vergara applied for it as homestead
in the year 1926, but which are admitted to belong to Vergara.
Some of the trees must have been planted on the land before
Vergara applied for it in 1926. No evidence, however, has been
presented that the land was owned by any one pricr to Vergara’s

i But mere ion of public land and the planting
thereon of improvements do not convert it into private land. The
mere fact that Vergara applied for it as homestead shows that he
occupied it as public land. His admission in the compromise agree-
ment that it belonged to Arnido, which is contrary to his conduct
in applying for the land as homestead, is no evidence that the
land is private land. The agreed statement also expressly concedes
that it is part of H. A. No. 123545 The conclusion of the trial
court that it is private land is, therefore, without any foundation
in law or fact. We find that the land is not private but public
land, and as such it is subject to scquisition in accordance with
the public land law.

The other conclusions of the trial court, especially those based
on its findings that the land in question is private land, are also
incorrect. The judgment in Civil Case No. 989-H, based on an ad-
mission contained in a compromise agreement between the parties
dated November 27, 1948, can not bind the defendant Francisco,
who was not a party to the action. When Vergara made the com-
promise, he was no longer in possession of the land, as he had
sold his rights thereto to Francisco in October, 1941, and executed
the deed of assignment of his-homestead rights in favor of Alfonso
Francisco also on August 10, 1948 (Exhibits C and B); all his
acts prejudicial to Francisco’s rights can not be binding or effect-
ive against the latter. Franciscos’ purchase of Vergara's rights
can not be said to be fraudulent. There is no evidence to prove bad
faith, and good faith is presumed.

It is unnecessary to consider the other conclusions of the trial
court, such as the applicability of Article 1473 of the Spanish Civil
Code and the fraudulent acts of Francisco's transferor, as these
are not material to the decision of the case. If Vergara has been
guilty of fraud perpetrated on Arnido, let him be made to account
therefor to the latter, but in no case may Francisco, a third party,
be made to suffer from the effects of his double-dealing.

The judgment entered in the case is hereby reversed, and
i d, and the defend 11 Alfonso Fran-

the action
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cisco absolved from the complaint, with costs against the plaintiff-
appellee.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Montemayor, Rzyes, Jugo,
Bautistu Angelo and Concepcion, J.J., concur.

X

Damaso Cabuyao, Plaintiff-Appellant, vs. Domingo Caagbay,
el at.,, Defendants-Appellees, G. R. Nu. L-6636, August 2, 1954,
Concepeion, J .

1. EXTRAJUDICIAL PARTITION; AFFIDAVIT OF EXTRA-
JUDICIAL AJUDICATION; REQUISITES.—An affidavit of
extrajudicial adjudication suffices to settle the entire estate
of the deced: if the following i are present, name-
ly: (a) that the decedent left no debts; and (b) that the
heirs and legatees are all of age, or the minors are represent-
ed by their judicial guardian.

2. ID.; ID.; JUDICIAL DECLARATION TO SUCCEED DE-
CEASED, NOT NECESSARY TO ASSERT A CAUSE OF
ACTION AS AN HEIR.—Where the pleadings in question al-
leged, and it was not denied, (1) that plaintiff was the so'e
heir of the decedent, (2) that he was of age, and (3) that
the decedent left no debts — he has a right to assert a cause
of action as an alleged heir without judicial declaration to that
effect.

Jose L. Desvarro for the plaintiff and appellant,
Ed Espinosa Antona for the defendants and appellees.
DECISION
CONCEPCION, J.:

This is an appeal from as order of the Court of First Instance
of Quezon dismissing civil case No. 5308 of said court.

It appears that said case was instituted on April 9, 1952, 1In
the original complaint, plaintiff-appellant Damaso Cabuyao alleged
that he is the “lone compulsary heir” of the spovscs Prud neio Ca-
buyao and Dominga Caagbay, who died leaving the e'even (11)
parcels of land therein described, and that, although plaintiff had
adjudicated said properties to himself, pursuant to section 1 of Rule
74 of the Rules of Court, the corresponding transfer certificates
of title could not be issued in his name because the original owner’s
duplicate certificates were being witheld by the defendan!s, Domingo
Caagbay and Eugenio Caagbay, who had also taken possession ot
said parcels of land, and would continue unlawfully using the same
and acts of di thereof, unless enjoined by the
court. Hence, he prayed that a writ of preliminary injunction be
issned against the defendants and that, thereafter, judgment be
rendered; (a) sentencing them {o vacate said lands, to turn them
over to the plaintiff, and to indemnify him in the sum of P4,000.00;
(k) “removing clouds and qmetmg htle of the plamtlff" over said
properties; and (c) the to der to him
or to the Register of Deeds the aforesaid owner’s duplicate certi-
ficates of title and, should they fail to do so, to order the canc:l-
lation thereof and the issuance of the corresponding transfer cer-
tificates of title in favor of the plaintiff.

On April 21, 1952, defendants filed a motion to dismiss for
lack of “jurisdiction over the subject-matter”, the original com-
plaint being entitled “Unlawful Entry and Detainer”. By an or-
der, dated April 29, 1952, plaintiff was required to file an am:nd-
ed complaint, stating therein the date on which the defendants had
seized the properties in dispute and their grounds therefor.

On Apnl 30 1952, plaintiff moved for the admission of an

int, which luded Eugenio Caagbay as party de-

fendant, and included, as such, Vicente, Irineo, Antonio, Emilio,
Aurca and Felisa, all surnamed Caagbay. Stating that plaintiff’s
counsel was “converting this simple case into a complicaled one”,
the court, by an order dated June, 4, 1952, granted plaintiff another
five (5) days within which “to file an amended complaint, in ac-
cordance with section 3, Rule 17 of the Rules of Court,” setting
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forth the data required in the order of April 29, 1952, In ecom-
pliance therewith, plaintiff filed, on June 12, 1952, an amended

i which the defend: sought to be dismissed upon the
ground that “plaintiff has no legal capacity to sue,” there being no
allegation that “plaintiff had been judicially dec’arzd lone com-
palsory heir” of the deceased spouses Prudencio Cabuyao and Do-
minga Caagbay. On motion of the defendants, dated July 5, 1952,
the court issued, on July 22. 1952, an order dismissing the case,
with costs against the plaintiff, for the reason that, “under the
facts and circumstances of this case, as disclosed by the pleadings,
no action can be maintained until a judicial declaration of heirship
has been legally secured.”

Soon later, or on August 1, 1952, plaintiff moved for the re-
consideration of said order of July 22, 1952, and for the admission
of another d int thereto hed. In this pleadi
plaintiff alleged that he owns the parcels of land above-mentioned,
having acquired the same by inheritance from his parents, Pruden~
cio Cabuyao and Dominga Caagbay, who died on April 8, 1919 and
August 14, 1944, respectively; that despite the ahove mentirned
extrajudicial adjudication of said properties made by plain‘iff in
his favor, as the “only issue and/or successor” of his aforemention-
ed parents, pursuant to section 1 of Rule 74 of the Rules of Court,
the corresponding transfer certificates of title could mot be issued
in his name, the owner’s duplicate of the original certificates of
title having been taken by the defendants, who are nephews and
nieces of the deceased Dominga Caagbay, except defendant Domingo
Caagbay. who is her brother; that, upor the death of Dominga Ca-
agbay on August 14, 1944, the defendants took possession of the
lands in dispute and have continuously enjoyed the fruits and rents
thereof, agyregating P4,000; and that the defendants will continue
unlawfully exercising and/nr claiming ownership over said proper-
ties and violating plaintff’s dominical rights, unless a writ of in-
junction be issued against them. The prayer in the last amended
complaint reads*

“WHEREFORE. it is herehy respectfully asked that a pre-
liminary injunction be issued against the defendants, their re-
presentatives, tenants, or any other person receiving instrue-
tions from them or acting in their behalf prohibiting them from
re-entering the lunds above-described or collecting the fru‘ts
thereof, for which purpose plaintiff is willing and ready to file
corresponding bond, and, after due hearing, judgment be render-
ed:

(a) removing clouds and quieting the title of the plaintiff
over the properties in guestion and ordering the defendants to
vacate and restitute sold properties to the herein plaintiff;

(b) ordering said defendants, jointly and severally to pay
the herein plaintiff the aniount of Four Thousand Pesos
(P4,000.00) as damages;

(c) ordering the defendarts to surrender to the Register of
Deeds of the Province, or to herein plaintiff the titles of the
lands above-described and, in case of failure to do so to order
the cancellation of said titles and to issue corresponding dupli-
cates in the name of the herein plaintiff, upon payment of the
corresponding fees; and to pay costs of this svit.

PLAINTIFF, prays for any other relief or remedy just and
equitable in the premises.”

Attached to said pleading was plaintiff's affidavit of extra-
judicial adjudication (Exhibit A), as well as the documents append-
ed thereto, namely: the death certificate of Prudencio Cabuyao
(Annex A); the certificate of burial of Dominga Caagbay (Annex
B); and the baptismal certificate of plaintiff Damaso Cabayao
(Annex C). In said Exhibit A, plaintiff declared that he was
born in Tayabas on December 13, 1925, “the only child or heir of
the espouses Prudencio Cabuyao and Dominga Caagbay,” both in
question, and left no debts whatsoever, and prayed that the cor-
responding transfer certificates of title be issued in his name. It
appears from Arnex A, that Prudencio Cabuyao, married to Do-
minga Caigbay, died on April 8, 1919 and was burried in Tayahas,
Quezon, the next day. Annex B shows that Dominga Caagbay, wi-
dow of Prudencio Cabuyao, was buried in Tayabas, Quezon, on
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August 5, 1944. Annex C, states that Damaso Cabuyao, the legi-
timate son of Prudencio Cabuyao and Dominga Caagbay, who were
lawfully married, was born on December 10, 1896, was christened
by the parish priest of San Miguel Arcangel, Tayabas, province of
Quezon, on December 13, 1896.

Defendants objected to said motion for reconsideration and to
the ion of the int and, on August 6, 1952, the
court issued the following: »

ORDER
“AFTER considering plaintiffs motion for the reconsidera-
tion nf the order of July 22, 1952, and the admlssxon of ths
int thereto hed and
thereto, this Court has arrived 2t the conclusion that said mo-
tion should be, as it is hereby, DENIED for lack of merit. As
stated in the order of the reconsideration of which is prayed,
it is impossible for plaintiff to maintain the action in this
case because he and the party defendants alleged to be the
heir of the same decedents and there has been no showing
that they have been judicially declared as heir of the deceased.

Once the question of who are the heirs is determined, it may

not be necessary for the plaintiff to file the complaint in this

case.” (Amended Record on Appeal, pp. 49-50)

Plaintiff has appealed to this Court, and now he contends:

“I. That the court below erred in sustaining the moticn
to dismiss dated July 15, 1952,

II. That the court below erred in holding that ‘in this
case no action can be maintained until a judicial declaration
of heirship has been legally secured’.

III. That the court below erred in denying the motion
for reconsideration dated July 21, 1952, and in not giving due
course to the second amended complaint.” (Brief for Appel-
lant, p. 3)

In the pleadings in question, it is alleged and, in the orders and
briefs before us, it is not denied, that the lands in dispute belonged
originally to the espouses Prudencio Cabuyao and Dominga Caagbay,
who were legally married; that plaintiff Damaso Cabuyao is their
“lone” legitimate child; and that the defendants are nephecws and
nieces of Dominga Caagbay, except of defendant Domingo Caag-
bay, who is her brother. The cnly question for determination be-
fore us is whether, under the foregoing facts, which, for purpose
of this appeal, must be assumed to be true, plaintiff has a cause
of action to recover the properties in dispute and to quiet his al-
leged title thereto. The defendants maintain, and the lower court
held, that plaintiff’s alleged right to succeed the deceased must be
settled by a judicial declaration to such effect before said cause
of action could be asserted in his favor. This view is, however,
in conflict with the law and with a rule well established in our
jurisprudence, Section 1, of Rule 74 of the Rules of Court reads:

“If the decedent left no debts and the heirs and legatees
are all of age, or the minors are represented by their judicial
guardians, the parties may, without securing letters of adminis-
tration, divide the estate among themselves as they see fit by
means ot a public instrument filed in the office of the register
of deeds, and should they disagree, they may do so is an or-
dinary action: of partition. If there is only one heir or one lega-
tee, he may adjudicate to himself the entire estate by means of
an affidavit filed in the office of the register of deeds. It shall
be presumed that the decedent left no debts if no creditor files
a petition for letters of administration within two years after
the death of the decedent.” (Underscoring supplied.)

Pursuant thereto, plaintifi’s affidavit of extrajudicial adjudi-
cation in his favor sufficed tc settle the estate in question, if the
following conditions are present, namely: (a) that the decedents left
no debts and (b) that the heirs and legatees are all of age, or the
minors are represented by their judicial guardians. The presence
of the first requirement is presumed, no creditor having filed a pe-
tition for letters of administration within two (2) years after the
death of the decedents. The allegations of the original and the
amended complaints — which, for the purpose of this appeal, should
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be regarded as true — show that plaintiff is the sole heir of the
decedent, that he is of age, and that the second requirement is,
likewise, present. Hence, plaintiff can not be denied the full foree
and effect of the provision above quoted.

Moreover, the Spanish Civil Code, which was in force when
the events material to the issue before us took place, provided:
“Art. 657. The rights to the succession of a person are
transmitted from the moment of his death.

Art. 661. Heirs succeed to all the rights and obligations
of the decedent by the mere fact of his death.”

Thus, as early as 1904, this Court entertained, in the cace
of Mijares v. Nery (3 Phil. 195), the action of an acknowledged
natural child to recover property belonging to his deceased father
— who had not been survived by any legitimate decedent — ngt-
withstanding the absence of a previous declaration of heirship in
favor of the plaintiff, although the latter’s claim did not prosper
for it was predicated upon the theory that the defendant — as
illegitimate children of the deceased pursuant to the laws of Torn,
which were in force at the time of their birth — had no right to
succeed their common father, and such pretense was not sustained,
the latter having died after the promulgation of the Civil Code of
Spain, under the provisions of which said defendants were, like-
wise, acknowledged- natural children, and, as such, had the same
rights as the plaintiff.

The right to assert a cause of action as an alleged heir, al-
though he has not heen judicially declared to be so, has been ae-
knowledged in a number of subsequent cases.

“The property of the deceased, both real and personal,
became the property of the heir by the mere fact of death of
his predecessor in interest, and he could deal with it in pre-
cisely the same way in which the deceased could have dealt
with it, subject only to the Jimitations which by law or by
contract were imposed upon the deceased himself. x x x” (Sui-
liong & Co. vs. Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. et al., 12 Phil. 13
19.)

“Claro Quison died in 1902, It was proven at the trial
that the present plaintiffs are the next of kin and heirs, but it
is said by the appellant that they are not entitled to maintain
this action because there is no evidence that any proceedings
have been taken in court for the settlement of the estate of
Claro Quison, and that, without such settlement, the heirs can
not maintain this action. There is nothing in this point.
As well by the Civil Code as by the Code of Procedure, the
title to property owned by a person who dies intestate passes
at once to his heirs. Such transmission is, under the present
law, subject to the claim of administration and the property
may be taken from the heirs for the purposes of paying debts
and expenses, but this does not prevent the immediate passage
of the title, upon the death of the intestate, from himself to
his heirs. Without some showing that a judicial administrator
had been appeinted in proceedings to settle the estate of Claro
Quison, the right of the plaintiffs to maintain this action is
established.” (Quison vs. Szlud, 12 Phil, 109, 113-114)

“It is alleged in the complaint that the plaintiff, Silvestre
Lubrico, is an only child, and therefore the sole general heir
of the original owners of the property, and no proof was of-
fered at the trial to show that there was any other descendant
entitled to succeed besides the vlaintiff, who, on her part, has
shown herself to be the legitimate daughter of the late Guiller-
mo Lubrico and Venancia Jaro.

If heirs succeed the deceased by their own right and ope-
ration of law in all his rights and obligation by the mere fact
of his death, it is unquestionable that the plaintiff, in fact
and in law, succeeded her parents and acquired the ownership
of the land referred to in the said title, by the mere fact of
their denth. (Arts. 440, 657, 658, 659, and 661, Civil Code.)

Even in the event that there should be a coheir or a coowner
of the parcel of land is question, once the right of the plain-

(Continued on page 571)
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DECISION OF THE COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Hotel & Restaurant Free Workers (FFW), Complainant vs.
Kim San Cafe & Restaurant et al., Respondents, Case No. 169-ULP,
Lunting, J.

1. COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS; UNFAIR LABOR
PRACTICES; REMEDIES AND PENALTIES. — In the event
of a finding by the Court in an unfair labor practice case
initiated under section 5, Republic Act No. 875, that any per-
son has engaged or is engaging in unfair labor practice, only
the remedies provided in said section may be granted. In
such case, the Court should not and cannot at the same time
impose the penalties prescribcd in section 25, Republic Act No.
875. On the cther hand, in e¢2se the imposition of the penal-
ties preseribed in section 25 is sought, a criminal complaint
or informaiton must be filed and the requirements of due pro-
cess as to procedure and evidence in ordinary criminal cases
must be observed.

2. ID.; ID.; CHARGE OF UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE NOT A
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT. — The charge filed by the com-
plainzant union cannot in any way be considered as a criminal
complaint or information which could serve as the basis of a
criminal proceeding. Moreover, the absence of an arraignment
and plea which, among others, are fundamental requirements
of due process in criminal cases, is sufficient to cause the set-
ting aside of the imposition of a fine in such case.

3. ID:; ID.; PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED IN UNFAIR
LABOR PRACTICE CASES. — In a case initiated under See-
tion 5 of Republic Act No. 875, this Court cannot in the same
proceeding consider both the unfair labor practice aspect and
the criminal aspect. The procedure to be followed in unfair
labor practice cases is prescribed in said section and it is
certainly very lax and liberal as compared te the procedure
followed in criminal cases. The imposition of a fine or im-
prisonment pursuant to Section 25 in an unfair labor practice
case initiated under Section 5 would result in the crimihal
conviction of a person in violation of due process. Further-
more, there is marked incompatibility between the two proceed-
ings as regards the sufficiency of evidence. In an unfair la-
bor practice case, only substantial evidence is required to sus-
tain a finding that unfair labor practice has been committed;
on the other hand, to justify a judgment of conviction in a
criminal case, there must be proof beyond reasonable doubt.

4 ID.; ID.; IMPOSITION OF A FINE; WHEN PROPER. —
Imposition of a fine under the first paragraph of section 25,
Republic Act No. 875, can only be done in case there is an
express finding that a person has violated section 8 of that
Act. On the other hand, to justify the imposition of the fine
under the second paragraph of section 25, there must be an
express finding that a person has committed a violation of
Republic Act No. 875, which is declared unlawful. Where there

had been no such findings but only the imposition of the fine,
the requirenient of section 2 of Rule 116 of the Rules of Court
that a judgment of conviction shall state “the legal qualifica-
tion of the offense constituted by the acts committed by the
defendant” had not been complied with.

5. ID.; ID.; INITIAL STEPS IN UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE
PROCEEDINGS. — Under the provision of section 5 (b) of
Republic Act No. 875, there are three initial steps which
must be followed in unfair labor practice proceedings, namely:

(1) The filing of a charge by the offended party or his
representative that a person has engaged or is engaging in
unfair labor practice;

(2) The investigation of ruch charge by this Court or any
agency or agent designated by it;

(8) The issuance and service by this Court or its designat-
ed agency or agent of a complaint upon the person charged
with committing unfair labor practice. The above steps, among
others, are indispensable requirements of due process in un-
fair labor practice proceedings and not mere technicalities of
law and procedure.

6 1ID.; ID.; FUNCTION OF A CHARGE. — The function vf a
charge is merely that of putting the machinery of the Board
in motion. A charge may, by limited analogy, be compared
with an ‘information’ in eriminal procedure A charge, like an
information, is neither a pleading nor proof, but is merely a
verified notification to an appropriate government agency of
the commission by a designated person of a specific violation
of the law over which such agency has jurisdiction, At this
point the similarity between a charge and an information ends
In the case of an information, if the information complies with
the requirements of the law, appropriate process may issue forth-
with to bring the offender into court. However, in the case
of the charge filed with the Board, such is not the procedure. .
In proceedings before the Board the mere filing of the charge,
no matter how grave the alleged offense nor how adequately
the offense may be recited, does not in and of itself sanction
and i issuance of ing process. With the filing
of the charge, it devolves upon the Board’s General Director,
but subject to review and final decision by the Board’s General
Counsel, to conduct the preliminary investigation to determine
the necessity for the issuance of and, if required by the facts,
to issue the complaint.

7. ID.; ID.,; INDISPENSABILITY OF A PRELIMINARY IN-
VESTIGATION. — Under the original Act it was held that
once a charge was filed it was incumbent upon the Board to in-
vestigate the matter. While in evaluating the results of thka
investigation the Board enjoy:d broad diserestior and the right

SUPREME COURT DECISION (Continued)

tiff, and consequently her personality, has been proven the de-
fendant has mo right to dispute them. x x x.” (Lubrico vs.
Arbado, 12 Phil. 591, 596-597)

“There is no legal precept or established rule which im-
poses the necessity of a previous legal declaration regarding
their status on heirs to an intestate estate on these who, being
of age and with legal capacity, consider themselves the legal
heirs of a person, in order that they may maintain an action
arising ont of a right which helonged to their ancestor.” (Her-
nardez vs. Padua, syllabus, 14 Phil, 194.)

See, also, Inocencio v. Gat-Panden, 14 Phil. 491; Sy Joe Lieng
vs. Sy Quia. 16 Phil. 137; Alnea v. Alcantara, 16 Phail. 439;
Irlando v. Pitargas, 28 Phil. 383; Castillo v, Castillo, 23 Phil.
364; Noble Jose v. Uson, 27 Phil. 73; Beltran v. Soriano, 32 Ph:l.
66; Bona v. Briones, 38 Phil. 276; Uy Coque v. Navas L. Siocs,
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45 Phil. 430; Fule v. Fule, 46 Phil. 817; Orozco v. Garcia, 50
Phil. 149; Gibbs v. Gov’t of the P.I., 59 Phil. 293; Mendoza Vda.
de Bonnevie v. Cecilio Vda. de Parde, 59 Phil. 456; Lorenzo v.
Posadas, 64 Phil. 363; Gov't v. Serafica, 32 Off. Caz. 334; De
Vera vs. Galauran, 67 Phil. 213; and Cuevas v. Abesamis, 71
Phil, 147,

In view of the foregoing, the order appealed from is hereby
reversed, and let the record of this case be, as it is hereby remanded
to the court of origin fer further proceedings not inconsistent with
this decision, with costs against the defendants-appellees.

It is so ordered.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Padilla, Mentemayor, A. Reyes, Jugo, Bau-
tista Angelo, Labrador, and J. B. L. Reyes, J.J., concur.

Order appealed from, reversed
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of decision, the duty of making the preliminary examination
itself was a mandatory duty. Although the amended Act pres-
cribes that the Board’s General Counsel ‘shall have final author-
ity, on the Board’s behalf, in respect of the investigation of
charges and issuance of complaints under Section 10 . ., ., it
is doubtful whether this provision effects any change in re-
gard to the basic duty of conducting a preliminary investiga-
tion. While this provision of the amended Act manifestly has
the effect of shifting the right of decision in evaluating the
results of the investigation, it is not likely that it wm be cons-

We have examined carefully the record and we find that the
instant case was initiated by the filing of a “charge for Unfair
Labor Practice” by the complainant union. After an Answer o
said charge was filed by “Counscl for the Respondent-Emilia Go
and new management”, a hearing on the merits was held by the
trial Court after which the Order in question was issued. We
need not stress the fact that no criminal information has been filed
in the case at bar. The charge filed by the complainant union
cannot in any way be considered as a eriminal complaint or in-
formation which could serve as the basis of a criminal proceeding.

trued as making the task of ds an inve a mat-
ter of option and prerogative in the Board’s General Counsel.

8. ID.; ID.; NATURE OF A COMPLAINT. — Where it is prcp-
erly determined from the preliminary investigation that there
is necessity and justification therefor, the Board has the power
to issue a ‘complaint’, While the Board has no right to initiate
complaint proceedings by filing a charge itself, and, therefore,
must await the filing of a charge by an interested party be-
for it may act, once a charge is properly filed - and
there follows an investigation which discloses the neces-
sity or propriety of issuing a ‘complaint, the Board, through
its Regional Director and subject to the final decision of the
Board’s General Counsel on the question of necessity or pro-
priety, then has the right to issue the ‘complaint’. “However,
it should be noted that although the Regional Director for the
Board, has the right to issue a ‘complaint’ he may not be
compelled to do so by order of any court, agency or person other
than the Board or its General Counsel since this function is
one in which the Board, and ultimately, its General Counsel,
alone may exercise their own discretion.

9. ID.; ID;; DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE “CHARGE” AND
THE “COMPLAINT”, — The difference between.the ‘charge’
and the ‘complaint’ is basic and fundamental. While the charge,
as we have previously seen, is a prime condition tc the initia-
tion of complaint proceedings and is, so to speak, the trigger
to the action, the filing of a charge does not make the per-
son or the organization filing the charge the ‘actor’ in the
premises; nor is. the mere filing of the charge the commence-
ment of the proceedings pmper. Treating the term ‘procced-
ings’ as the equival of ‘I , the
only with the issuance by the Board of a complaint, from which
time forward the Board’s judicial functions come into play.
Its prior acceptance of the charge and the resultant investi-
gation are purely of an administrative character.

Eduardo D. Rivera for the complainant.
Crisanto T. Blaquera for the respondents.

RESOLUTION

In the first paragraph of the dispositive portion of the order
sought to be reconsidered, respondents Tan Guan and Sy Teh were
“ordered to pay a fine of five hundred (P500.00) pesos, pursuant
te Section 25, Republic Act No. 875.” We are of the opinion that
this should be set aside. In the order of the undersigned dated Oc-
tober 8, 1953 in Case No. 4-ULP entitled “La Mallorca Local 101
vs. La Mallorca Taxi” the following pronouncement was made:

“It is our opinion that in the event of a finding by this
Court in an unfair labor practice case initiated under section
5, that any person has engaged or is engaging in unfair labor
practice, only the remedies provided in said section may be
granted. In such case, this Court should not and cannot at
the same time impose the penalties prescribed in section 25.
On the other hand, in case the imposition of the penalties pres-
cribed in section 25 is sought, a criminal complaint or informa-
tion must be filed and the requirements of due process as to
procedure and evidence in ordirary eriminal cases must be ob-
served.”

When the case was elevated to the Court in bane, said Order was
affirmed in whole by four judges of this Court ard the Judge who
penned the Order sought to be reconsidered in the instant case con-
curred in the result-
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, the absence of an arraignment and plea which, amcng
others, are fundamental requirements of due process in criminal
cases, is sufficient to cause the setting aside of the imposition of
a fine in this case.

In a case initiated under Section 5 of Republic Act No. 875,
this Court cannot in the same proceeding consider both the unfair
labor practice aspect and the criminal aspect. The procedure to
be followed in unfair labor practice cases is prescribed in said sec-
tion and it is certainly very lax and liberal as compared to the
procedure followed in c¢riminal cuses. The imposition of a fine or
imprisonment pursuant to Section 25 in an unfair labor practice
case initiated under Section 5 would result in the criminal convic-
tion of a person: in violation of due process. Furthermore, there
is marked -incompatibility between the two proceedings as regards
the sufficiency of evidence. In an unfair labor practice case, only
substantial evidence is required to sustain a finding that unfair
labor practice has been committed; on the other hand, to justify
a judgment of conviction in a criminal case, there must be proof
heyond reasonable doubt.

There are still other considerations which militate against the
imposition of fine in this case. It is not clear whether the fine of
P500.00 is being imposed pursuant to the first or second paragraph
of Section 25 of Republic Act No. 875. If the fine is imposed
under the first paragraph then the order in question is fatally
defective because this can only be done in case there is an express
finding that a person has violated Section 3 of the Act. No such
finding, however, was made by the trial Court. On the other
hand, to justify the imposition of a fine under the second para-
graph of Section 25, there must be an express finding that a per-
son has committed a violation of Republic Act No. 875 which is
declared unlawful: Again, no such finding has been made. Thus,
the requirement of Section 2 of Rule 116 of the Rules of Court
that a judgment of conviction shall state “the legal qunhhcetlon
of the offense i d by the acts by the d 4
has not been complied with.

The second paragraph of the dispositive portion of the order
of the trial Court reads as follows:

“Respondents Tan Guan, Emilia Go and Sy Teh are ulso
ordered to offer reinstatement to Pedro Vinluan with back pay
from December 10, 1953, until the date of his actual readmis-
sion. Said respondents are also directed to cease and desist
from ging their pl from b i members of
a labor organization, and from interferring in any other man-
ner with their employees in the exercise of their rights to self-
organization, or to join labor organization, or bargain collective-
ly, through representatives of their own choosing.”

In this connection we find that the procedure prescribed by Sec-
5(b) of Rep. Act No. 875 was not followed. Said section provides:
*(b) The Court shall observe the following procedure with-

out resort to mediation and conciliation as provided in section
four of Commonwealth Act Numbered One hundred and three, as
amended, or to any pre-trial procedure, Whenever it is charged

by an offended party or his representative that any
person has engaged or is engaging in any such unfair
labor practice, the Court or any agency or agent designated by

the Court must investigate such charge and shall have the po-
wer to Issue and cause to be served upon such person a com-
plaint stating the charges in that respect and containing a no-
tice of hearing before the Court or a member thereof, or before

a designated Hearing Examiner at the time'and place fixed there-

in not less than five nor more than ten days after serving the
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said complaint. The person complained of shall have the right
to file an answer or otherwise (but if the Court shall so re-
quest, the appearance shall oe personal) and give testimony at
the place and time fixed in the complaint..

Under the foregoing provision there are three initial steps which
must be followed in unfair labor practice proceedings, namely:

(1) The filing of a charge by the offended party or his re-
presentative that a person has engaged or is engaging in unfair
labor practice;

(2) The investigation of such charge by this Court or any
agency or agent designated by it;

(3) The issuance and service by this Court or its designated
agency or agent of a complaint upon the person charged with com-
mitting unfair labor practice. We can say that the above steps,
among others, are indispensable requirements of due process in un-
fair labor practice proceedings and not mere technicalities of law
and procedure. The function of a charge under the American law
ofter which our law was patterned is best explained by I. Herkert
Rothenberg in his “Rothenberg on Labor Relations” as follows:

“The function of a charge is merely that of putting the ma-
chinery of the Board in motion, A charge may, by limited ana-
logy, be compared with an ‘information’ in eriminal procedure.

A charge, like an information, is neither a pleading nor proof,

but is merely a verified notification to an appropriate govern-

ment agency of the commission by a designated person of a spe-
cific violation of law over which such agency has jurisdietion.

At this point the similarity between a charge and an informa-

tion ends. In the case of an information, if the information

complies with the requirements of the law, appropriate process
may issue forthwith to bring the offender into court. However,
in the case of the charge filed with the Board, such is not the
procedure, In proceedings before the Board the mere filing
of the charge, no matter how grave the alleged offense nor how
adequately the offense may be recited, does not in and of itself
sanction and precipi issuance of ing process. With
the filing of a charge, it devolves upon the Board’s General

Director, but subject to review and final decision by the Board’s

General Counsel, to conduct a preliminary investigation to deter-

mine the necessity for the issnance of and, if required by the

facts, to issue the complaint.” (pp. 596-597)

The indispensability of the second step, that is, the preliminary
investigation of the charge, is discussed by the same author in this
‘wise:

“Under the original Act it was held that once a charge
was filed it was incumbent upon the Board to investigate the
matter. While, in evaluating the results of the investigation
the Board enjoyed broad discretion and the right of decision,
the duty of making the preliminary examination itself was a
mandatory duty.

“Although the amended Act prescribes that the Board's
General Counsel ‘shall have final authority, on the Board's be-
half, in respect of the investigation of charges and issuance of
complaints under Section 10. . ., it is doubtful whether this
provision effects any change in regard to the basic duty of
conducting a preliminary investigation. While this provision
of thé amended Act manifestly has the effect of shifting the
right of decision in evaluating the results of the investigation,
it is not likely that it will be construed as making the task
of conducting an investigation a matter of option and prero-
gative in the Board’s General Counsel”, (pp. 6598-599)

As to the nature of a complaint and its basic difference from a
charge we again quote from the same author:

“Where it is properly determined from the preliminary in-
vestigation that there is necessity and justification therefore,
the Board has the power to issue a ‘complaint’ While the
Board has ng right to initiate complaint proceedings by filing
a charge itself, and, therefore, must await the filing of a
charge by an interested party before it may act, once a charge
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is properly filed and there foilows an investigation which dis-
closes the necessity or propriety of issuing a ‘complaint,’ the
Board, through its Regional Director and su t to the final
decision of the Board’s Gene:al Cou question of
necessity or propriety, then has the right to issue the ‘com-
plaint’. However, it should be noted that although the Re-
gional Director, for the Board, has the right t> issue a ‘com-
plaint,” he may not be compelled to do so by order of any court,
agency or person other than the Board or its General Counsel
since this function is cne in which the Board, and ultimately,
its General Counsel, alone may exercise their own discretion.

“From the foregoing it may be gathered that the difference
between the ‘charge’ and the ‘complaint’ is basic and funda-
mental. While the charge, as we have previously seen, is a
prime condition to the initiation of complaint proceedings and
is, so to speak, the trigger to the action, the filing of a charge
does not make the person or the organization filing the charge
the ‘actor’ in the premises; nor is the mere filing of the charge
the of the pr ai proper.  Treating the
term ‘proceedings’ as the equivalent of ‘litigation,’ the proceed-
ings commence only with the issuance by the Board of a com-
plaint, from which time forward the Board’s judicial functions
come into play. Its prior acceptance of ths charge and the
resultant investigation are purely of an administrative char
acter.” (pp. 599-600)

In the instant case, while it is true that a charge of unfair
luhor practice was filed by the union, still the record discloses that
there has been ro preliminary investigation of such charge ncr is
there a valid complaint issued and served by this Court upon the
respondents herein. Instead, the trial Court immediately conducted
a hearing solely on the basis of the charge filed, and it is our opin-
ion that in so doing it committed a grievous and fatal error.

We must confess that we are at a loss to understand the trial
Court’s stend as regards respendent Emilia Go. Both witnesses
for the complainant testified that at the time of Pedro Vinluan’s
dismissal only Tan Guan and Sy Teh were the co-owners of the
Kim San Cafe and Restaurant. There is no evidence whatsoever
that at that time Emilia Go was in one way or another connccted
with said restaurant. Since this is so then obviously she could not
have committed any act of unfair labor practice against the com-
plairant. On the other hand, Emilia Go testified that she bought
the share of Tan Guan in the restuurant on Jan. 1, 1954, The trial
Court seems to be of the opinion that the sale of Tan Guan’s inter-
est to Emilia Go was simulated and fictitious. If this is so, then
Emilia Go never became a co-owner of the establishment and hence
incurred no liability under the Acl. On the other hand, if the sale
is considered bcna-fide, then Emilia Go became a co-owner only
after the discharge of Pedro Vinluan took place and, therefore, no
cease and desist order nor any affirmative order may be 1ssue’ by
this Court against her. We therefore conclude that as far as Emilia
Go is concerned, the trial Court’s Order has no justification.

IN VIEW OF THE FOREGOING, let the crder of the trial
Court, dated March 19, 1954, be, as it is hereby, set aside.

SO ORDERED.

(SGD.) ARSENIO C. ROLDAN
Presiding Judge
(SGD.) JUAN L. LANTING

Associate Judge

(SGD.) V. JIMENEZ YANSON

Associate Judge

BAUTISTA, J.: dissenting —

I beg to differ with the opinion of this Court expressed in its
Resolution of June 25, 1954, setting aside the Order of the trial
Court of March 19, 1954, The stand of the Court en banc in its
inajority opinion can be stated briefly, and I quote:

“While it is true that a charge of unfair labor practice
was filed by the union, still the reccrd discloses that there has
(had) been no preliminary investigation ‘of suck charge nor is
(was) there a valid complaint issued and served by this Court
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upon the respondents herein. Instead the trial Court imme-
diately conducted a hearing solely on the basis of the charge
filed, and it is our opinion that in so doing, it committed a
grievious and fatal error.”

It is obvious that said opinion was based on American rulings
and interpretations. While it is to be admitted that our law on
the matter, Rep. Act No. 875, was “patterned” after the American
law, it does not necessarily follow that both laws are exactly .he
same- Even a cursory reading of both laws will bare basic dif-
ferences of policy and procedure Whlle the American law exp'ess—
ly provides for a “p ” and the hi
therefor, Rep. Act No. 875 is nnt as insistent on the same. On
the other hand, Rep. Act No. 875 contains provisions which are
not present in the American law.

Further difficulty lies in the failure of this Court to promu]-

therefore of Section 4 (a) (1) is also a violation of Section 2.
Otherwise, there can be no violation of Section 3 and consequently,
there cannet be any application of the first paragraph of Sectirn
25. In the United States, this is also the case. A violation of
any of the four subdivisions of section 8 (a) is regarded in addition
as a violation of subdivision (1) which in turn is considered a viola-
ticn of Section 7.

It is quite clear from the Order of the Court dated March
19 that respondents Tan Guan and Sy Teh were guilty of violating
Seetion 3 of the Act by incriminating and dismissing from employ-
ment one Pedro Vinluan, an employee in the Kim San Cafe &
Restaurant by reason- of his union activities. Respondent Emilia
Go was included in the “cease and desist” order because the Court
found that she was at least an “agent” of Tan Guan and Sy Teh,
contemplated in Rep. Act No. 875,

gate its own Rules and Regulations regarding unfair labor
similar to the Rules and Regulations of the National Labor Rela-
tions Board of the United States. Nevertheless, in the absence
of such definite rules, this Court cannot legislate for itself and
read into our law provisions of the American law which our Con-
gress deliberately left out.

I disagree with the opinion that without such ‘“preliminary
iuvestigation”, the respondents were deprived of “due process”. For
“due process” is a matter of substance and not merely of form. The
respondent in this case were not deprived of their right to due
yrocess, There was a fair and impartial hearing after they were
served copies of the charge and summons. They were represented
throughout the proceedings by an attorney of their own choice.
There was honest luation of the evi ted and no ob-
jection to the conduct of the hearing was made by respondents or
their attorney.

The Court is presently over-burdened with work and its limited
personnel cannot cope with the myriad details of the administration
of justice.

If we apply the system in the National Labar Relatmns<

The di ed could not why the set-
ting aside the Order of the trial Court did not mention a word
about the dismissal of Pedro Vinluan. Based on the evidence intro-
duced at the hearing of this cass and on the undersigned’s per-
sonal observation, there can be no doubt as to the fact that Pedro
Vinluan was dismissed only because of his union activities. The
{rial Court therefore ordered the d to offer
with backpay to Pedro Vinluan from the time of his dismissal up
to the date of his actual rei Was the ds of
the trial Court so “fatal” as to render both the complainant Union
and Pedro Vinluan helpless?

I ask the other members of this Court: Will the law that
complainants now invoke for the protection of the rights guarantced
thereunder be the very instrument of their destruction?

‘And now, I wish to make of record the following:

On or about April 21, 1954, this Court adopted a Resoluticn
denying the motion for reconsideration of the Order of March 19,
1954 filed by the Repsondents. Said Resolution was issued by the

d, with the concurrence of Judges Castillo and Yanson.

Board to this jurisdiction ( that such
for in Rep. Act No. 875), this Court will be placed in the Anomalous
and manifold role of “accuser, prosecutor, judge and executioner”
and the funetions and burdens as well will become more multiple
and varied. In effect, this Court will not only receive and investi-
gate the charges, but also act as an investigatory agent, lodge the
complaint, act as accuser and in the conduct of the hearing, act
as both the prosecutor and trier of the facts and thereafter as the
“executioner”.

That is too much to expect of the Court, and it is our opinion
that such a procedure is contrary to the policies of Rep- No. 875.
To expect the trial Court to go through the whole proceeding twice
is, in the light of the express provisions of Rep. Act No. 875, net
only unreasonable but violative of the statute,

Another difference between the American law and Rep. Act No.
875 is that, while the latter provides for penalties for violation
of Section 8 thereof, the former does not contain any like provisicn.
In addition therefore to the remedies provided in Section 5 of
Rep. Act No. 875, the Court can impose at the same time the
penalties prescribed in Section 25. It is also our opinion that a
person who violates Section 4 (a) (1) automatically violates Section 3.

Section 3 states: “Employees shall have the right to self-or-
ganization and to form, join or assist labor organizations of their
own choosing for the purpose of collective bargaining through re-
presentatives of their own choosing and to engage in concerted
activities for the purpose ox‘ collective bargaining and other mutual
aid or ployed as supervisors shall not
be eligible for in a labor i of 1
under their supervision but may form separate organization o( theu-
own.”

Section 4 (a) (1) makes, any interference with, restraint or
coercion of employees in the cxercise of their right guaranteed in
Section 3 an “unfair labor practice” for an employer. A violation
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A photostatic copy of said Resolution is hereto attached and mark-
ed as “Annex A",

After the lapse of two months, that is, on June 25, 1954, Judge
Lanting rendered his dissenting vote, which was concurred with by
Presiding Judge Roldan. A photustatic copy of said dissenting
vote is hereto attached and marked as “Annex B”.

On July 14, 1954, a second Resolution was prepared, bearing
the date of June 25, 1954, seiting aside and reversing said Order
of March 19, 1954, which order was affirmed by the first Reso-
lution of April 21, 1954, This second Resolution was issued by
Judge Lanting and concurred with by Judges Roldan and Yanson.
A photostatic copy of this second Resolution is hereto attached and
marked as “Annex C”. Judge Yanson changed his vote und signed
the second Resolution after having written in front of his signature
in the first Resolution, the following: “Concurro con Judge Lan-
ting”. Obviously, this annotation could not have been made before
Judge Lanting’s vote was rendered on June 25, 1954. There was
yet no dissenting opinion to concer with,

There being the requisite number of judges necessary to ren-
der a decision, on April 21, 1954, the Court proncunced its judg-
ment, and since then, said first Resolution became the lawful de-
cision of the Court.

Of course, Judge Lanting may render his opinion and Judge
Yanson change his vote, at any time, even perhaps two months
after the adoption of the first Resclution. Their conduct does rot
concern us. It makes no difference whether their actuation is pro-
per or not. The thing that matters is that such anomaly exists
and that in order to place the Court above suspicion, sometbing
should be done to stop such practice.

Manila, July 22, 1954,
(Continued on page 575)
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DIGEST OF DECISIONS OF THE COURT OF APPEALS

PROPERTY: POSSESSION; PRESUMPTION IN FAVOR OF
ACTUAL POSSESSOR. — When a party is admittedly in the actual
of the disputed land, all p: i are, and all
doubts must be resolved, in his favor, it being a rule of law
that the present possessor is to be preferred should a question
arise regarding the fact of possession (Art. 530, new Civil Code;
Art. 445, old). Victorina Culasito and Framcisco Sical, plaintiffs
and appellants, vs. Teodoro Clidoro, defendant and appell
C.A. No. 10111-R, November 1T, 1953, Reyes, J.B.L., J.

EVIDENCE; INTRODUCTION OF ADDITIONAIL EVIDENCE

AFTER PARTY HAS RESTED HIS CASE; COURT’S DIS-

CRETION. — It is discretionary with the trial court to admit further
evidence after the party offering it has rested, which discretion
will not be reviewed except in clear cases of abuse (Lopez vs.
Libor, 46 Off. Gaz., (Supp. to No. 1, 211); and this discretion
can be said to have been abused only if the additional evidence
rejected by the court below would have altered or changed the
result of the case. Ibid, Ibid.

CRIMINAL LAW; EVIDENCE; WiTNESS; TESTIMONY; UN-

CONSCIOUS PARTNERSHIP. — It has been said that ‘“Perhaps
the most subtle and prolific of all the fallacies of testimony
arises out of unconscious partisanship. Upon the happening of
an accident the occasional passengers on board of a streetcar
are very apt to'side with the employees in charge of the éar,”
(Wellman, The Art of Cross-examination, 161, 614 and 165).
T'he People of the Philippines, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Antonio
Reyes, defendant and appellant, C. A. No. 10277-R, November
11, 1958, Dizon, J.

A) DAMAGE TO PROPERTY THROUGH RECKLESS IMPRU-
IJENCE INDEMNITY; PAYMENT OF DAMAGES BY INSU.
RANCE COMPANY DOES NOT RELIEVE ACCUSED OF HIS
UBLIGATION TO REPAIR DAMAGES CAUSED THROUGH HIS
NEGLIGENCE; CASE AT BAR. — Accused contends that inasmuch

as the owner of the Ford car has already been paid his damages
by an insurance company, the lower court erred in sentencing
him to pay damages. It should be taken into account, in this
connection, that the payment made by the insurance company
was made pursuant to its contract with the owner of the Ford
car and was clearly not made on behalf of accused. It cannot
be said, therefore that the payment had relieved the accused of his
obligation to repair the damages caused through his negligence.
The insurance company, however, must be deemed to have been
subrogated to the rights of the offended party as far as the
damages awarded are concerned. Ibid, Ibid.

CRIMINAL LAW; EVIDENCE; RULE OF “RES INTER ALIOS
ACTA”; CONFESSION OF CONSPIRATOR; ADMISSIRILITY.—
The rule of res inter alios acta is well established and consistently
adhered to in this jurisdiction. “The rights of a party cannot be
prejudiced by the act, declaration or omission of another and
proceedings against one cannot affect another x x x” (section
10, Rule 123, Rules of Court). Only the ccnfession of a
conspirator, made during the exislence of the conepiracy, is
admissible egainst his co-conspirator. Again u confession is
admissible against a co-accused when it is adopted by the
latter or, when given within his hearing, he kept silent about it.
People of the Philippines, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Pedro Obe-
jera, Lupo Fortus and Gregorio Calibara, defendants and
appellants, C.A. No. 10052-R, Nevember 13, 1958, Martinez, J.

CRIMINAL LAW AND PROCEDURE; SEPARATE TRIAL; USE

OF CO-DEFENDANT AS PROSECUTION WITNESS AGAINST

HIS CO-DEFENDANT; SECTION 9, RULE 115, RULES OF

COURT. — It is well-settled that the granting of s separate trial
when two or more defendants are jointly tried with an offense
is discretionary with the trial court (section 8, Rule 115, Rules
of Court; People vs. Go, L-1527, February 27, 1951); and,
that when two or more persons are jointly prosecuted for the
same crime, but separately tried, either of the said defendants
is competent as a witness against the other, although the case
against the witness himself is still pending (People vs. Parconm,
55 Phil,, 970; People vs. Trazo, 58 Phil., 258). While section
9, Rule 115, of the Rules of Court, limits the exercise of the
discretion of the court in discharging an accused person who is
to be used as a witness, it does not prohibit the use of one co-
defendant as a witness for the prosecution, when such co-defend-
ant voluntarily takes the witness stand to testify against a co-de-
fendant (People vs. Trazo, (Supra); People vs. Badilla, 48 Phil,,
718; and U.S. vs. Remigio, 37 Phil,, 599). People of the Philip-
pines, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Regalado Magsino et al., de-
fendants and appellants, C.A. No. 8073-R, November 16, 1953,
De Leon,J.

LAND REGISTRATION; EVIDENCE; PRESUMPTION, “JURIS

ET DE JURE” OF COMPLIANCE WITH NECESSARY CONDI-

TION FOR GRANT BY THE STATE. — When the possession of
lands by the common pr in-interest of the
has been, at least, prior to July 26, 1894 and this possession has
been passed on to the claimants and the evidence shows that
it has been continuous, uninterrupted, open, adverse and in
the concept of owner, there is a presumption juris et de jure
that all the necessary conditions for & grant by the State have
been complied with. Pursuant to the provisions of section 48 (b)
of Commonwealth Act No. 141, said claimants are entiticd to
the registration of their title to the lands applied for (Pamin-
tuan vs. Insular Government;, 8 Phil., 485; Susi vs. Razom,
48, Phil, 424; Government of P.I. vs. Adelantar, 55 Phil.,
793; Gov’t of P.I. vs. Abad 66 Phil,, 75). Director of Lands,
petitioner and -appellee, vs. Rufina Rendon, movant and appellant,
Eugenio Z. Rendon, oppositor and appellee, C. A. No. 8463-R,
November 20, 1953, Ocampo, J.

ID.; DECREE OF REGISTRATION MUST BE DEFINITE AND

SPECIFIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH SURVLEY PLAN AND TECH-

NICAL DESCRIPTION. — In a land registration proceeding the
decree of registration must be definite and specific and in ac-
cordance with a plan and technical description cf the property
claimed as prepared by a competent surveyor who has surveyed
the proverty, othewise the court cannot order the issuance of
the cor ding decrees of i ion of the respective titles
of the petitioners. Ibid, Ibid.

DONATION; DONATION MORTIS CAUSA NOT EXECUTED
WITH THE FORMALITIES OF A WILL, INVALID. -— According
to our jurisprudence, a donation mortis causg which has not
been executed with the formalities of a will is of no force and
effect. F'idela Arceo, plaintiff and appellant, vs. Gerardo Arceo,
Guillermo Arcco, Francisco Arcco and Raymundo Plata, defend-
ants and appellees, C.A. No. 9620-R, November 25, 1958, Feliz, J.

LAND REGISTRATION; REGISTER OF DEEDS; ERRONEOUS
ANNOTATION ON CERTIFICATE OF TITLE; CASE
AT BAR. — The annotation of the affidavit at the back of the
new transfer certificate of title (Exhibit A) which did have
for the purpose to inscribe any lien or encumbrance on the pro-

DECISION OF THE COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS (Continued)

CASTILLO, J., concurring and dissenting.

I concur only insofar as the Resolution eliminates or nullifies
the imposition upon the respondents of a fine of five hundred pesos
(P500.00). But as regards the reinstatement with back pay of Pe-
dro Vinluan and the requirement that the respondents cease and
desist from committing unfair labor practices, it appearing that

November 80, 1954
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they are supported by substantial evidence, the order sought to bte
reconsidered, I think, should not be disturbed.

Accordingly, the Order of March 19, 1954 issued by the trial
court is hereby modified.

Manila, Philippines, August 7, 1954.
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perty in question but to nullify the effect of the issuance of
the new title und the transfer of the property as a consequence
of the sale, for it aimed at the destruction of both these acts
by claiming the right of ownership over the very land by virtue
of a previous deed of donation made to affiants by their father,
was erroneously made by the Register of Deeds. Such an-
notation, as a conveyance of registered land, falls short of
its purpose, for according to section 50 of Act 496, it is
necessary to use the required form “sufficient in law for the
purpose intended,” and the annotation of the affidavit cannot
be considered to be the “‘operative act to convey and affect the
land.” (Philippine Nationa) Bank vs. Tan Ong Zse, 51 Phil,
317; Director of Land vs. Addison, 49 Phil, 19). [Ibid, Ibid.

CERTIORARI; WHEN CERTIORARI MAY BE GRANTED NOT-

WITHSTANDING AVAILABILITY OF APPEAL. — Certiorari
may be granted, notwithstanding the existence of an appeal
or the availability of another adequate remedy for the correction
of the alleged error, when the appeal is not an adequate remedy,
such as where the order is of such nature as to call for prompt
relief from its injurious effects (Silvestre vs. Torres and Oben,
67 Phil., 885; Alafriz vs. Nable, 72 Phil., 278.) Gregorio
Gelera and Francisco Gelera, petitioners, vs. Hon. Antonio G.
Lucero, Judge of the Court of First Instance of Cavite, and
Felicisima Aranzazu in her own behalf and as guardian ad-litem
for her minor children Eduardo, Leticia and Herminio, all sur-
named (Gelera, respondents, C.A. No. 11578-R, November 25,
1953, Natividad, J.

ID.; ID.; ACTS NOT CONSTITUTING GRAVE ABUSE OF DIS-

CRETION. — The hearing of an action in case the defendant fails
to appear for no known reasor at the time set thereafter does
not constitute such “grave abuse of discretion” as to warrant
the issuance of a writ of certiorari. (Go Chanjo vs. Sy-Chanjo,
18 Pbil., 405; Cababan vs. Weissenhagen, 38 Phil., 804.)
Ibid, Ibid.

ATTORNEY AT LAW; HIS DUTIES; LAWYER'S ACTS CONS-

TITUTING NON-EXCUSABLE NEGLIGENCE. -- An attorney
must always be ready to comply with the order of notification
of the court and to protect the interest of his client.” (Guieb
vs. Valdez and Cardenas, CA-G. G. No. 4829-R, June 15,
1950.) Once informed that the case had been set for trial
it is the duty of the attorney to ascertain by reliable means the
exact date of such hearing. If he fails to do this, and instead
relies, as counsel in the instant case did, on information received
from non-official sources, he is guilty of non-excusable negli-
gence. Appeal, not certiorari, is the proper remedy for correcting
an error in denying a motion to set aside a judgment (Rios vs.
Ros, 45 Off  Gaz., 1265), or in allcwing an attorney to withdraw
his appearance and proceeding with the trial in the absence of
his client (Federal Films, Inc. vs. Pecson, 46 Off. Gaz.,
1265). Ibid, Ibid.

PLEADING AND PRACTICE; AMENDED COMPLAINT, ADMIS-

SIBILITY OF; WHEN PROPER. — An amended complaint which
does not allege a new cause cf action, or change the nature of
the action, but merely amplifies certain allegations in the original
complaint may be admitted before the presentation of evidence
by cither party (49 C.J., 495). Ibid, Ibid.

CRIMINAL LAW; SERIOUS PHYSICAL INJURIES; INDEM-

NITY. — Where aggrieved party has not as yet paid for the me-
dical scrvices of the physician who treated his injuries, the
accused cannot be sentenced to pay indemnity for actually ag-
grieved party had not spent it. Action is, however, reserved to
him to recover it from appellants as soon as he shall have paid
it to the phyisician in payment of the medical treatment given
to him by the Doctor for the injuries he had sustained. People
of the Philippines, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Igmidio Granale
and Pedro Cerda, defendants and appellants, C. A. No. 8833-R,
November 27, 1958, Martinez, J.

ILLEGAL ENTRY AND DETAINER; APPEAL; APPEAL BOND
UNNECESSARY WHEN SUPERSEDEAS BOND TO STAY EXE-
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CUTION IS GIVEN. — The Rules of Court, in section 5 of Rale
41, provide that the appeal bond shall be in the amount of P60,
unless a different amount is fixed by the court or a supersedeas
hond has been filed. In the case of Contreras vs. Dinglasan,
45 Off. Gaz. (No. 1) 257, the Supreme Court held that since
the purpose of. the appeal bond is to answer for the costs
that may be adjudged against the appellant in the appellate
court, it becomes unnecessary when a supersedeas bond to stay
execution of the judgment is given, which has in part the same
purpose. Gregorio Salceda, petitioner, vs. Hon. Jose T. Sur-
tida, Judge of the Court of First Instance of Camarines Sur.
and Zoilo Balmaceda, respondents, C.A. No. 8949-R, November
28, 1953, Diaz, Pres. J.

ID.; ID.; WHEN SUPERSEDEAS BOND NEED NOT BE GIVEN;

RULE APPLICABLE TO APPEAL FROM COURT OF FIRST

INSTANCE TO COURT OF APPEALS. — According to leading
cases, notably, Mitschiener vs. Barrios, 42 Off. Gaz., 1901, So-
gueco vs. Natividad, 45 Off. Gaz., Supp. (No. 9) 449, Aylon
vs. Jugo, 45 Off. Gaz., (No. 1) 188, Hilado vs. Tan, L-1964,
August 23, 1950, a supersedeas bond is unnecessary when the
defendant has deposited in court the amount >f all back rents
declared by final judgment of the justice of the peace or
municipal court to be due the plaintiff from him and an apneal
bond has been filed to answer for costs; the reason
being that such bond answers only for rents or damages up
to the time the appeal is perfected from the judgment of the
justice of the peace or municipal court and not for rents or
damages accruing while the appeal is pending which are gua-
ranteed by future deposits or payments to be made by the
defendant. Following this reasoning a step farther, when, as
in this case, the deposits already made by the defendant do not
fully cover the amount fixed in the ,udgment appealed from
and the supersedeas bond is made to answer for costs as well
in the ubsence of a regular appeal bond, a supersedeas bond
which covers the balance of such back rents and the probable
amount of costs should be considered good and sufficient.
Finally, there appears to be no reason why the propositions
just set forth which, in the cases already cited, were ap-
plied to appeals from municipal courts to courts of first
instance, should not apply with equal force to appeals from courts
of first instance to higher courts where a supersedeas bond is filed
for the first time on appeal from a court of first instance.
Ibid, Ibid.

APPEAL; PAUPER’S APPEAL; MANDAMUS MAY ISSUE TO

COMPEL GRANTING OF PAUPER’S APPEAL. -— While, con-
trary to the r ds i§ there is hority to the
effect that mandamus may issue compelling a lower court to
grant a meritorious petition to appeal as pauper which it has
improperly denied (Comia vs. Castillo, 75 Phil., 526), it does
not appear that the petition in this case is one which ought
to have been granted. Ibid, Ibid.

CRIMINAL LAW; MOTOR VEHICLE LAW; ACCIDENT RE-

SULTING IN DEATH OR SERIOUS BODILY INJURY; LAW

APPLICABLE. —. The appellant has been charged and found guilty
of a violation of the Motor Vehicle Law (Act No. 3992). Aec-
cording to section 67 (d) thercof, as amended by Republic Act
No. 587, if as the result of negligence or reckless or unreasonable
fast driving any accident occurs resulting in death or serious
bodily injury to any person, the motor vehicle driver at fault,
shall upon conviction, be punished under the provisions of the
Penal Code. The People of the Philippines, plaintiff and appele
lee, vs. Romeo Jose, accused and appellant, C.A. No. 3010-R,
November 28, 1953, Ocampo, J.

COMMERCIAL LAW; COLLISION OF VESSELS; DAMAGES;
PROTEST; ARTICLE 835, CODE OF COMMERCE, NOT AP-
PLICABLE TO SMALL BOATS.—A motor launch used in the
Manila Bay for carrying back and forth the members of the
crew who were off duty cannot be considered as included in
the denomination of vessel as specified in article 835 of the Code
of Commerce. Therefore, when such a motor Jaunch is sunk,
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CRIMINAL LAW;
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proteet is not a condition precedent, for the recovery of the
damages sustained by its owner, Madrigal Shipping Co., plain-
tiff and llant, vs. Santi G , dzfendant and appel-
lee, No. 8585-R, November 11, 1953, Martinez, J.

PLEADING AND PRACTICE; MOTION FOR DISMISSAL WITH

RESERVATION TO SUBMIT EVIDENCE. — When defend-
ant asked for the dismissal of the case in the court below he
reserved his right to submit evidence in defense, should the
motion therefor be eventually denied. The opposing party
failed to object thereto; thus in furtherance of justice, this case
should be remanded to the court below. We do not believe this
to be in violation of the ruling in Arroyo vs. Asur, 43 Off.
Gaz., 54. Ibid.

MALVERSATION THROUGH FALSIFICA-
TION OF PUBLIC DOCUMENT; BOND, NOT A NECESSARY
ELEMENT; CASE AT BAR.—A bond is not necessary to make
one civilly and criminally accountable and lizble for govern-
ment property in his custody. It is enough that he had ac-
cepted the responsibility entailed by his position and perform-
ed his duties as such custodian, People vs. Teodoro Estandan-
te, Francisco Viola, Felipe Car'aso and Santiago Fajardo, de-
fendants and appellants, No. 9948-R, N ber 12, 1954, Peiia, J.

9ALI‘ A RETRO; REDEMPTION; RUNNING OF PERIOD OF

REDEMPTION PRESUPPOSES FULL PAYMENT OF PUR-
CHASE PRICE. — The running of the period of repurchase
in a sale a retro presupposes the payment in full of the price
agreed upon for the transaction. Since, in the case at bar,
the vendee had not completely satisfied to the vendor the pur-
chase price of the properties bought, it is inconceivable that
the period for the repurchase of the property could mature
upon the lapse of the agreed redemption pericd and much less
that the purchaser could lease the property bought and collect
rents from the vendor for its occupation thereof, when the
former has not complied with his cbligation to the latter of
paying in full the consideration of the sale. Luz Labuga Celiz,
as Special Administratric of thc Estate of Bonifacio Celx, plain-
tiff and appellee, vs. Euf C e Vda. de , as
administratriz of the Estate of Sergio Jumawan, defendant and
11 No. 9238-R, December 19, 1953, Felix, J.

MANDAMUS; CAN NOT BE USED TO CONTROL JUDGE’S

DISCRETION. — Mandamus will only lie where the court, of-
ficer, board or person concerned unlawfully neglected the per-
formance of an act which the law specifically enjoins as a
duty resulting from office, trust, or station, or when such court,
officer, board or person has unlawfully excluded a person from
the use and enjoyment of a right or office to which he is en-
titled. The writ is only available to compel on officer to per-
form a ministerial duty. Hence, it cannot be used to control
the discretion of a judge, or to compel him to decide a case or
n motmn pendmg before him in a pn)hcula\ way. Anselmo

, vs+ The Ho bl do C. Moscoso,
Judge o/‘ the Court of First Instance of Leyte and the Provin-
eial Fiscal of Leyte, respondents, No. 11939, January 20, 1954,
Natividad, J.

PROHIBITION; REMEDY INTENDED TO PREVENT OPPRES-

SIVE EXERCISE OF LEGAL AUTHORITY; TEST OF AB-
USE OF DISCRETION. — The remedy of prohibition is intend-
ed to prevent the oppressive exercise of legal authority. Its
only basis is lack or excess of jurisdiction or authority on the
part of an inferior tribunal, corporation, board or person, as
gross abuse of discretion and there is abuse of discretion only
where the exercise of judgment is so capricious and whimsical
as to be equivalent to lack of jurisdietion. Ibid.

MANDAMUS OR PROHIBITION; ACTION OF JUDGE OR FIS-

CAL, NOT CONTROLLABLE BY MANDAMUS OR PROIII-
BITION. — A judge has discretion to decide a case in ae-
cordance with his best jud| ; a Fisecal, to offense
committed within his jurisdiction. These duties are imposed

by law on both officials, and the performance thereof involves
exercise of judgment. Their actions on such matters, therefore,
cannot be centrolled either by mandamus or by prohibition. Ibid,
Ibid.

CRIMINAL LAW; ROBBERY; INTENTION TO DEPRIVE ONE

OF OWNERSHIP, WITH CHARACTER OF PERMANENCY,
IMPORTANT; CASE AT BAR. — Since the accused, though
breaking the locks of his father’s desk, never had the inten-
tion of depriving his father of the ownership of the revolver
and itil with any ch of but only
to threaten his father into giving him money, and since the
other essential element of taking (approderamiento) is not pre-
sent in the instant case, the accused could not be convicted of
robbery. He is, however, guilty of grave threats for having
threatened his father. People of the Philippines, plaintiff and
appelles, vs., Agustin Castajieda Kho Choc, defendant and ap-
pellent, Nos- 10231-R, 10234-R, January 23, 1954, Feliz J.

BOARD OF MARINE JNQUIRTY; ITS FINDINGS, NOT CON-

CLUSIVE AND BINDING UPON COURT OF FIRST IN-
STANCE. — An action for damages arising from and caused
by the sinking of a vessel falls squarely within the jurisdie-
tion of the Court of First Instance. In the excrcise thereof, it
is obvious that said court had the right to weigh the evidence pre-
sented before it and, on the strength thereof, to determine the
question of whether appellee and its agents had been negligent.
To hold that the decision rendered by the Board of Marine
Inquiry is conclusive upon said court would virtually deprive
the latter of the right to use its own discretion and compel it
to accept the findings of a body that had conducted an investiga-
tion merely to decide whether the marine certificates of certain
marme ofﬁc?rs should be suspended or cancelled on account of
‘habits or 1i in the perf
of their duties. Moreover, it would be obviously unfair to hold
such findings as conclusive and binding upon the lower court and
determinative of the rights of the herein appellee. 0. B. Ferry
Service Co., plaintiff and i vs. P. M. P. Navigation Co.,
defendant a'nd appellee, No, 10392 R, January 26, 1954 Dizon, J.

CONTRACTS; CHARTER PARTY; VAGUENESS OR AMBIGUI-

TY RESOLVED AGAINST THE PARTY WHO PREPARED
IT. — When a charter party is prepared under the direction
of the owner of the vessel, it goes without saying that whatever
vagueness or ambiguity there might be in its provisions must
be resolved against it, pursuant to the provisions of article 1288
of the old Civil Code as well as of article 1377 of the new. ibid.

CORPORATION LAW; ONLY BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS

AUTHORITY TO BIND CORPORATION. — Under our Cor-
poration Law only the board of directors of a corporation, act-
ing as such, has the authority to bind the corporation. The
genersl rule of law, invoked by the appellant, that if an of-
ficer of the corporation employs a person to perform services
for the corporation and such services are performed with know-
ledge of the directors and they receive the benefits thereof with-
out objection, the corporation is liable, only holds true where
the statute is not specmc Where, as in this jurisdiction, the
law clearly provides that “the expression of the corporate will
is vested in the Board of Directors and therefore only the ma-
jority of the Board of Directors acting as such has the author-
ity to bind the corporation” such rule does not apply (Superior
Gas and Equipment Co. vs. Jurado, supra.) FEsteban Aguilar,
plaintiff and appellant, vs. Philippine American Drug Ce., (Bo-
tica Boie), defendant and appellee, No. T129-R, January 28,
1954, Natividad, J.

CMINENT DOMAIN; EXPROPRIATION; COMMISSIONER’S RE-

PORT; SCOPE OF COURT'S AUTHORITY OVER COMMIS-
SIONER’S REPORT. — The law clearly states that the court,
in acting upon the commissioner’s report in an expropriation
case, may accept it or set it aside, accept it in part or reject
it in part, and make such order or judgment “as shall secure
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D.; ID.;

to the p]amm’f the property essential to the exercise of his
right of ion and to the defend. Jjust ion
for the property so taken.” (Rule 69, Rules of Court) Such
authority, according to the Supreme Court in Manila Railroad
Co. vs. Veclasquez, 32 Phil, 286, 290, is not limited to accept-
ing or rejecting in full any of the constituent items of the re-
port, but the court may validly increase or diminish any or
all of such items. Other cases hold that this authority may
be exercised though there is nothmg to indicate pre)udwe or
fraud on the part of the s. The M lity of
San Fernando, Province of Pampanga, plaintiff and appellant,
vs. Jose Valencia, Jr., and Jesusa Quiambao, defendants and
appellants, No. 8575-R, January 28, 1954, Diaz, Pres, J.

ID.; ID.; CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING REASON-
ABLE VALUE OF LAND EXPROPRIATED. — What ought
to be reviewed by the court is not so much the act, or the ap-
pearance of it, of fixing the value by a seemingly arbitrary
standard like “splitting the difference” between values various-
ly fixed by the commissioners, as the evidence that supports or
fails to support it. In other words, a court may simply split the
difference without elaborating on its reasons for so doing, and
yet the value thus fixed may be supported by the preponderance
of the evidence. On the other hand, it may choose to -fix any
of the values variously recommended and still incur in error
because the award is not based upon sufficient evidence or
upon generally accepted criteria for measuring values. Fair
or reasonable market value is defined as that which the prop-
erty would bring where it is offered for sale by one who de-
sires, but it not obliged to sell it, and is bought by one who
is under no necessity of having it. It is well settled that the
value of property taken by eminent domain should be fixed as
of the date of the proceedings. Ibid.

EVIDENCE; WITNESS; TESTIMONY; HOW TO ACCERTAIN

TRUE MEANING OF TESTIMONY OF WITNESS. — To as-
certain the true meaning of the testimony given by a witness

“everything stated by him as well on his cross-examination as

on his examination in chief, must be considered. Facts im-
perfectly stated in answer to one question may be supplied by
his answer to another; when from one statement considered
by itself an inference may be deduced, that inference may be
strengthened or repelled by the facts disclosed in another.” “We
must not select isolated parts of the testimcny; its general
hearing must be taken altogether.” And where there are ap-
parent inconsistencies in the testimony of a witness, they should
be reconciled if possible, for perjury is not to be presumed. (3
Moran, Rules of Court, 601-602, 1952 ed.) Cipriano P. Rami-
rez, plaintiff and appellont, v8. Manuel Cinco, defendant and
appellee, No. 9899-R, February 2, 1954, Gutierrez David, J.

CRIMINAL LAW; HOMICIDE; SELF-DEFENSE; REASONABLE

NECESSITY OF THE MEANS EMPLOYED TO REPEL AG-
GRESSION. —- In a situation like the one at bar, where the
contestants are in the open and the person azsaulted can exer-
cise the option of running away, the general rule that such
person is not generally justified in taking the life of one who
assaults him with his fists only, without the use of a dangerous
weapon must be upheld. People vs. Florencio Nicolas y Flores,
defendant and appellant, No. 8826-R, February 5, 1954, De
Leon, J.

CORPORATION LAW; DIRECTOR; COMPENSATION; DIREC-

ID.;
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TOR NOT ENTITLED TO COMPENSATION IN THE AB-
SENCE OF EXPRESS PROVISION OR CONTRACT. — It has
been held that a director can not recover for his services as
president or as secretary or as treasurer in the absence of ex-
press provision or contract for such compensation. Camera Ex-
change, Inc., plaintiff and appellant, First National Surety and
Assurance Co- Inc., Surety-plaintiff and appellant, vs. Jose W.
Carameng, defendant and appellee, No. 10093-R, December 9,
1958, Reyes, J.B.L., J.

ID.; ID.; ID.; KNOWLEDGE AND CONSENT OF MA-
JORITY OF DIRECTORS AND OF HOLDERS OF THE CA-
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ID;

ID.;

PARTITION; CONSENT; ERROR;

PITAL STOCK, IMMATERIAL: — The view that the know-
ledge and consent of the majority of the Directors and of the
holders of the capital stock validated the payment of salaries
of defendant and his wife despite their membership in the board
of directors of the plaintiff corporation, is unsound both in law
and in fact. In law, because it is held “that mere presumption
of an agreement to pay arises from the mere rendition of the
services, no matter how valuable they may be, and in the ab-
sence of express agreement, it is presumed that services render-
ed by an officer are performed gratuitously” and “the rule deny-
ing officers of corporation compensation is not varied by the
fact that they own nearly all of the stock of the corporation”
Ibid.

ID.; 1ID.; ESTOPPEL; ESTOPPEL PRESUPPOSES
FULL KNOWLEDGE OF PERTINENT FACTS. — Since the
stockholders of the corporation have not been duly informed of
the action of defendant and his wife in collecting the questioned
salaries and di and a kholders’ meeting was not
held prior to defendants’ renouncing his controlling position in
the corporale organization, no estoppel applies, since estoppel
presupposes full knowledge of all pertinent facts. Ibid, Ibid.

TRUST PROPERTY; OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF
CORPORATION, THEIR FIDUCIARY RELATION IN RES-
PECT TO BUSINESS OR PROPERTY OF CORPORATION.
— Officers and directors in control of a corporation occupy a fi-
duciary rvelation towards the corporation and its stockholdefs,
in respect to the business or property. Ibid, Ibid, Ibid.

TRANSLATION OF ARTICLE
1081, OLD CIVIL CODE ERRONEOUS. — Where there is con-
flict between the language of the original text of the Civil Code
and of its official translation, the text of the original text sheuld
govern. This rule is applicable to Article 1081 of the old Civil
Code, the official translation of which is erroneous. Lucic Go-
rospe-Sebastian, plamhﬂ cmd nppellee, vs, Salvador Salazar and
Angeles Gorospe-S: and U No. 8008-
R, January 26, 1954, Natwldad J.

ID.; ID-; ID.; ARTICLE 1081, OLD CIVIL CODE CONSTRUED.

—-Article 1081 of the old Civil Code contemplates a case of er-
ror in the status of the person of one of the contracting parties
which amounts to error in the consent. Such error may arise
from pure mistake or from misrepresentation or fraud. Ibid.

CONTRACTS; FAILURE OF CONTRACT TO FULFILL RE-

QUIREMENTS OF ARTICLE 1081 OF THE OLD CIVIL
CODE, EFFECT OF. — Contracts of partition which fail to ful-
fill the requirements of article 1081 of the ola Civil Code may
be given effect either as donations or quite claims if the inten-
tion of the parties to treat them as such is ctearly deducible
from the deeds and their attendant circumstances. [Ibid, Ibid.

HUSBAND AND WIFE; OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY AC-

QUIRED DURING MARRIAGE; PRESUMPTION IN FAVOR
OF THE CONJUGAL PARTNERSHIP. — All acquisitions by
onerous title during marriage are presumed to be for the con-
jugal partnership and at_its expense (old Civil Code, article
1401 (1); new Civil Code, article 153 (1). Hence, although
the instant pacto de retro sale was made to the wife alone, there
being no clear and convincing proof that the consideration of
the sale paid by both spouses was exclusive money of the wife,
said purchase a retro vested ownership of the land in the con-
jugal partnership of the spouses. Marcelo Patayon, plaintiff
and appellee, vs. Anatalia Ortal et al., defendants. Martiniano
Dagayday, defendant and appellant No. 1972-R, February 5,
1954, Reyes, J.B.L., J.

D.; ID.; HUSBAND’S RIGHT TO DISPOSE OF THE CON-
JUGAL PROPERTY. — The husband is the administrator of
the conjugal partnership (Civil Code of 1889, article 1412; new
Civil Code article 165.) Consequently, a sale by him of conju-
gal property, in the absence of fraud upon the wife, is valid (old
Civil Code Article 1413). On the other hand, if the wife not

(Continued on page 579)
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REPUBLIC ACTS

REPUBLIC ACT NO. 1052
AN ACT TO PROVIDE FOR THE MANNER OF TERMINAT-

ING EMPLOYMENT WITHOUT A DEFINITE PERIOD IN

A COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, OR AGRICULTURAL

ESTABLISHMENT OR ENTERPRISE.

Be it enocted by the Senate and Houss of Representatives of the

Philippis in Congress

SECTION 1 In casea oi employment, wntbont a definite period,
in a or or enter-
prise, neither the pl nor the p! shall the
employment without serving notice on the other at least one month
in advance.

The employee, upon whom no such notice was served, shall be
entitled to one month’s compensation from the date of termination
of his employment.

SEC. 2. Any contract or agreement contrary to the provisions
of section one of this Act shall be null and void.

SEC. 8. This Act shall take effect upon its approval.

Approved, June 12, 1954.

REPUBLIC ACT NO. 1053
AN ACT TO AMEND REPUBLIC ACT NUMBERED THREE
HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-FIVE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS OF THE GOVERNMENT OF THE UNITED
STATES OR ANY AGENCY THEREOF TO ADMINISTER
OATHS AND AFFIRMATIONS IN THE PHILIPPINES.

Be it cnacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the

Philippines in Congress assembled:

SectioN 1. Section one of Republic Act Numbered Three hun-
dred and eighty-five, which authcrizes certain officials of the Gov-
ernment of the United States or lmy agency thereof to administer
oaths and affi in the Phi i is hereby amended to
read as follows:

“SECTION 1. Any person employed in the Philippines by the
Government of the United States, or any agency thereof, to whom
authority is delegated by the said Government or agency, to admi-
nister oaths and affirmations, to aid claimants for benefits granted
by the United States in the preparation and presentation of their
claims, and to make investigations and examine witnesses, shall

have authority to oaths and affi during his
in the Phili in any i i or matter con-
nected with the performance of his duties and functions: Provided,

however, That for any oath or affirmation administered by him,
no fee shall be charged or collected.”
SEc. 2. This Act shall take effect upon its approval.
Approved, June 12, 1954.

REPUBLIC ACT NO. 1057
AN ACT TO AMEND REPUBLIC ACT NUMBERED NINE
HUNDRED AND TEN ENTITLED “AN ACT TO PROVIDE
FOR THE RETIREMENT OF JUSTICES OF THE SU-
PREME COURT AND OF THE COURT OF APPEALS,
FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE PROVISIONS HERE-
OF BY THE GOVERNMENT SERVICE SYSTEM, AND TO
REPEAL COMMONWEALTH ACT NUMBERED FIVE HUN-
DRED AND THIRTY-SIX” AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the

Philippines in Congress assembled:

SECTION 1. Republic Act Numbered Nine hundred and ten is
hereby amended by inserting between its sections two and three
a new section which shall be known as section Two-A thereof, and
which shall read as follows:

“SEC. 2-A. Any Justice of the Supreme Court or of the Court
of Appeals who ceased to hold such position prior to the approval
of this amendatory Act, to accept another position in the Govern-
ment or who resigned or retired from said courts after the effectivi-
ty of Commonwealth Act Numbered Five hundred and thirty-six,
entitled “An Act authorizing the retirement of Justices of the Su-
preme Court, and making appropriati for the of a re-
tirement gratuity”, without enjoying the benefits thereunder, shall
be entitled to the benefits under the provisions of this Act: Provided,
That at the time of his cessation in office or retirement as Justice
of the Supreme Court or of the Court of Appeals, he possessed all
the requirements prescribed by this Act: And provided, further,
That the benefits authorized hereunder shall accrue only from the
date of the approval of this amendatory Act.

SEC. 2. Republic Act Numbered Nine hundred and ten is hereby
further amended by inserting between its sections three and four
a new section to be known as section Three-A thereof, and which
shall read as follows:

“SEC. 8-A. In case the salary of Justices of the Supreme Court
or of the Court of Appeals is increased or decreased such increased '
or decreased salary shall, for the purposes of this Act, be deemed
to be the salary which a Justice who ceased to be such to accept
another position in the Government was receiving at the time of
his cessation in office: Provided, That any benefits that have al-
ready accrued prior to such increase or decrease shall not be af-
fected thereby.”

SEC. 3. The sum necessary to carry out the purposes of this
amendatory Act and Republic Act Numbered Nine hundred and ten,
is hereby appropriated out of any funds in the National Treasury
not otherwise appropriated.

SEC. 4. This Act shall take effect upon its approval.

Approved, June 12, 1954.

DIGEST OF DECISIONS OF THE COURT OF APPEALS

having the of the par , disposes of the
conjugal property without her husband’s consent (article 1416,
old Civil Code), her act is void. Ibid-

ID; ID.; ID.; ID.; NON-JUDICIAL SEPARATION OF SPOUSES,
EFFECT UPON POWER OF HUSBAND OVER CONJUGAL
PROPERTY. — The fact that spouses are separated without
judicial sanction (Civil Code of 1899, article 1432), does not
diminish the power of the husband over the conjugal property.
Ibid, Ibid.

APPEAL; ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS BY APPELLEE IN CIVIL
CASE, WHO HAS NOT APPEALED, NOT COGNIZABLE. —
In a civil case, unlike in an election case, the appellee, on ap-
peal, could not assign errors, unless he appealed from the deci-
sion of the court @ quo. Therefore, we cannot take cognizsnce
of his assignment of errors much less his arguments in support
thereof. Marcelo Saltarn, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Pascual
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(Continued)
Manaoy and Venancia Obdula, defendants and appellants, vs.
Nicasio Revistual Morandante el al., third party defendants, No.
4498-R, Feb. 8, 1954; Peiia, J.

CRIMINAL LAW; AMNESTY PROCLAMATION NO. 76; CRIMES
AGAINST CHASTITY NOT COVERED BY AMNESTY. —

sty F ion No- 76, intended for the
leaders and memben of the nssocmhon known as Hukbalahap
and Pamb ti ng Magbub (PKM), the then

Secretary of Jus't)ce issued Circular No. 27 on June 29, 1948,
stating that petitioners under the proclamation should be those
accused of the crimes of rebellion, sedition, illegal association,
assault upon, resistance and disobedience to persons in authority
and/or illegal possession of firearms, committed before June
21, 1948, or any other crime that may be shown to have been
committed merely a3 an incident to or in furtherance of the
commission of the crimes of rebellion, sedition, illegal associe-
(Continued on page 580)
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TEXAS LAWYER TALKS ON JURY

“The system of trial by jury is
not a perfect system.”

Thus spoke R. Richard Roberts,
a member of the Texas and the
United States bars and a partner
of one of the largest law firms in
the United States, Vinsors, Elkins,
Weems & Sears, at the symposium
on “Trial System in Criminal
Cases” held at the Francisco Col-
lege, Friday, November 19. He
was the guest speaker.

The American lawyer stressed
that nowhere in the weorld today
czn there be found a system of
trial that is perfect. He discoursed
on the merit of the jury system
adopted generally in the United
States although such a system,
according to him, is not without
flaw, especially in the trial of
civil cases.

Mr. Roberts disclosed that he
nas advocated for his native state
>f Texas the trial of eivil cases by
a judge with court commissioners
or assessors in place of the jury system. He said that at present
the jurors who are selected to judge civil cases are invariably those
who have “blank minds” on the subject of the suit. Since the
subjects of civil suits require in most cases expert knowledge, it
would better serve the ends of justice to vest the judge with the
power of decision and to appoint court commissioners or assessors
10 assist him with their expert knowledge, he explained.

Atty. R. Richard Roberts
Member, Texas Bar, U.S.A.

Starting his speech, Mr. Roberts outlined the procedure in jury
trial from the time the jurors are d, i ined,
challenged and sworn in, up to the time they are given the Court's

SYSTEM AT FRANCISCO COLLEGE

charge or instructions and convened to deliberate on the case and
render their verdict. While there are various safeguards provided
by the system against bias on the part of the jurors or undue in-
fluence exerted upon them by the parties, Mr. Roberts said that it
has several loopholes.

Mr. Roberts pointed out some aspects in the practieal applica-
tion of the system of trial by jury which may result in miscarriages
of justice. The procedure is such, he said, that a mere technicality
may provide sufficient ground for a re-trial, thereby resuiting in
protracted litigations. To illustrate his point, he recounted some
of his personal experiences. He reczlled some cases in which re-trial
was ordered due to the omission, though inadvertent, of some points
in the Court’s instructions to the jury. He also mentioned a case
he handled wherein the whole jury was changed because the opposing
counsel made some remarks in his statement to the jury which tended
to anticipate questions on the weicht and insufficieney of evidence.

Mr. Roberts has been in the active practice of law for the
last nineteen years and is presently in the Philippines as Vice-Presi-
dent of the San Jose Oil Corporation which has recently been granted
a concession by the Philippine government to explore 600,000 hectares
of public lands for oil.

Mr, Roberts was introduced to the Francisco College faculty
and students by Vice-Dean Proceso A. Sebastian of the College of
Law. Mr. Sebastian was former Philippine Ambassador to Italy
and later, to Indonesia.

The symposium, held under the auspices of the Francisco College
Debating and Oratorical Club, was participated in by four speakers
representing all the classes in the College of Law. Adjudged the
best developed thesis was “Trial in Capital Offenses by a Collegiate
Court” delivered by Abraham ¥. Briones, class '55. Mario Reyes,
class ’68, with his piece on “Trial by Jury” was declared the evening’s
best speaker. Ramon Belleza, class ’57, was awarded first nonorable
mention for his thesis on “Trial by a Single Judge.” The other
speaker was Manuel M, Echanova, class ’56, who proposed a system
of “Trial by Single Judge with the Aid of Assessors,” and to whom
second honorable mention was awarded.

All faculty members of the College of Law composed the board
of judges.

DIGEST OF DECISIONS OF THE COURT OF APPEALS
(Continued from page 579)

tion or assault upon, resistance and disobedience to persons in
authority; it being understood, however, that crimes against
chastity shall in no case be deemed covered by ammesty. Peo-
ple of the Philippines, plaintiff and appellee, vs. Eligio Camo,
Crispulo Camo and Jose D. Camo, defendants, Jose D. Camo,
defendants and appellant, No. 9558-R, February 11, 1954, Peita, J.

CRIMINAL LAW; EVIDENCE; POSSESSION AND USE OF
FALSIFIED DOCUMENT; PRESUMPTION.—When a person
has in his possession a falsified document and makes use of the
same, presumption arises that such person is the forger. Peo-
ple vs. Avelino Z. Dala, defendant and appellant, No. 10628-R,
February 20, 1954, De Leon, J.

1D.; ID.; PHOTOSTATIC COPIES, ADMISSIBILITY, — The lower
court did not err in admitting the photostatic copies of the

checks in question as evidence. The production of the orginal

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

checks is not indispensable when it is not disputed that the of-
fended parties did not sign the checks issued in their respective
names; wher the accused identified his own signatures appear-
ing in the ph that the checks in
question were correct photostatic copies of the originals. Ibid.

; and there is evid

CRIMINAL LAW AND PROCEDURE; SPEEDY TRIAL. — The
right to a speedy trial is a relative one: A speedy trial is one
conducted according to the law of criminal procedure and the
rules and regulations which include, among others, the grant-
ing of postponements of trial which while viewed with ahhor-
ence and granted sparingly by the courts can no less be ex-
cluded from our system of justice than
the dust from the air we breathe. People vs: Florencia Rori-
naga, defendant and appellant, No. 9TT1.R, February 27, 1954,
De Leon, J.

Acivat
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Lawyer's Directory

ADRIANO, LOPE E.
Bl ‘Samanillo Bldg., Manila
Tel. 3-33-64

AGPALO, JOSE S.
760 Lepanto, Sampaloc, Manila
Tel. 3-24-02

ANloNlo, ROMAN B,
Snmmullu Bldg., Manila
.

ANZURES, Dr. PABLO
awyer Medico-Legal Expert
. 8-79-49
m, 404 Burke Bldg., Escol
Santa Mesa Blvd., corner Souezu, Manila
‘el, 6-63-76

BANICO, HERMINIO B,
R-201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
Tel. 3-33-64

CARDENAS, JOSE PEREZ
406 Aviles, Manila
6-71-86

m DACAYO, LEON

,
I

P.
Suite 429, Lourth Floor
‘m. Li Yao Bldg., Manila
394 Bambang Ext., Manila

DALUPAN & SANCHEZ
R Regina Bldg., Escolta, Manila
. 82757

DALMACION, ALBERTO L.
201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
el 8.30.64

(In_view of the present difficulty of locating the offices of

Dpracticing attorneys, the Journal publishes this directory to acquaint

not only their clients but also the public of their address. Lawyers

may avail themselves of this service upon payment of Two Pesos for

each issue of this )

FERNANDEZ JE., ESTANISLAO A.
308 Samanillo’ Bldg nila
Dial: 2-92-09 C-vll "ia26

FRANCISCO, ALBERTO J.
R-201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
el. 3-3

FRANCIS00, RICARDO T.
201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
et 5.5

FRANCISCO, RODOLFO J.
R-201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
Tel. 3-33-64

FRANCISCO, VICENTE J.
R-20l S;;lrsn‘nmllo Bldg., Manila

GUERRERU BERNARDINO

GUZMAN, PRUDENCIO DE
R-212  Roces Hnos. Bld;
439 Rizal Avenue, Manila
Tel. No. 3-21-T8

JORDAN. TECHKCO LAW OFFICES
Ass ge L. J. Mnuccmdo

7208 Second Tioo
562 Pinpin corner Ongpin, Manila
EO R P

Sultes

MACAPAGAL LAW OFFICES
Suite 320 Mmirun\l Bldg., Escolta, Manila
Tel: 3-31-

MACASPAC, JOSE TORRES
19 ieron, Sta. Ana, Manila
159 kas'\rlnlun, Sta. Ana, Manila

MARASIGAN, FRANCISCO
R-201 Samanillo Bldg., Manila
Tel. 3-33-64

MATIAS, ANDRE!
B0l §1\mnn|llo Bldg.. Manila
. 3-33-6:

PACHECO, EMERENCIANA S.
San_Anton, Manila
T, Taee

SYCIP, QUISUMBING, SALAZAR & ASSOCIATES
LAW OFFICES
5th Floor, Trade and Commerce Bldg.
128 Juan Mani
Telephones:

ila
350 & 29326

A. ROJA
ima Bldg.
, Manila

SAN_JUAN, A mu\ YRIGUEZ & BENEDICTO
Suite 226 Regina Bldg.. 2n
Facolta, Manila, Tel.

SA] JOSE T.

“Manila

. 5-04-49

SORIANO, MANUEL A. Q.
Soriano Law Offices
Suite 409 Samanillo Bldg.
scolta, Manila

TENZA, ELISEO M.
Suite No. 408, Samanillo Bldg.
Escolta. M Manil
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